
 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please contact the  

Village Clerk’s Office, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 

 
 

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 – 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 

February 4, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. Recognition – Citizen Recognition to Cory Baker and Gwen Gernenz  

 
5. Minutes of Meeting – January 21, 2019 

 
6. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 

from the public on items not on the agenda; however, no discussion is allowed and no action will be taken 
under citizen comments.) 

 
7. Administrator’s Report 

 
8. Tabled Business 

 
A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Resolution 

#19-01 to vacate a portion of the Schmidt’s First Addition to Pleasant Prairie 
Subdivision rights-of-way. 

B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 
#19-02 for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to amend Village 2035 Land Use Plan 
Map 9.9 as it relates to property located between 116th and 128th Street east of 
Sheridan Road. 
 

C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 
#19-03 Zoning Map Amendment as it relates to property located between 116th and 
128th Street east of Sheridan Road. 

 
9. New Business 

 
A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of a Master 

Conceptual Plan request for vacant property located at 7821 120th Avenue for the 
development of a Hyatt Place Hotel and Kings and Convicts brewery. 

B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Master 
Conceptual Plan request for vacant property located at 9201 Wilmot Road for the 
development of three limited use industrial related buildings. 

C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Resolution 
#19-02 for a Floodplain Boundary Adjustment for a culvert replacement located at 
8000 128th Street. 



Village Board Agenda 
February 4, 2019 
 
 

2 
 

D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 
#19-04 to amend Section 395-72G of the Village Land Division and Development 
Control Ordinance. 

E. Consider approval of the Agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 
Bluestem Energy Solutions, LLC. 

F. Consider approval of Sex Offender Residence Board Member Appointment.  

10. Village Board Comments 
 

11. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to §19.85(1)(e) Wis. Stats., to discuss, deliberate or 
negotiate the purchase of public property, invest of public funds, or conduct other specified 
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. 
 

12. Return to Open Session and Adjournment 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

Village Hall Auditorium 
9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 
January 21, 2019 

6:00 p.m. 
 
 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, January 21, 2019.  
Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, 
Mike Pollocoff, Dave Klimisch and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Tom Shircel, Assistant Village 
Administrator; Peggy Herrick, Assistant Zoning Administrator; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave 
Smetana, Chief of Police; Craig Roepke, Chief of Fire & Rescue; Matt Fineour, Village Engineer; Sandro 
Perez, Inspection Superintendent; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Dan Honore', IT Director; 
Carol Willke, Human Resources Director; and Jane C. Snell, Village Clerk.  Five (5) citizens attended the 
meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. RECOGNITION - CITIZEN AWARD TO EMILY KAY BRENNER 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 

Good evening, Mr. President, and members of the Board.  Tonight I’m honored on behalf of the 
Pleasant Prairie Police Department and Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue to award a plaque of 
recognition to Emily Kay Brenner.  This stems from an incident that occurred on Highway 50 
near 88th on December 9, 2018.  It was a tragic incident.  Ms. Brenner came upon it in traffic.  It 
appeared to be a traffic accident.  She assisted leaving her car trying to help.  She quickly 
assessed the situation and noted that instead of an accident it was an accident plus a shooting with 
the shooting victim in the vehicle. 

 
Now, Ms. Brenner who was only four days separated from the 101st Airborne from Fort 
Campbell, luckily for us she was in the area.  As she assessed the situation she started first aid on 
the victim using her own shirt in frigid weather.  So by the time the squads got there there was 
very little that they needed to do other than wait for Fire and Rescue as Ms. Brenner was already 
attending to the victim. 

 
So I think it’s fitting on this day of Martin Luther King Day which is known as a day of service 
that we recognize Ms. Brenner for the actions she took on December 9th in the Village of 
Pleasant Prairie as selfless service to others.  So if Emily would step up.  Congratulations, Ms. 
Brenner.  The plaque is in grateful recognition of selfless services and assistance to the Village of 
Pleasant Prairie Police Department and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue with our 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
2 

sincerest thanks and gratitude.  Thank you very much.  I don’t know if you have any questions or 
comments Ms. Brenner is here for you.  I told her there would be no comments, but. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Any questions or comments from the Board. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Thank you, thank you very much. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Congratulations and thank you for being there. 
 
Emily Kay Brenner: 
 

Thank you. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Are you active Air Force right now or Air Force Reserve? 
 
Emily Kay Brenner: 
 

No, I was active duty, I just got back. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Are you done with the service now? 
 
Emily Kay Brenner: 
 

Yes. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Thank you for your service and for this, too.  Thank you very much. 
 
5. MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS - NOVEMBER 19, 2018, DECEMBER 3, 2018 AND 

DECEMBER 17, 2018. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

Move approval. 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
3 

Michael Serpe: 
 

Second. 
 

John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
KLIMISCH MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE VILLAGE BOARD MEETINGS 
AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 
5-0. 
 
6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Jane Snell: 
 

Mr. President, we have four signups this evening.  The first one is Stephanie Judge. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We’re going to ask that you give us your name and address for the record.  Thank you. 
 
Stephanie Judge: 
 

Hi there, everyone.  My name is Stephanie Judge, and I’m a Land Protection Specialist with 
Nature Conservancy.  And I’m leading the restoration effort at our new Chiwaukee West 
restoration site.  My office address is 633 West Main Street in Madison, Wisconsin, 53703.  So I 
believe all members of the Board were in attendance at the Planning Commission meeting last 
Monday night so I’ll be as brief as possible. 

 
As discussed then TNC has worked with local residents for over 50 years to help protect 
Chiwaukee Prairie.  The site is part of the Chiwaukee Prairie/Illinois Beach plane which with 
over 4,500 protected acres is the largest nearly contiguous block of open land along the entire 
shore of southern Lake Michigan.  As such the lake plane is an internationally recognized 
conservation area with an incredible diversity of plants and animals that welcomes more than two 
million visitors every year. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
4 

Chiwaukee Prairie here in the Village of Pleasant Prairie is core to the lake planes biodiversity.  
Chiwaukee is Wisconsin’s most diverse state natural area, and was designated a national natural 
landmark in 1966.  TNC and partners like the Chiwaukee Prairie Preservation Fund have worked 
to protect Chiwaukee since 1965.  And acquisition efforts to protect the remaining privately 
owned parcels east of the tracks and south of 116th Street is ongoing. 

 
Groundwater flows from the west are critical to maintaining Chiwaukee’s wetlands.  After 
groundwater modeling by the US Geological Survey was published in a 2004 Southeast 
Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission report, TNC realize that development west of 
Chiwaukee could threaten a half century investment in the property.  We can only buy from 
willing sellers, and following the great recession two primary landowners west of the tracks 
decided to sell.  TNC now owns 150 acres, and we’re calling our site the Chiwaukee West 
Restoration Area. 

 
Although TNC has already received Village permits to begin our restoration on the majority of 
the site, your consideration and approval of the items already approved by the Planning 
Commission last Monday night would enable our restoration to move forward most efficiently 
and will also ensure that we, Village staff and the public are all aligned in our understanding 
about the site’s purpose.   

 
As discussed in my presentation last week and as stated in a letter from myself to Village 
Administration Nathan Thiel in late November of last year, the Conservancy plans to transform a 
degraded vacant site into an attractive natural area with excellent wildlife habitat that enhances 
groundwater recharge by stemming the otherwise ongoing discharge of water from the property.  
Increase groundwater recharge means less flooding and cleaner drinking water.  The project will 
also provide new opportunity for outdoor public recreation including hiking, bird watching and 
cross-country skiing.   

 
To accommodate these activities and engage and educate the public we are installing 
informational signage at sites along our property’s perimeter.  In addition to these benefits we 
envision that with community support, continued funding from those who have provided financial 
support in the past, and with participation from other conservation partners at Chiwaukee, mowed 
trails will meander through prairies and past restored wetlands.  Educational interpretive signs 
detailing a variety of subjects including the site’s natural and cultural history, plans and animals 
may be staged along trail routes. 

 
Beyond these initial public amenities the conservancy hopes that funding and partner support may 
be secured to provide additional nature-based outdoor education opportunities at the site.  And we 
are actively exploring the feasibility of potential features like an ADA accessible bird watching 
platform and outdoor classroom area that could provide a destination for area school groups. 

 
We are currently focused on assuring our restoration starts successfully and on time this winter 
while the ground is frozen.  But throughout the entire multi-year restoration process I will be 
looking ahead with the Village and other partners to think big about what’s possible for this new 
restoration area.  Because if support from the Village and other partners continues or expands in 
the years ahead even more public amenities could be associated with the site.   



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
5 

 
For example, Village staff has advocated construction of a nature center or natural history 
museum for the site.  While we cannot commit to a brick and mortar feature like a nature center at 
this time, we are happy to continue working with the Village and other partners to cooperatively 
explore what future features should be, whether they’re feasible for the site and how they would 
be funded and maintained.  We are excited about the amount of interest there is in providing a 
rich public experience at the property.  And it’s our goal to not only restore natural communities 
to this site but also to use this site to help people connect with nature. 

 
Last week Board member Pollocoff raised two concerns during discussion by the Planning 
Commission Board, and I want to address those concerns now.  First, Village staff confirmed 
after last week’s meeting that they believe that all special assessments relating to sewer and water 
installation along Sheridan Road were paid by previous property owners.  I’ve not received a final 
confirmation yet, but I know they were looking into the details. 

 
Second, some concerns were raised about hunting.  Although hunting is allowed on our properties 
in the Village due to the requirements of State funding, hunting activity is subject to both State 
law and local ordinances.  As such the Village’s ordinance which prohibits any use of a firearm 
with a single projectile on properties east of Sheridan Road will govern users hunting on our land.  
If the Village would like to govern hunting activities different it’s within your power to do so.  
This concludes my statement.  I thank you all for your time and consideration of the items before 
you this evening. 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

The next person on the list is Nancy Washburn. 
 
Nancy Washburn: 
 

Good evening, Nancy Washburn, 7450 County Line Road, Land Development Administration.  
Just letting you know that I am here if there are any questions on the Harpe Development items 
tonight.  I am here to answer your questions, and I just anted to say hello.  Thank you. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you. 
 
Jane Snell: 
 

The next person is Pam Holy. 
 
Pam Holy: 
 

Pam Holy, property owner 204 102nd Street, President of the Chiwaukee Preservation Fund.  I 
just want you to know that our Board and our over 300 supporters are 100 percent behind the 
Chiwaukee West development.  So thank you. 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
6 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

And the fourth person is Ingrid Verhulst. 
 
Ingrid Verhulst: 
 

Mr. President and Board members, I’m Ingrid Verhulst, and I also own property at 204 102nd 
Street.  And I’m also a member of the all volunteer Chiwaukee Prairie Preservation Fund.  
Needless to say what The Nature Conservancy has done here has greatly reinforced our efforts, 
and we are in complete support of it.  And anything we can do to add any kind of positive 
reasons, I don’t want to reiterate or be redundant, but I think this will benefit Pleasant Prairie in 
totality.  Because it’s amazing how many people we’re run into in the area that have actually 
moved to this area to be near the prairie or actually in the prairie.   So to that extent I think it will 
be very beneficial, and I hope you will support the three issues that need to be done.  Any 
questions? 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Citizen comments, we can’t -- it’s not an agenda item. 
 
Ingrid Verhulst: 

Okay, I didn’t know. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Well, it is an agenda item but it’s not a public hearing. 
 
Ingrid Verhulst: 
 

And I’m not likely to have any answers so thanks. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

If we think of something we’ll call you.  Anyone else wishing to speak?  Yes, sir?  Give us your 
name and address for the record. 

 
Randy Michael: 
 

My name is Randy Michael, and I live at 9612 4th Avenue down in Chiwaukee Prairie.  I grew up 
there, lived in Carol Beach almost my whole life from.  Approximately 1990 to 2005 I had to 
move away for work.  But as soon as I could I came back because I was one of the ones that 
loved the area so much that I wanted to live in Chiwaukee Prairie or by it.  As I said I’ve lived 
there almost all my life.  The road in front of our house is gravel like many of the roads down in 
Chiwaukee Prairie is. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
7 

Since I’ve lived there there’s been a lot of development along my road which is, again, gravel.  
And I’ve had to call unfortunately twice about the maintenance of my road.  There’s almost 
potholes that I have to buy a four wheel drive vehicle to adequately get down the road.  Also, 
where I live there’s Chiwaukee Prairie immediately to my right and across the street, and there’s 
culverts there that are not tended to.  The water is backed up, a lot of times it goes over the road.  
And unfortunately in the springtime there’s water that goes across my road that’s as wide as this 
room.  That’s not an exaggeration.  So we don’t know what’s under there other than the potholes 
that are always there.  

 
And I’d just like the maintenance to be done on the road.  I’d like to bring it to the attention of the 
Board that we’re down there, we fight this every single day.  I called about two weeks ago, and 
they’re real good about coming out and plowing after I address it, called, I’m not sure who I 
talked to there.  But immediately a couple days after they come down my road and plowed it.  
They skipped a day and came out and plowed it again, but it does not last.   

 
As I said the area has been developed, there’s people building houses, there’s more traffic on the 
road.  I know that when they build new developments out here besides laying out where the 
homes are going to be the first thing they do is put the roads in.  So I think it’s time that we need 
to address that issue down there and make Chiwaukee Prairie the most beautiful as it can be.  We 
need some help down there.  And so I came to the meeting tonight just to present my case and 
bring it to the attention of the entire Board.  I’m not really trying to -- I guess I am complaining, 
but I just think that we need somebody to come out and take a look at maybe improving our area 
like these young ladies have addressed that we need help down there, and we appreciate anything 
you can do in that regard.  Thank you. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you.  Anyone else wishing to speak?  Hearing none I’ll close citizens’ comments. 
 
7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Thank you, Mr. President, and Board members.  I do have a couple items tonight I’d like to bring 
you up to date on.  The first one, at the last meeting in December, the Village Board meeting, 
there was a gentleman under citizens’ comments who had questions and concerns about the east 
side of Cooper Road across from Whittier School and some parking issues.  I know that John 
Steinbrink, Jr., our Department of Public Works Director, Nathan Thiel, our Village 
Administrator, they met with the principal out there at Whittier School and with Patrick 
Fennimore, the Facilities Director at KUSD.  

 
And they’re weighing different options.  But one option they came up with to solve this issue of 
people parking on the grass on the east side of Cooper Road was to look at widening the shoulder 
on the east side of Cooper Road.  That’s one of the options that the Department of Public Works 
is looking into and to perhaps fold into the paving program for this year.  So I just wanted to 
bring you an update on that. 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
8 

 
And secondly, the second thing was as you know most of you or all of you were at the kickoff 
meeting last Thursday evening for the Village Green community collaboration process.  It was a 
big success as far as attendance goes.  We had over 150 attendees.  And of those 150 attendees 80 
people signed up thus far for subcommittees.  So going with eight subcommittees that would be at 
least ten people per subcommittee.  So according to the consultant, Todd Streeter, that’s the most 
people he’s ever had at a kickoff meeting.  It’s the most people that he’s every had to sign up for 
a subcommittee.  So it’s exciting.  It will be interesting to see how this unfolds and see what these 
subcommittees can come up for the new Village Green Center, what kind of plan they come up 
with.  So that’s the two things I had to update you on. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you, Tom.  That moves us on to Item 8, New Business.  And a request has been made to 
take Items A and B together.  Motion to take A and B together? 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

So moved. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 

John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
KECKLER MOVED TO CONSIDER NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 8A & 8B TOGETHER; 

SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 

#19-01 for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment as it relates to property located at the 
corner of Old Green Bay Road and STH 165 to be known as Green Bay Trail 
Condominiums. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
9 

 B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of a Conceptual 
Plan as it relates to property located at the corner of Old Green Bay Road and STH 
165 to be known as Green Bay Trail Condominiums. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Thank you.  Just a little background.  As you may recall back in 2007 the Village Board approved 
a Final Condominium Plat and Development Agreement for the Vintage Park condominium 
development which included 3 6-unit and 12 4-unit condominium buildings for a total of 66 
buildings at this southeast corner of Old Green Bay Road and 104th Street.  Infrastructure 
construction began, and some public improvements were installed.  They mass graded the site, 
they installed the retention basins, some underground utilities.  Utility and the binder course of 
the roadway were put in including curb and gutter.  However, due to the downturn in the 
economy all required public improvements were not completed, and no condominium buildings 
were built, and the existing Development Agreement remains in effect. 

 
In November 2018 you may recall you folks approved an assignment of the existing 2007 
Development Agreement to Harpe Development who is now the current proposed developer of 
this property and owner of this property.  They had agreed to assume all obligations under the 
original Development Agreement including being financially responsible for the completion of 
the required public and private improvements in the development.  It’s intended that the new 
Development Agreement will be entered into with the developer based on these new development 
plans, and any additional cost to finish up the work will need to be submitted in a supplemental 
letter of credit as we continue through the planning process. 

 
So at this time Harpe Development, LLC, who owns the property and will be the developer is 
requesting approval of a conceptual plan for the redevelopment of this property.  Again, the 
existing Vintage Park final plat is proposed to be vacated along with some easements, and the 
property is proposed to be developed with 6 3-unit and 14 2-unit condominium buildings for a 
total of 46 units.  That’s a 20 unit reduction from the current Vintage Park plat that’s out there 
right now.   

 
This development is to be known as Green Bay Trail Condominiums.  They intend to utilize as 
much of the existing infrastructure as they can.  The stormwater pond will be reshaped slightly, 
and some utilities will need to be relocated to allow for the new development layout.  They have 
two different buildings.  They have a two unit building, these will be ranch-style buildings with 
two car attached garages.  They will have full basements.  There will be a two bedroom unit with 
a two bath, and there will be a three bedroom unit with a two bath around 1,600 and some odd 
square feet per unit. 

 
The three unit buildings there will be two lower levels that will be ranch-style with a three car 
attached garage.  They will have a full basement.  They will be two bedrooms and two baths.  The 
third unit is on the upper level, and they will have a two car attached garage that is extra deep 
since they will not have a basement there on the upper level.  This unit has three bedrooms, two 
bathrooms, an office and a covered deck. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
10 

The developer anticipates starting construction in the spring of 2019 and projects that the 
development will be completed within two to three years.  In addition, the developer as submitted 
draft deed restrictions, covenants and easements along with the conceptual elevations and floor 
plans of the proposed condominium buildings. 

 
The other item on the agenda tonight is a Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  The Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment as shown on the above screen indicates the new development layout changing 
the number of units from 66 to 46 units.  So this portion of the neighborhood plan is proposed to 
be amended.  The property is currently zoned R-10 PUD which is a multifamily residential 
district with a planned unit development overlay.  And that planned unit development overlay is 
based on the current Vintage Park development. 

 
At the time the Final Condominium Plat is considered for this new development with a new 
layout a new PUD ordinance will be created for the development, and the Vintage Park PUD 
ordinance will be repealed.  The Village staff will begin preparing this detailed PUD ordinance 
for review by the developer when the Preliminary Plat is submitted.  But the required public 
hearings for the PUD ordinance will be held at the same time the Village Plan Commission and 
the Village Board considers the Final Condominium Plat and all the related documents. 

 
I just want to touch briefly on some municipal improvements.  Municipal sanitary sewer and 
water will be required to provide to all the units within the development.  Sanitary sewer and 
water were installed by the previous developer.  However, due to the reconfiguration of the 
building some sewer and water mains and laterals will be relocated or extended.  Again, I 
mentioned earlier the stormwater basin will be re-constructed into a little bit different shape to 
accommodate the new layout of the units.   

 
Sidewalks are now required in all developments and will be required in this development 
pursuant to the engineering comments which are attached to this memo.  Public roadways will be 
constructed pursuant to the Village specifications as noted in Chapter 405 of the Municipal Code 
with some slight adjustments since a portion of this development the public improvements were 
already installed. 

 
In addition to the required preliminary and final condominium plats a Certified Survey Map will 
be required to be approved to dedicate any new easements and to set forth additional restrictive 
covenant language as a result of the reconfiguration.  As part of the Final Condominium Plat and 
the CSM approval the developer will be required to execute a new development agreement, 
provide all required exhibits and provide a supplemental letter of credit as financial security to the 
Village as a guarantee for the installation, inspection and warranty of the remaining public 
improvements. 

 
As you may recall, some of you were not here at the time, but when the original development 
agreement was entered into with the Vintage Park they paid $187,000 for intersection 
improvements for Green Bay Road and State Trunk Highway 165 intersection.  These 
intersection improvements are anticipated to begin in the late summer or spring of 2019 as part of 
the Main Street Market development.  So the money that was submitted by the previous 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
11 

developer in the mid 2000s will be used as a contribution to help put those improvements in that 
are being done by Main Street Market. 

 
Again, on January 14th the Plan Commission held public hearings on both these items, and they 
recommended that both items be approved subject to the conditions as noted in the staff report.  If 
you have any questions I can try to answer them.  And the developer is here if you have further 
questions. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Peg, what is the projected amount of students coming out of this development? 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Students? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Students, yeah. 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Pursuant to the 2010 census about a little over 20 percent are typically public school age children 
per residential unit.  We find that lower typically in condominiums.  Kenosha Unified School 
District indicates that 42 percent of the number of units is the number of school age children that 
will attend public school.  So 42 percent of 46. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

The reason I bring that up is because condominium projects do not furnish a lot of students to the 
Unified system. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Correct. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

But we still get inquiries from people saying you’re going to flood our system.  And Chris 
handled that the last time that came forward.  And the people just think that we’re adding all these 
students to the school system and that’s not the case with a condominium project.  So I wish there 
was a better way to -- 

 
 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
12 

Peggy Herrick: 
 

I think we’ll have better information when the new census comes out in 2020.  Because in 2010 
the Village didn’t have very many apartments or condominiums so everything is kind of grouped 
into per unit.  So I think we’re going to be able to give better assessments because we’ll be able to 
break it down versus condominiums, apartments and things like that.  Where before in 2010 and 
prior predominantly we were single family so it kind of skews those numbers a little bit. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Okay, all right.  I’d move approval of 19-01. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second approval of Ordinance 19-01.  Further discussion?  Roll call vote 
has been requested. 

 
Jane Snell: 
 

Mike Serpe? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Aye. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

Aye. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Aye. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Aye.  Motion carries.  That brings us to Item B. 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
13 

Dave Klimisch: 
 

Move approval of the Conceptual Plan. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion and a second for adoption of the Conceptual Plan.  Any further discussion?  Those in 
favor? 

 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries.   
 

SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE #19-01 FOR A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT AS IT RELATES TO PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE CORNER OF OLD 
GREEN BAY ROAD AND STH 165 TO BE KNOWN AS GREEN BAY TRAIL 
CONDOMINIUMS; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; ROLL CALL VOTE – SERPE – YES; 
KLIMISCH – YES; POLLOCOFF – YES; KECKLER – YES; STEINBRINK – YES; MOTION 
CARRIED 5-0. 
 

KLIMISCH MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE A MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN AS IT RELATES 
TO PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE CORNER OF OLD GREEN BAY ROAD AND STH 165 TO 
BE KNOWN AS GREEN BAY TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION 
CARRIED 5-0. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 
A request has been made to take Items C, D and E together. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

So moved. 
 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
14 

Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 

KECKLER MOVED TO CONSIDER NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 8C, 8D & 8E 
TOGETHER; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
 C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Resolution 

#19-01 to vacate a portion of the Schmidt’s First Addition to Pleasant Prairie 
Subdivision rights-of-way. 

 
 D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 

#19-02 for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to amend Village 2035 Land Use Plan 
Map 9.9 as it relates to property located between 116th and 128th Street east of 
Sheridan Road. 

 
 E. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of Ordinance 

#19-03 Zoning Map Amendment as it relates to property located between 116th and 
128th Street east of Sheridan Road. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Okay, thank you.  The Nature Conservancy or the TNC has purchased approximately 150 acres of 
land which is located generally between 116th and 128th Streets east of Sheridan Road for a 
wetland restoration project to be known as Chiwaukee West Restoration Plan. The land area is 
west of the Chiwaukee Prairie Natural Area, and this is west of the railroad tracks between 
Sheridan Road and the railroad tracks. 
This area has been ditched, drained and is degraded agricultural land that the TNC intends to 
restore with the natural hydrology and vegetation to host a mix of dry prairie, wetland swales and 
oak savannas. The TNC plans to work with the Village in the future to plan public access 
opportunities for this site, including walking trails. The site will feature a mix of grassy habitats 
intermixed with shallow wetlands, providing additional habitat for shorebirds including greater 
yellow legs, sandpipers, plovers, dowagers and godwits. Blanding’s turtles have already been 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
15 

documented successfully nesting in the site’s sandy agricultural fields, but restoration will 
enhance opportunities and enhance viability. 

 
Beyond providing new wildlife habitat, improving degraded habitat and offering the public 
opportunities for nature-based outdoor recreation on this site, the planned restoration will also 
stop the excess flow of storm water runoff from this site through its ditch and drain tile network.  
By restoring the site’s hydrology to hold back storm water, the project will decrease downstream 
flooding and increase infiltration of clean groundwater follow to benefit drinking water supplies 
and feed springs that upwell to the adjoining State Natural Area.  

 
The site currently hosts about 67 acres of undesirable woody brush and trees interspersed with 
oak and hickory trees, 74.9 acres are agricultural fields, and approximately 5.8 acres are emergent 
low-prairie, and a few acres of remnant native vegetation along the railroad right-of-way on the 
east side of the plan. These areas are more particularly described in the restoration plan which 
was attached to your Board packet. 

 
The restoration plan is envisioned to be executed in four primary phases.  Phase 1 includes 
ongoing planning, permitting and neighborhood notification.  Phase 2 covers site preparation 
between now and mid-2019 including removal of all undesirable woody trees, shrubs and vines 
this coming winter. Stipulated Conservancy Permit and Erosion Control Permits have already 
been applied for and issued by the Village for these phases.  

 
Phase 3 covers restoration of the site’s hydrology and replanting of native vegetation in late 
summer and early fall of 2019.  Phase 4 covers intensive monitoring and follow-up for at least 
three years thereafter to assure restoration success before transitioning to a long-term plan of 
maintenance.  As part of this they are requesting to vacate a portion of rights-of-way within the 
Schmidt’s First Addition to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision.  And this was your Resolution 19-01. 

 
Since TNC now owns all of the lots involved and it's been more than 40 years since the plat was 
recorded down in this area, and the public streets were not built and have not been used by 
anyone, a court procedure to vacate the portion of the plat is recommended by the Village.  
Furthermore, Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.43(4) provides that if a plat area being vacated 
includes streets, roads, alley or public ways it can be vacated by a court if there is a resolution 
passed by the Village Board approving and requesting such vacation and the owners of all 
frontage of the lots and lands abutting the area sought to be vacated request in writing that such 
action be taken. 

 
The TNC has decided to follow the court procedures and will be responsible for petitioning the 
court to vacate the portion of this plat. The Village can assist in the vacation of the area which 
includes a street, road, alley or public way by passing a resolution which is before you tonight 
which is Resolution 19-01 to support and petition the vacation of these rights-of-way as shown on 
the overhead.  In addition to vacating portions of the plat and the right-of-way that does not 
vacate any easements that may have been granted to any utility company so they will have to 
search that out to see if there are any easements granted.  It’s unlikely that they were.  This area 
was platted quite some time ago, I believe in the 1920s. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
16 

Ordinance 19-02 is the Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  And this is as a result of the forgoing, 
the Comprehensive Land Use Plan is proposed to be amended to change the Low-Medium 
designations, the Commercial and Mixed USE CT with an Urban Reserve Area land area use 
designations on the properties to the Park, Recreational and Other Open Space lands. The Isolated 
Natural Resource Areas and the wetland land use designations on the properties will remain 
unchanged. In addition, Appendix 10-3 of the Village Comprehensive Plan is proposed to be 
updated to reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan 9.9. 

 
The Zoning Map Amendment which is Ordinance 1903 will allow the Land Use Plan and the 
Zoning Map to be consistent, therefore they are requesting to rezone the properties from the A-2, 
General Agricultural and the C-2 areas which is Upland Resource Conservancy District, they are 
proposing to place those into the C-1, Natural and Scientific Area Resource Conservancy District.  
The lands that are zoned C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District will remain unchanged. 

 
I just want to give an update to the land that the Chiwaukee Prairie has purchased south of 116th 
Street on the east side of the railroad.  TNC continues to acquire land as identified in The Carol 
Beach Chiwaukee Prairie Land Use Management Plan for preservation when there is a willing 
seller. As of 2015 when TNC transferred their own property to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources, 56 lots still needed to be acquired.  Since that time, the Chiwaukee Prairie 
Preservation Fund, an all volunteer charitable organization dedicated to acquiring, managing and 
preserving Chiwaukee Prairie, especially in this area, has acquired 14 additional lots within this 
area and 3 more lots further north. 

 
At the Plan Commission meeting on the 14th a public hearing was held and there were some 
questions that were asked at the public hearing.  The Plan Commissioners inquired about the 
hunting laws.  Attached is the current ordinance 250-3 of the Village Municipal Code that was 
adopted in 2015.  This ordinance does not allow for shooting of a single projectile weapon east of 
Sheridan Road.  If there are more specific questions related to that ordinance the Police Chief is 
in the audience, I believe he’s still here, he could answer any of your questions. 

 
In addition, the Plan Commission inquired about any outstanding sewer and water assessments on 
the properties.  According to the Village Finance Department records there are no outstanding 
assessments on properties owned by the TNC or other properties abutting Sheridan Road between 
116th and 128th Streets.  With that I can entertain any questions if you have further questions for 
the petitioner.  As she indicated she is here for any additional questions. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

I’m going to open it up to questions and comments from the Board.  Mike? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Thank you, Mr. President.  I have some concerns about this.  And it’s too far gone for it to be 
undone.  But I’d like to reorder the agenda a little bit and have the vacation of the right-of-ways 
be acted on after we consider the amendment to the Plan Commission [inaudible] to the Comp. 
Plan.  One of my concerns was and the reason I asked for the information on the sanitary sewer 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
17 

and water assessments is when the Chiwaukee Prairie Compromised Land Use Plan was adopted 
it was a years long effort to come up with a document that was going to satisfy competing 
interests on what lands should be developed in that area and what lands should be preserved.  It 
was a difficult process.  And it was one of those processes where I don’t think everybody got 
everything they wanted, but it was an acceptable document at the end. 

 
In this area here as you can see from the Comp. Plan was an area that was not slated for 
conservation, but it was identified for some development.  In reliance on the Comprehensive Plan 
and as people petition for sewer and water, sanitary sewer and water were extended on Sheridan 
Road from 116th Street down to State Line Road, 128th.  People paid special assessments for the 
extension of that sewer.  In some cases its individual lots, in some cases its open land, but they 
paid those assessments off.   

 
The sanitary sewer and water that was installed was oversized to handle more than just the people 
that were on one side of the road or the other because it was a larger area.  So the people who 
were assessed paid for the cost of an eight inch line, and then anything over that cost was paid for 
by the rate payers of the utility, and the rate payers were going to be compensated back as 
development occurred.  And people hooked up to the sanitary sewer and the water in the case of 
sanitary sewer there would be a connection fee that would help to fee the debt.  And in the case of 
the water there just be usage that would help that fee. 

 
My concern is that when the Village makes an investment of public funds to make improvements 
in an area, and those investment of public funds when we prepare the plans and specifications, we 
review them to make sure that we’re in compliance with our own plans, in this case the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Before those sewer and water plans are approved they go to the 
Southeaster Wisconsin Regional Plan Commission and the DNR to make sure that those plans are 
in compliance with the adopted land use plan and the 208 service area plan for sanitary sewer.  
And all those plans were approved.  And, in fact, the utilities were installed. 

 
I know there’s been a couple proposals where individuals wanted to develop the vacant land, and 
those developers were met by a lot of resistance for the reasons that were described by Peg and 
the representative from TNC.  There’s no question that there’s some environmental issues in that 
area that you’d like to protect.  But the issue never really got far enough for a compromise to be 
reached on that and so it sat.  Eventually the guy dies and they buy his land. 

 
Before we amend our Comp. Plan, I think that it’s important as a community that we be 
transparent about it and we say, okay, here’s a proposal to change this block of land.  It was going 
to be one use, and I would advocate for the same thing, it was Conservancy and you were taking 
out of Conversancy and putting it into development, but when we approve a plan and we allocate 
our resources to it we should be more than willing to take a look at what those costs are, what our 
investment’s been before we go with the real estate deal of the day.  And in this case, and it’s 
happened in various areas in Chiwaukee Prairie where a group will go out and say we think this is 
really valuable, we’re going to buy this parcel, these parcels, and all of a sudden we have stranded 
utilities, we have stranded oversizing.  They’re happy they acquired the land, but it wasn’t land 
that was supposed to be acquired as part of the Chiwaukee Prairie Plan. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
18 

And I think conservation is a good thing.  I don’t think this Village needs to apologize to 
anybody, 25 percent of the Village is in conservancy zoning.  We’ve done more than our fair 
share to ensure that there’s enough conservancy zoning and more than enough to relate to the 
total ratio.  But I think in this case we’re really going back against the plan that we’ve actually 
spent money on and people who live there have spent money on.  We’re assessed them and here 
we are.  And I think before we vacate these portions of right-of-way I think we should take a vote 
on -- I’d recommend voting on the Comp. Plan amendment first and then vote on the vacation of 
the properties. 

 
As I’ve said TNC has already bought this land.  I know that the Community Development 
Director was an avid supporter of this and I appreciate that.  She’s doesn’t go t these things with 
her eyes closed.  But I think it’s a significant thing we need to do.  And if this thing proceeds 
which I’m not going to fight it if it proceeds, but I really recommend anytime somebody who is 
going to come in and amend the Comp. Plan that we require that the staff tell us what we’ve 
invested in these properties before we change it and modify it so the public knows that we’re 
going to be walking away from some kind of public investment, or in this case we shouldn’t be 
making a public investment if it’s a piece of Conservancy land.  So it cuts both ways. 

 
And I think in this case here it’s a lot.  Probably when the first thing came in we probably should 
have before they bought it brought the question up at that time and we didn’t.  But for all the 
good will that we’ve shared with TNC and the goal to develop it I really think that -- my hope 
would have been that money would have been spent in acquisition areas rather than outside the 
acquisition areas.  So that’s my concerns on this.  If there’s any questions I’d be glad to answer 
them.  I think that all the assessments are paid which means all the investments are done.   

 
And when these things are done -- one gentleman came up and spoke about he can’t get his road 
plowed.  A lot of these places we’re limited on what we can do for ditching because it’s going to 
affect the wetlands.  So in Chiwaukee Prairie and Carol Beach there’s a lot of compromised areas 
because it’s conservancy.  So everybody has to live with what’s there.  And I just think that kind 
of should fit both sides of the issue and not just one side. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Mike would this help if we put this back on staff and let them vet this thing out a little bit better 
and bring it back to us? 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I mean it could.  They already bought the property, and I think they bought it on commitments 
made by staff that this was a good deal.  So I think that TNC is acquiring a piece of property that 
a [inaudible] amount of money has been spent on by both the public sector and private property 
owners that’s gone by the wayside.  That consideration that was adopted in the plan to begin with 
has now gone by the wayside when we adopt this Comp. Plan amendment.  I think the horses are 
out of the barn.  And I think its TNC’s job to acquire as much land that they think is important for 
conservancy, but it’s also important I think that the Village protect the public in being fair and 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
19 

square about the plans that are adopted.  Sometimes we might be stuck with a plan that we might 
not be completely happy with, but it was a plan that everybody adopted and signed onto. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

What do you think will be the recommendation for a fix here?  What do you want to do? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I myself I’m going to vote against the Comp. Plan amendment just for that reason.  And I’m not 
expecting everybody else to.  But I think the one fix that we can forward with is that before we 
make any more Comprehensive Plan changed that I think the staff needs to bring to the Board 
what does this mean as far as what actions have been taken and what expenses have been made 
by the public or have been levied upon the public by the Village before we can make changes like 
this.  Right now there’s a lot of people that have got great ideas to build this here, build that there, 
fill that well in and do this.  Like I say it’s going on both sides.  And I think that going forward 
that’s something that needs to be looked at.  And I would apply that to any other area in Carol 
Beach or the Chiwaukee Prairie. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I wish we would have had this at the Plan Commission what you just said tonight.  Peg, do we 
have any figures on investments that the Village has made in this area. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

I don’t know.  I have no idea what those investments are. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Trustee Pollocoff, so what you’re saying is you’re saying it’s sort of a buyer beware sort of deal?  
I’m not sure that The Nature Conservancy was aware of any assessments on this.  I’m not sure.  
Because many times these properties are purchased prior to that kind of research being done. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I’m assuming given the time that the people who we assessed for sewer and water paid for those 
assessments, paid for it with interest, and in some cases those property owners were bringing 
development proposals to the Plan Commission, the Village and we were considering them.  And 
I think as I remember there were the local groups as TNC were opposing those developments for 
the very reasons that they’re saying that they’re buying it.  So the guy who is making the proposal 
to get it developed he’s sandwiched.  He’s got the conservancy group on one side saying he 
shouldn’t develop it, don’t let him develop it.  And the other side is the Village assessing him for 
improvements that we made in reliance on the plan.  I think that ends up being the core of the 
issue. 

 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
20 

Michael Serpe: 
 

We don’t know how many people are still interested in developing here do we? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Well, I’m assuming if The Nature Conservancy bought it, they bought it, and the people based on 
what they’ve seen on previous proposals they’re not going to be able to develop it. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

All that land is gone now, is that correct? 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

No, there’s still areas in red along Sheridan Road and 116th Street where Buoy Storage is, the 
[inaudible] is there, there’s vacant property to the north of that on the east side of Sheridan Road.  
There is land further south that has existing development that could be redeveloped for 
commercial further at the south -- I’m sorry, at the northeast corner of 128th Street and Sheridan 
Road.  That is still owned by private properties.  Everything on the west side of Sheridan Road is 
still owned by private properties.  The issue you have on Sheridan Road is on the west side you 
have that small frontage, and then everything behind there is wetlands so it’s going to be very 
hard to redevelop that area, built for commercial just due to the lack of depth.  But that is not 
owned by The Nature Conservancy.  It’s still privately held. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

And that’s another perfect example.  The utilities were put in there meant to service that land to 
the east.  We’re not going to allow anybody to build in the wetlands, but that service is still going 
to have to go the east when it develops to the west or under it.  And if for some reason they 
decided, well, this should be acquired, too, you have the same issue.  Only in this case the people 
that were assessed are right along the road.  At least they have access to what they had to pay 
assessment for. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Would it be -- I’d like to know the figures that we have out there that we’ve invested in and still 
what’s out there. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

All the assessments have been paid.  So if that’s all paid up I guess we’d have to find out what the 
initial investment was from the Village to put in those improvements, what was oversized that 
was paid for by the utility.  And we’d have to come up with some number as to what the lost 
revenue is for those utility connections based on some service number.  We don’t have an 
approved land use plan -- a neighborhood plan for this -- 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
21 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I’m not against the conservancy effort.  But I think what Mike brought up tonight makes a lot of 
sense. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Correct, that’s what we’d have to do.  We’d have to find out what the initial investment was, what 
was paid for, what was charged for oversizing that wasn’t paid for by the assessments, and then 
come up with a number to see what future connection fee revenues are being lost. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Could you have this ready for us in the next couple meetings? 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

I don’t have the expertise to do that, but our finance department would have to look into that, and 
we’d have to come up with some estimate as to how many units could be serviced for this area.  
We’d have to probably work with our engineering department.  I don’t know how long it would 
take them to do that, probably a few weeks.  I don’t know what their schedules are.   

 
I just want to let you know that everything they’re proposing to do in the restoration plan meets 
all of our ordinances with the exception of the wooded area that is currently zoned C-2 which was 
property owned by Mark Bourque which is right in this area up here.  This was an area right up 
here that’s zoned C-2.  By grading the agricultural lands, taking and redoing their drain tiles and 
things like that that’s all allowed in all the rest of the districts that are existing out there.  So the 
C-2 area is the only area that they couldn’t remove any trees or do any grading with that.   

 
The rest of the site as it’s currently zoned allows for what they’re proposing to be done based on 
current regulations.  That’s why stipulated conservancy permits and erosion control permits have 
been issued for those portions of it.  The erosion control and the stipulated conservancy allows for 
work to be done in all the areas except that area that is zoned C-2 until and unless they get 
approval from the Plan Commission.  So that’s why those permits have already been issued 
because the only area in question that they can’t do what they’re looking to do based on current 
zoning is that C-2 area. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

So, Peg, did the Plan Commission approve a conceptual plan for Mr. Bourque? 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

No. 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
22 

Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Okay, so he just -- 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

You mean back in like the early 2000 when -- 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I’m not sure -- I remember he brought it in but I don’t remember in. 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

That never got -- it either got tabled or it got denied.  It was never approved. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Okay. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I’d like to recommend that we table this and give staff and finance, and I’d like to have Mike 
involved in those meetings as well because he’s got the most background of all of this.  I think 
tabling would be in order. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Do you think you’re interested in both sewer and water or was the water not oversized, or is water 
something you want them to look into as well? 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I believe the water was oversized. 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Water was oversized as well? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I think it’s [inaudible] as well. 
 
 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
23 

Peggy Herrick: 
 

We can certainly look into that.  I can talk to the engineering department and finance and see if 
we can’t get some numbers pulled together.  If we can by our next meeting I don’t know.  Nathan 
is out of the office until next week Monday.  I’ll see what we can pull together. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I know we’ve got the design and in the files we had the bid packet.  And we got the special 
assessment. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

That’s the easy part.  It’s figuring out the other part of -- 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

When you do the special assessment you’re reducing the assessment down to what an eight inch 
or just a residential line is.  So then at that point you know what the Village would be carrying as 
far as the overage. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

Just for the overage.  But are you looking for also lost revenue in someone connecting to that?  So 
that is what going probably take some time to get to that number. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Mike is correct this goes back over 30 years ago we started with -- when both you and I started 
with the Village.  And it was quite a contentious time between the property owners down there 
and conservancy and everybody else.  And a plan was adopted, and the Village has always abided 
by that as far as extending the utilities or services into these areas.  And as Mike said there was a 
cost to this.  I know people have bought outside the area, and I don’t blame them for that.  It’s 
probably what should have been done all along but it wasn’t the plan.  And the Village is on the 
hook for some of these, or the taxpayers I should say or the utilities. 

 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I just think to be transparent in our decision making we need to recognize what that is. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I’d move to table this. 
 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
24 

Dave Klimisch: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

What do we need to table here? 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

You want all three tabled or just the plan? 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

I’d recommend tabling all three.  I think the way the agenda is reading we really should act on the 
Comp. Plan amendment first because that would dictate whether or not you want to [inaudible] 
public streets.  I would just -- I’d recommend tabling all three. 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

The area of the public streets being vacated pursuant to the Chiwaukee plan indicated that those 
streets should be vacated and most of that land is wetland so that it’s not contrary to the plans, but 
it could be tabled until all the information is received. 

 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Peggy, do we have to table this to a specific meeting date? 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

I don’t believe so, it’s not a public hearing unless you want to to let the audience people know 
when they could come back.  I don’t know if this could be pulled together by the fourth because 
we have to get everything – 
 

Michael Serpe: 
 

Bring it forward when you’re comfortable to give us -- 
 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

I would say by the second meeting of the Board.  I think the fourth would be too soon to get this 
pulled together. 

 
Tom Shircel: 
 

I agree. 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
25 

 
Peggy Herrick: 
 

To get everything pulled together by next week Tuesday. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Is there a chance to ask a question of somebody that manages the purchase of these lots?  Can I 
ask a question?  In the notion that 56 lots still need to be acquired as of the 2015 date and you 
guys purchased approximately 17 of them -- 

 
[Inaudible] 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

I’m just trying to get a sense of is that because those are the only ones that became available since 
that time, or have there been others?  The crux of this is I’m getting that if there’s competition 
from other people that may want to buy outside of this and for other particular purposes for 
potential future development that we need to be aware of.  Or if you guys are the only buyers that 
any time these lots become available. 

 
Stephanie Judge: 
 

So in speaking about the east side all of that is pretty much wetland.  And we have made a 
[inaudible] effort to try to reach out to any of those given landowners to make them offers.  So for 
one reason or another they’ve decided not to sell those lands.  CPPS or Chiwaukee Prairie 
Preservation Fund is now making an effort to try to buy those really because we turned our 
attention t the west.  We would love to buy the remaining lots so that the site could just be 
cleaned up so that there’s not odd rights-of-way.  So the landscape just makes sense, so the streets 
are where the streets should be and the conservancy areas are where the conservancy areas should 
be.  So it’s just the fact that we can only buy from willing sellers.  And so we make our best 
efforts.  And we just have to take opportunities when they arrive.  Can I just address a little bit of 
the conversation that you’ve just had?  Can I take one or two words? 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Sure. 
 

Stephanie Judge: 
 

Just from the Conservancy’s standpoint the Village has always been a fantastic partner.  I think 
you’ve primarily been referring to the 1985 Land Use Plan for Chiwaukee Prairie.  It was a really 
fantastic landmark land use plan for its time, unique for how well researched it was.  It was really 
so many partners came to the table and did, in fact, make compromises.  I would just say that that 
plan was done in 1985, and it was based off of the best information at the time.  But really the 
information on the table changed, and it was the Southeast Wisconsin Regional Planning 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
26 

Commission with USGS modeling that really showed us the importance of the groundwater 
coming from the west to protect the resources to the east. 

 
And so we and you and everyone else involved in the prairie really hand this long-term 
investment there.  And so it was in 2004 that that modeling was done that that report came out.  
And so that’s what caught our attention.  So it took time, and then over time the developers really 
I think decided that they were struggling to develop the property because of a variety of reasons.  
And so that’s when they opted to sell.  Again, we can only buy from willing sellers.  So I think 
that’s primarily what I have to say.   

 
I would love it if you could pass the zoning aspect of the zoning item.  The reason being we are 
beginning our restoration.  And as Peggy indicated the one thing that we cannot do with the 
current zoning is to clear trees on that particular footprint.  And that actual footprint the only real 
vegetation there are invasive black locust trees and invasive honeysuckle.  And it would just be 
particularly efficient to our process to be able to clear those trees when we’re clearing the rest of 
the property.  So to just move along and keep things I think looking as clean as possible.  That 
said I do respect that you want to know numbers for investments in infrastructure.  It makes 
sense.  I think that mostly goes towards the Comprehensive Plan.  So does anyone else have any 
questions? 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Thank you. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

What is your question going to pertain to? 
 
Pam Holy: 
 

It’s not a question.  The only point was [inaudible]. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

You’re going to have to come forward here. 
 
Pam Holy: 
 

Thanks. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

I mean we had the public hearing on this and we’re past that.  I’m going to allow you to speak 
briefly. 

 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
27 

Pam Holy: 
 

Okay, very brief, I promise.  It’s just that of the properties, the parcels that we have bought or 
purchased there was no competition.  There was no one else interested in these properties.  And, 
frankly, the people who contact us they want their cash out. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We understand that.  It’s always a willing seller on that? 
 
Pam Holy: 
 

Yeah, but we’ve not had a single competitive. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Thank you for that.  And I do with the majority being wetlands.  But, again, we heard from one 
gentleman who has an associated or adjacent property who has issues with his drive area.  And 
it’s hard to address that because of the surrounding areas.  So, again, it’s how the Village choose 
to approach this in the best interest.  Still trying to keep in mind what has been invested over 
decades from a monetary standpoint and an infrastructure standpoint.  So thank you. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

So my motion is to table C, D and E. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

There a second. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Yeah, I think you seconded.  But I want to make sure we get all three items. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

And we’ll get to it as quickly as possible here.  The motion has been to table C, D and E.  Is there 
a second?  Dave.  Motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 

 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
28 

John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries.  We understand where everybody is coming from.  We’re just trying to 
clean up all the loose ends here.  I’m sorry it’s not citizens’ comments. 

 
[Inaudible] 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

After the meeting you’re welcome to talk up to us.  You live in a very unique area.  We 
understand that. 

 
[Inaudible] 
 

SERPE MOVED TO TABLE NEW BUSINESS ITEMS 8C, 8D & 8E; SECONDED BY 
KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0.  
 
 F. Consider and approve the Offer to Purchase of property known as 10214 39th 

Avenue, Pleasant Prairie. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Thank you, Mr. President, and Board members.  Before you is a residential offer to purchase.  It’s 
been the current owner, Prairie Place, LLC which is Land & Lakes Development Company, 
Marty Hanley the President, and the Village is looking to purchase this property.  It’s improved 
with a 1,740 square foot single family ranch house that was constructed in 1956.  It’s located at 
10214 39th Avenue which is the first house on the west side of 39th Avenue north of the 104th 
Street roundabout, Parcel Number 92-4-122-234-0380.  It contains 1.33 acres.  It’s located in the 
Village Green Center.  The Village has the property assessed at $252,000.  According to the 
agreement there’s a due diligence period for the Village of 45 days.  Closing date is 60 days after 
the due diligence period.  And the negotiated recommended purchase price for the Board to 
consider tonight is $230,000.  With that I’ll give it to the Village Board.  If you have any 
questions I’ll be glad to answer them. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

This is all a part of the Village Green? 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

It’s in the Village Green Center project area.  And I think it would beneficial when the 
opportunity arises like it has here for the Village to purchase these single family properties as 
they become available. 

 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
29 

Michael Serpe: 
 

And this house had a significant fire a number of years ago? 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

No, no it did not.  I think that was one or two houses north of this.  This is the first house north of 
the roundabout on the west side of 39th Avenue. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I’d move approval of the purchase price of $230,000. 
 
Dave Klimisch: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE OFFER TO PURCHASE OF PROPERTY KNOWN 
AS 10214 39TH AVENUE, PLEASANT PRAIRIE FOR A PURCHASE PRICE OF $230,000; 
SECONDED BY KLIMISCH; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Just a comment, Tom touched on it.  The Village Green meeting was very good, a good turnout.  
There were 150 people, that room was packed.  A lot of interest, a lot of different ideas.  And 
that’s going to be good because it’s going to give us a unique but a very purposeful downtown -- 

 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Agreed. 
 
 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
30 

John Steinbrink: 
 

-- or Village Center [inaudible] downtown. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Yes, everyone was very interested.  I think there’s some skepticism as well because this is a new 
process that the Village has never really encountered before where the citizens take ownership of 
this plan and they devise the plan.  Usually it’s the other way around, the Village devises the plan 
so there’s some skepticism.  But I think as we go through this process I think it will be a learning 
process for everyone.  I think it will be hopefully a success and come up with a good plan.  And I 
think we have some very talented, I know we have some very talented residents here and they’ll 
produce a great plan. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

As with our commissions we look for a broad spectrum of people to serve on there, use their 
expertise, and this is going to be a really great opportunity to use that expertise of all our citizens 
who want to become involved. 
 

Tom Shircel: 
 

Right.  I think having 155 people present and getting over half of those to sign up for 
subcommittees that’s a great sign.  That’s just awesome. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Further Village Board comments? 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Move to adjourn. 
 
Mike Pollocoff: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion and a second for adjournment.  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 



Village Board Minutes 
January 21, 2019 
 

 
31 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  Motion carries. 
 
SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY POLLOCOFF; 

MOTION CARRIED 5-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:10 P.M. 



CODE1812-001 
CODE1812-002 

VAC1901-001 

 

Consider approval of the tabled Resolution #19-01 to support the vacation of a portion of the Schmidt’s 

First Addition to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision rights-of-way generally located north of 128th Street and east 

of Sheridan Road. 

Recommendation:  On January 14, 2019 the Plan Commission approve Resolution #19-03 and 

recommended that the Village Board also adopt Resolution #19-01 to support the vacation of a 

portion of the Schmidt’s First Addition to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision rights-of-way as presented in 

the February 4, 2019 Village Staff Report. 

 

Consider approval of the tabled Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Ord. #19-02) for the request of 

Stephanie Judge, agent on behalf of The Nature Conservancy, owners of the properties generally located 

between 116th and 128th Streets east of Sheridan Road to amend Village 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9 to 

change the Low-Medium Density Residential, Commercial and Mixed Use Lands (CT) with an Urban 

Reserve Area land use designations to the Park, Recreational and Other Open Space Lands designation.  

The Isolated Natural Resource Area and the wetland land use designations will remain unchanged.  In 

addition, Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 2035 Comprehensive Plan is proposed 

to be updated to reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9. 

Recommendation:  On January 14, 2019 the Plan Commission approve Resolution #19-04 and 

recommended that the Village Board approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Ord. #19-

02) as presented in the February 4, 2019 Village Staff Report. 

 

Consider approval of the tabled Zoning Map Amendment (Ord. #19-03) for the request of Stephanie 

Judge, agent, on behalf of The Nature Conservancy, owners of the properties generally located between 

116th and 128th Streets east of Sheridan Road to be rezoned from the A-2, General Agricultural District 

and C-2, Upland Resource Conservancy District to the C-3, Natural and Scientific Area Resource 

Conservancy District.  The lands currently zoned C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District would 

remain unchanged. 

Recommendation:  On January 14, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 

recommended that the Village Board approve the Zoning Map Amendment (Ord. #19-03) as 

presented in the February 4, 2019 Village Staff Report. 

 

 

At the January 21, 2018 Village Board meeting additional information was requested related to the costs 

the Village incurred for installing municipal sewer and water in Sheridan Road and the lost opportunity 

costs of future sewer and water usage.   See attached memo dated January 31, 2019 for additional 

information. 

 

 



2 

 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF FEBRUARY 4, 2019 

Consider Resolution #19-01 to support the vacation of a portion of the Schmidt’s First Addition to 

Pleasant Prairie Subdivision rights-of-way generally located north of 128th Street and east of Sheridan 

Road. 

Consider approval of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Ord. #19-02) for the request of Stephanie 

Judge, agent on behalf of The Nature Conservancy, owners of the properties generally located between 

116th and 128th Streets east of Sheridan Road to amend Village 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9 to change the 

Low-Medium Density Residential, Commercial and Mixed Use Lands (CT) with an Urban Reserve Area land 

use designations to the Park, Recreational and Other Open Space Lands designation.  The Isolated Natural 

Resource Area and the wetland land use designations will remain unchanged.  In addition, Appendix 10-3 

of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 2035 Comprehensive Plan is proposed to be updated to reflect 

the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9. 

Consider approval of a Zoning Map Amendment (Ord. #19-03) for the request of Stephanie Judge, 

agent, on behalf of The Nature Conservancy, owners of the properties generally located between 116th and 

128th Streets east of Sheridan Road to be rezoned from the A-2, General Agricultural District and C-2, 

Upland Resource Conservancy District to the C-3, Natural and Scientific Area Resource Conservancy 

District.  The lands currently zoned C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District would remain unchanged. 

 

THESE ITEMS ARE RELATED AND WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE SAME TIME; HOWEVER, 

SEPARATE ACTIONS ARE REQUIRED 

 

The Nature Conservancy (TNC) has purchased 150 acres of land generally located between 116th and 128th 

Streets, east of Sheridan Road for a wetland restoration project to be known as Chiwaukee West 

Restoration Plan.  The land area is west of the Chiwaukee Prairie State Natural Area (west of the railroad 

tracks). 

This area has been ditched, drained and is degraded agricultural land that the TNC intends to restore the 

natural hydrology and vegetation to host a mix of dry prairie, wetland swales and oak savannas.   The 

TNC plans to work with the Village in the future to plan public access opportunities for this site, including 

walking trails.  The site will feature a mix of grassy habitats intermixed with shallow wetlands, providing 

additional habitat for shorebirds including greater yellow legs, sandpipers, plovers, dowagers and godwits.  

Blanding’s turtles have already been documented successfully nesting in the site’s sandy agricultural 

fields, but restoration will enhance opportunities and enhance viability.   

Beyond providing new wildlife habitat, improving degraded habitat and offering the public opportunities for 

nature-based outdoor recreation on this site, the planned restoration will also stop the excess flow of 

storm water runoff from this site through its ditch and drain tile network.  By restoring the site’s hydrology 

to hold back storm water, the project will decrease downstream flooding and increase infiltration of clean 

groundwater follow to benefit drinking water supplies and feed springs that upwell to the adjoining State 

Natural Area. 

The site currently hosts about 67 acres of undesirable woody brush and trees interspersed with oak and 

hickory trees, 74.9 acres or agricultural fields, and approximately 5.8 acres emergent low-prairie, and a 

few acres of remnant native vegetation along the railroad right-of-way on the east side of the site.  These 

areas are more particularly described below (as presented in the Restoration Plan): 

Existing woody zones (67 acres): The property’s woody zones are primarily in areas of ditched and 

degraded wetland, with some areas of woody upland along Sheridan Road. The largest block of wooded 

upland occurs immediately south of the adjoining Buoy Storage property and consists almost entirely of 

invasive black locust trees. The balance of the site’s degraded woodlands primarily grow on wetter soils 

and include a mix of undesirable cottonwood, aspen, box elder, green ash, silver maple, Norway maple, 

willow, black cherry, pine, spruce and fir trees. All wooded areas include an understory mix of invasive, 



3 

 

non-native shrubs like European buckthorn, Japanese honeysuckle, multi-flora rose, and autumn olive, as 

well as a significant population of invasive Oriental bittersweet vines. Some native shrubs such as red 

dogwood, gray dogwood and hazelnut are found at woodland edges.  

A variety of native oak species (bur oak, swamp white oak, black oak, etc.) as well as shagbark hickory 

are scattered in the property’s woodlands, but these classic savanna trees have been severely suppressed 

by the surrounding invasive growth. Similarly, many ground surfaces in the woodland areas are stripped 

of native grasses and flowers that were present historically before invasive trees and shrubs shaded them 

out and invasive weeds like garlic mustard outcompeted for the limited remaining light, water and space. 

One 3-acre woodland area near the site’s south border includes a small ravine and does have a diverse 

array of ground vegetation remaining, including classic woodland species such as large-flowered trillium, 

jack-in-the-pulpit, large-flowered bellwort, wild leeks and mayapples.  However, even this site has been 

invaded by garlic mustard, dame’s rocket, burdock and other problem species.  

Agricultural fields (74.9 acres): Judging by the age of some drain tiles located on the property, the 

site’s agriculture fields have likely been in tillable production for at least a century.  A recent investigation 

has found many eras of drain tile installed, with some of the oldest dating to the early 1900’s. Subsequent 

tile installations date back to the 1930’s, 40’s and 50’s.  The site’s ditch network was created in the 

1970’s, and the most recent drain tile was installed in the 1980’s. Despite these efforts to dewater the 

property, the frequently wet soils tend to offer low crop yields. In 2018, the site was so wet that the farm 

tenant was unable to plant soybeans as planned in the spring, and similarly unable to plant a cover crop of 

winter wheat ahead of frost in the fall.  The property was sprayed with glyphosate herbicide in early July 

to combat weeds during this fallow year.   

Emergent low-prairie and border with railroad right-of-way: A diverse array of residual native 

vegetation still exists in a few pockets on this property. A 5.8-acre emergent low prairie in the central part 

of the site hosts the most native species, with over 70 documented in 2004 when surveyed by 

Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC).  Unfortunately, this pocket still suffers 

from invasion by at least 11 exotic plant species including reed canary grass, phragmites, purple 

loosestrife, Canada thistle and buckthorn.   The narrow, untilled acreage along the railroad right-of-way 

similarly hosts a variety of native species, but suffers from invasive species like reed canary grass, 

burdock, Canada thistle and garlic mustard. 

Restoration Plan Phases:  TNC envisions executing this restoration in four (4) primary phases: Phase 1 

includes ongoing planning, permitting and neighbor notifications. Phase 2 covers site preparation 

between now and mid-2019 including removal of all undesirable woody trees, shrubs and vines this 

coming winter. (Stipulated Conservancy Permit and Erosion Control Permits have already been applied for 

and issued by the Village for these phases).  Phase 3 covers restoration of the site’s hydrology and 

replanting of native vegetation in late summer/early fall 2019. Phase 4 covers intensive monitoring and 

follow-up for at least three years thereafter to assure restoration success before transitioning to a long-

term maintenance plan.  (See the Restoration Plan for more specific details of each phase). 

Vacation of rights-of-way in the Schmidt’s First Addition to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision 

(Resolution #19-02):  Since TNC now owns all of the lots involved and it's been more than 40 years 

since the plat was recorded, and the public streets were not built and have not been used by anyone, a 

court procedure to vacate the portion of the plat is recommended by the Village.  Wisconsin Statutes 

Section 236.40 says that the owner of the subdivision, or any lot in the subdivision, may apply to the 

Circuit Court for vacation or alteration of all or any part of the recorded plat. The owner must give notice 

at least three (3) weeks before the application, by posting, publication, service on the Village, and mailing 

a copy to the owners of record of all lots in the subdivision or the part of the subdivision to be vacated or 

altered. 

Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.42 provides that after requiring proof that all of the necessary notices 

have been given, and after hearing all interested parties, the Court "may in its discretion" grant an order 

vacating or altering a part of the plat.  This does not include vacating or altering areas dedicated to public 

use (such as streets), which are subject to Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.43. Wisconsin Statutes. 

Section 236.43 says the Court "may" vacate part of a subdivision dedicated and accepted by the public for 



4 

 

public use if the plat was recorded more than 40 years prior to the filing of the application, the areas to be 

vacated were not improved as streets, roads or other public ways, the areas to be vacated are not 

necessary to reach other platted property, and all of the owners of the land in the plat or part thereof 

being vacated, and the Village, have joined in the application for vacation. 

Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.43(4) provides that if the plat area being vacated includes a street, road, 

alley or public walkway, it can be vacated by the Court if there is a resolution passed by the Village Board 

approving and requesting such vacation and the owners of all frontage of the lots and lands abutting the 

area sought to be vacated request in writing that such action be taken.   

The TNC has decided to follow the court procedures and will be responsible for petitioning the Court to 

vacate the portion of the plat.  The Village can assist in the vacation of the area which includes a street, 

road, alley or public walkway by passing a resolution requesting the vacation of the area.  Therefore, since 

the properties meet these requirements and furthermore that this area is zoned C-1, Lowland Resource 

Conservancy District and has been determined to be wetlands, the Plan Commission adopted Resolution 

#19-04 which supports the vacation and further recommends that the Village Board adopt a resolution 

approving and requesting said vacation.  Note:  Only portions of the right-of-way that do not abut any 

other lands not owned by the TNC can be vacated.  In addition, vacating a portion of the plat does not 

vacate and existing utility easements that may have been dedicated will need to be vacated by the 

petitioner with the specific utility.    

Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Ord. #19-02): As a result of the forgoing, the Comprehensive 

Land Use Plan Map 9.9 is proposed to be amended to change the Low-Medium Density Residential, 

Commercial and Mixed Use Lands (CT) with an Urban Reserve Area land use designations on the 

properties to the Park, Recreational and Other Open Space lands.  The Isolated Natural Resource Area and 

the wetland land use designations on the properties will remain unchanged.  In addition, Appendix 10-3 of 

the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 2035 Comprehensive Plan is proposed to be updated to reflect 

the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9.  [Note:  As stated in the current Village 

Comprehensive Plan adopted in 2009, all amendments to the Land Use Plan Map supersede any land uses 

noted on any neighborhood plan or other component of the Village Comprehensive Plan.] 

Zoning Map Amendment (Ord. #19-03): The Land Use Map and the Zoning Map are required to be 

consistent, therefore; the petitioner is requesting to rezone the properties from the A-2, General 

Agricultural District and C-2, Upland Resource Conservancy District to the C-3, Natural and Scientific Area 

Resource Conservancy District.  The lands zoned C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District will remain 

unchanged. 

Update on TNC land in the Chiwaukee Prairie (south of 116th Street and east the railway):  TNC 

continues to acquire land as identified in The Carol Beach Chiwaukee Prairie Land Use Management Plan 

for preservation when there is a willing seller.  As of 2015 when TNC transferred their own property to the 

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, 56 lots still needed to be acquired.  Since that time, the 

Chiwaukee Prairie Preservation Fund (CPPF), an all-volunteer, charitable organization dedicated to 

acquiring, managing and preserving Chiwaukee Prairie, especially in this area, has acquired 14 additional 

lots within this zone, and 3 more lots further north.  The lots that remain in private ownership are shown 

on the attached map.  The platted roads east of the railroad are intended to be vacated when all of the 

adjacent land is in common ownership.  116th St., Lakeshore Dr., 1st Ct., parts of 121st St. and 122nd St. 

to 2nd Ave. and part of 2nd Ave. from 121st St. to 122nd St. are driveable. The rest of the platted roads are 

mostly grown prairie; a few have heavily rutted gravel. 

Future Plans for the Restoration Area:  TNC's restoration project will transform a degraded vacant site 

into an attractive natural area with excellent wildlife habitat that enhances groundwater recharge by 

stemming the otherwise ongoing discharge of water from the property. Increased groundwater recharge 

means less flooding downstream and cleaner drinking water. The project will also provide new 

opportunities for public outdoor recreation including hiking, birdwatching and cross-country skiing. To 

accommodate these activities and engage and educate the public, TNC is installing informational signage 

at three trailheads along the site's perimeter. 



5 

 

In addition to these benefits, the TNC envisions that with community support, continued funding from 

those who have provided financial support and with participation from the other conservation partners at 

Chiwaukee, work will be undertaken to create mowed trails that will meander through prairies and past 

restored wetlands. Educational interpretive signs detailing a variety of subjects including the site's natural 

and cultural history, plants and animals may be staged along trail routes. 

Beyond these initial public amenities, TNC hopes that funding and partner support may be secured to 

provide additional nature-based outdoor educational opportunities at the site and they are actively 

exploring the feasibility of potential features like an ADA-accessible bird-watching platform and an outdoor 

classroom area that could provide a destination for area school groups. With additional funding, they could 

offer opportunities for school bus parking, a picnic area, bathrooms and even special, unique amenities 

like a natural playground, children's garden or nature center. 

Hunting Ordinances and Special Assessment:  At the public hearing the Plan Commission inquired 

about the Village’s hunting laws.  Attached is the current Village ordinance (Section 250-3 of the Village 

Municipal Code adopted in 2015) related to discharge of firearms restrictions including hunting in the 

Village.  In addition, the Plan Commission inquired about any outstanding sewer/water assessments on 

the properties.  According to the Village Finance Department records there are no outstanding 

assessments on the properties owned by TNC or any other properties abutting Sheridan Road between 

116th and 128th Streets. 

At the January 21, 2018 Village Board meeting additional information was requested related to the costs 

the Village incurred for installing municipal sewer and water in Sheridan Road and the lost opportunity 

costs of future sewer and water usage.   See attached memo dated January 31, 2019 for additional 

information. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

On January 14, 2019 the Plan Commission approve Resolution #19-03 and recommended that the Village 

Board also adopt a Resolution #19-01 to support the vacation of a portion of the Schmidt’s First 

Addition to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision rights-of-way as presented. 

On January 14, 2019 the Plan Commission approve Resolution #19-04 and recommended that the Village 

Board approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendment (Ord. #19-02) as presented. 

On January 14, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing and recommended that the Village Board 

approve the Zoning Map Amendment (Ord. #19-03) as presented. 

 



   
 

9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6717 • Fax 262.925.6787 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 

 

Community Development 
 January 31st, 2019 

 

Chiwaukee Prairie West Restoration Area Opportunity Cost  

There are no outstanding Village assessments on the properties in the proposed Chiwaukee West Restoration 

area. All assessments have been paid for the installation of sewer and water mains along Sheridan Road. There 

are twenty-one acres of buildable space for development that could be serviced by the existing utilities in the 

proposed Chiwaukee West Restoration area, extending from 116th to 120th street adjacent to the east side of 

Sheridan Road. Fourteen and one half acres remain zoned for agricultural use when the sanitary sewer and 

water were approved for installation in 1996 and 2002 respectively. The remaining land in the serviceable 

buildable area remains part of the conservancy district.  

History 
The Village Land Use Plan in effect (SEWRPC 1996) when the Sanitary Sewer was installed designated the 

proposed Chiwaukee West Restoration area for lower-medium density residential1 development. The Village 

Administrator’s address to the Village Board meeting (VoPP 2003) informed the Village Board of the 

limitations of the utility coverage due to the depth of the sewer main to the east of Sheridan Road to about three 

hundred feet when the Village Board approved the sanitary sewer project, unless a lift station were to be 

constructed.  

In 2006 the Village of Pleasant Prairie was approached by several developers for a proposed condominium 

development along the east side of STH 32. The Elkshire 99 unit2 condominium development was proposed to 

the Village of Pleasant Prairie. The Village did not support development with a lift station or private roads 

based upon comments and concerns raised at the hearing which resulted in the item being tabled. The 

development never progressed from the conceptual phase. The engineering comments included within go on to 

state that:  

Due to the topography and existing sewer depths, gravity service appears limited within 

the development area. In general, areas near STH “32” can be serviced by the existing 

15-inch sanitary sewer. Areas farther east are too low to be serviced by the STH “32” 

sewer without a lift station, however, some area can be serviced off of the 116th Street 

sewer with first floor service only…3. 

This development project was abandoned in September 19, 2008 when the owner, and developer, stopped 

pursuing and paying for the Village Staff to work on the proposed project4. 

                                                 
1 SEWRPC Lower-Medium Residential  refers to dwelling units with a livable floor area of 19,000 square feet or more 
2 Notes from the initial meeting with the developer on 2/7/2019 by Jean Werbie, Community Development Director 
3 July 21, 2008 Email from Peggy Herrick to the Elkshire development team with the Village Staff CC’ed 
4 September 19th, 2008 letter to Mr. Ganey from Peggy Herrick 



   
 

9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6717 • Fax 262.925.6787 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 

 

Community Development 
 January 31st, 2019 

 

Infrastructure Cost 
The total, approximate, cost to the Village of Pleasant Prairie to install the larger size utility mains for water and 

sanitary sewer was $211,608.00. It cost the Village of Pleasant Prairie $157,872.00 to install a 12-inch versus an 

8-inch water main. This figure is based on a 2002 report which describe the costs for a 12-inch versus an 8-inch 

water main. It cost the Village of Pleasant Prairie approximately $53,736 to install a 15-inch versus an 8-inch 

sanitary sewer. This figure is based on the calculating out the project using the approximate cost for an 8-inch 

section in the place of the 15-inch sanitary sewer installations.   

Opportunity Cost 
12 homes could be built directly off of Sheridan Road, part of the area shown in red, to today’s R-3 standard on 

the agricultural land if driveway permits were granted by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation. R-3 

zoning would be the likely zoning given the area was planned for low-density residential and R-3 would match 

the R-3 single family on the west side of Sheridan Road. 24 homes could be built if both the land zoned for 

agriculture and conservancy were to be developed to R-3 single family standards with minimal additional 

infrastructure from the Village.  

It is doubtful that the Wisconsin Department of Transportation would approve 24 driveway connections to 

Sheridan road. There has only been the one developer who has shown interest in this property in the in the past 

twenty-four years. There are still three other vacant residential lots along this section of Sheridan Road that do 

not have any prospective development that the Village is aware of.  

 The total acres of proposed Chiwaukee West 

Restoration area represents 26.5% of the 

approximately 565 gross acres of the original 

sanitary sewer designed service area. 

 Not counting the approximate acreage of 

wetlands located within; the proposed 

Chiwaukee West Restoration area represents 

20.3% of the approximately 521 gross acres of 

the original sanitary sewer designed service area. 

 The 20 acres of proposed Chiwaukee West Restoration area, shown in red, is buildable land, without a 

lift station, that represents 4.4% of the approximately 451 acres of potentially buildable and potentially 

serviceable land not including the non-serviceable Chiwaukee prairie land.  

 

$932.04 is an annual average approximate municipal sewer and water fee for a single R-3 comparable home. 

Multiplied by a hypothetical 12 homes brings the approximate annual Village revenue of $11,184.48 for the 

perspective homes that could be built.   

 

 

Original Service Area 100.0%  $ 211,608.00  

Chiwaukee Land 27.0%  $   56,160.76  

Chiwaukee Land 

(Without Wetland & 

With a Lift Station) 20.0%  $   43,041.07  

Readily Buildable 

(Without Lift Station) 4.4%  $     9,374.23  



   
 

9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6717 • Fax 262.925.6787 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 

 

Community Development 
 January 31st, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  



   
 

9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6717 • Fax 262.925.6787 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 

 

Community Development 
 January 31st, 2019 

 

1996 Adopted Land Use Plan 

This Land Use Plan was originally drafted by Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission, 

SWRPC. This plan was presented in December of 1995 in a comprehensive plan for Kenosha County; this plan 

is labeled Community Assistance Planning Report number 212. The Village of Pleasant Prairie would adopt this 

Land Use Plan in 1996. 

 



   
 

9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6717 • Fax 262.925.6787 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 

 

Community Development 
 January 31st, 2019 

 

References 
Staff 2008 Email on Elkshire 

SWRPC, December 1995, Community Assistance Planning Report number 212. 

Village of Pleasant Prairie Village Board Meeting Minutes for February 3, 2003. 

 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #19-01 

RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT THE VACATION OF RIGHTS-OF-WAY WITHIN A 
PORTION OF THE SCHMIDT’S FIRST ADDITION TO PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

SUBDIVISION IN VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN 
 

WHEREAS, the Schmidt’s First Addition to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision is generally 
located north of 128th Street and east of Sheridan Road and was platted in the 1920’s; and 

WHEREAS, The Nature Conservancy (TNC), currently has purchased the following 
lots within the subdivision identified as Tax Parcel Numbers  93-4-123-314-0104 thru 93-4-
123-314-0150; 93-4-123-314-0174 thru 93-4-123-314-0220; 93-4-123-314-0242 thru 93-
4-123-314-0286; and 93-4-123-314-0312 thru 93-4-123-314-0330; and 

WHEREAS, to date no public roadway improvements were constructed within the 
subdivision rights-of-way on the lands adjacent to these properties owned by TNC as part of 
their Chiwaukee West Restoration Plan; and 

WHEREAS, these properties have been designated as wetlands and are zoned C-1, 
Lowland Resource Conservancy District; and 

 WHEREAS, since TNC now owns the aforementioned lots and its been more than 40 
years since the plat was recorded, and the public streets were not built and have not been 
used by anyone, a court procedure to vacate the portion of the plat is being supported by 
the Village as shown in Exhibit 1; and 

 WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.40 provides that the owner of the 
subdivision, or any lot in the subdivision, may apply to the Circuit Court for vacation or 
alteration of all or any part of the recorded plat.  The owner must give notice at least three 
(3) weeks before the application, by posting, publication, service on the Village, and mailing 
a copy to the owners of record of all lots in the subdivision or the part of the subdivision to 
be vacated or altered; and 

 WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.42 provides that after requiring proof 
that all of the necessary notices have been given, and after hearing all interested parties, 
the Court "may in its discretion" grant an order vacating or altering a part of the plat.  This 
does not include vacating or altering areas dedicated to public use (such as streets), which 
are subject to Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.43. Wisconsin Statutes.  Section 236.43 says 
the Court "may" vacate part of a subdivision dedicated and accepted by the public for public 
use if the plat was recorded more than 40 years prior to the filing of the application, the 
areas to be vacated were not improved as streets, roads or other public ways, the areas to 
be vacated are not necessary to reach other platted property, and all of the owners of the 
land in the plat or part thereof being vacated, and the Village, have joined in the application 
for vacation; and 

 WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statutes Section 236.43(4) provides that if the plat area being 
vacated includes a street, road, alley or public walkway, it can be vacated by the Court if 
there is a resolution passed by the Village Board approving and requesting such vacation 
and the owners of all frontage of the lots and lands abutting the area sought to be vacated 
request in writing that such action be taken; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village Plan Commission at its January 14, 2019 meeting adopted 
Plan Commission Resolution #19-03 to support and recommend that the Vilalge Board 
adopt a resolution to support the vacation of portions of the streets within Schmidt’s First 
Addition to Pleasant Prairie as shown on Exhibit 1 and adjacent to the following Tax Parcel 
Numbers:  93-4-123-314-0104 thru 93-4-123-314-0148; 93-4-123-314-0174 thru 93-4-
123-314-0218; 93-4-123-314-0246 thru 93-4-123-314-0286; and 93-4-123-314-0328 thru 
93-4-123-314-0330. 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 236.43(4) of the Wisconsin 
Statutes, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board of Trustees hereby supports and petitions for 
the vacation of a portion of the plat and portion rights-of-way in the Schmidt’s First Addition 
to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision adjacent to the following Tax Parcel Numbers 93-4-123-314-
0104 thru 93-4-123-314-0148; 93-4-123-314-0174 thru 93-4-123-314-0218; 93-4-123-
314-0246 thru 93-4-123-314-0286; and 93-4-123-314-0328 thru 93-4-123-314-0330 as 
shown on Exhibit 1. 

Adopted this 4th day of February 2019. 

       VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 
 
 

______________________________ 
______________________________  John P. Steinbrink 
Jane C. Snell      Village President 
Village Clerk 
 
Posted:  __________________________ 
 
01-support vacation-schmidts 1st add 
 
VAC1901-001 

 



1 inch = 223 feet

DISCLAIMER  This ma p is neither a lega lly recorded  map nor a survey an d is not intended to be used as one.  This draw ing  is a compilation of records, data an d information loca ted in var iou s state, county and mun icip al offices 
and other sources affecting the area shown and  is to be used for refe rence purpose s only.  Kenosha County is not resp onsible for a ny inaccuracie s herein con tained .  If discrep ancies are fo und, please  conta ct Kenosha County.

¨

     

Date Printed: 1/6/2019

KENOSHA COUNTY 
INTERACTIVE MAPPING

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Polygon

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Right-of-way areas to be vacated

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Portion of Schmidt's First Addition to Pleasant Prairie Subdivision to be vacated

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1

pherrick
Typewritten Text
SCHIMIDT'S FIRST ADDITION SUBDIVISION TO PLEASANT PRAIRIE

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text



ORD. # 19-02 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND  
THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WISCONSIN  

2035 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 390 OF THE  

VILLAGE MUNICIPAL CODE 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board of Trustees, Kenosha 
County, Wisconsin, hereby approves the following amendments to the Village 2035 Land 
Use Plan Map 9.9 on the properties generally located generally located between 116th and 
128th Streets east of Sheridan Road, located in U.S. Public Land Survey Section 31, 
Township 1 North, Range 23 East and further identified as Tax Parcel Numbers 93-4-123-
311-0070; 93-4-123-311-0201; 93-4-123-311-0204; 93-4-123-314-0410; 93-4-123-314-
0104 thru 93-4-123-314-0150; 93-4-123-314-0174 thru 93-4-123-314-0220; 93-4-123-
314-0242 thru 93-4-123-314-0286; and 93-4-123-314-0312 thru 93-4-123-314-0330: 

1. To amend the Village 2035 Land Use Plan Map 9.9 to change the Low-Medium 
Density Residential, Commercial and Mixed Use Lands (CT) with an Urban 
Reserve Area land use designations to the Park, Recreational and Other Open 
Space lands on the properties.  The Isolated Natural Resource Area and the 
wetland land use designations on the properties will remain unchanged.  

2. To update Appendix 10-3 of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin, 2035 
Comprehensive Plan to reflect the above noted changes to the 2035 Land Use 
Plan Map 9.9.  

The Village Community Development Director is hereby directed to record these 
Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan on the appropriate pages of said Plan and to 
update Appendix A in Chapter 390 of the Village Municipal Code to include said 
Amendments. 
 

Adopted this 4th day of February 2019. 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 

 
 
  
John P. Steinbrink 
Village President 

  
Jane C. Snell 
Village Clerk 
 
Ayes: ___ Nayes:  ___    Absent: ____ 

 
Posted:    
 

02-Comp Plan Amend- LU amend-TNC Restoration Area      

CODE1812-001 



 

 

 
 

ORD. # 19-03 
 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 420-13 OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Board of Trustees, 

Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that the Official Village Zoning Map is hereby amended 
as follows: 
 
The properties owned by The Nature Conservancy that are generally located between 116th 
and 128th Streets east of Sheridan Road within U.S. Public Land Survey Section 31, 
Township 1 North, Range 23 East of the 4th Principal Meridian, in the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin and further identified as Tax Parcel Numbers 93-4-123-
311-0070; 93-4-123-311-0201; 93-4-123-311-0204; 93-4-123-314-0410; 93-4-123-314-
0104 thru 93-4-123-314-0150; 93-4-123-314-0174 thru 93-4-123-314-0220; 93-4-123-
314-0242 thru 93-4-123-314-0286; and 93-4-123-314-0312 thru 93-4-123-314-0330 are 
hereby rezoned from the A-2, General Agricultural District and C-2, Upland Resource 
Conservancy District to the C-3, Natural and Scientific Area Resource Conservancy District.  
The lands zoned C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District will remain unchanged. 

The Village Zoning Administrator is hereby directed to record these Zoning Map 
Amendments on the appropriate sheet of the Official Village Zoning Map and Appendix B in 
Chapter 420 of the Village Municipal Code shall be updated to include said Amendment. 

Adopted this 4th day of February, 2019. 
 

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
 

_________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 
Village President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jane C. Snell 
Village Clerk 
 
Posted:____________ 
 
03- Chiwaukee West 
CODE1812-002 



A. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(a) 

(b) 

[1] 

[2] 

[3] 

[4] 

Village of Pleasant Prairie, WI
Tuesday, January 15, 2019 

Chapter 250. Peace and Good Order 

§ 250-3. Discharge of firearms restricted. 

[Amended 6-18-2007 by Ord. No. 07-27; 9-8-2009 by Ord. No. 09-50; 9-4-2012 by Ord. No. 
12-31; 10-7-2013 by Ord. No. 13-47; 8-4-2014 by Ord. No. 14-24; 11-2-2015 by Ord. No. 15-
41]

No person shall fire or discharge any firearm, air rifle, spring gun or air gun (commonly 
referred to as "BB guns," "dart guns," "pellet guns" or "paintball guns") of any description 
or fire or discharge any instrument, bow and arrow, crossbow, slingshot or other weapon 
or device capable of discharging a single projectile, including an arrow, except this 
section shall not apply to the following:

Any authorized officer of the law in the performance of his duties.

At a shooting range, shotgun trap or skeet-shooting field, archery range, shooting 
gallery or public or private sportsman's range or club if allowed by the underlying 
zoning district.

Gun salutes as a special function at a parade, program or funeral.

The discharge of blank cartridges in a firearm suitable for their safe use when 
utilized as a starting signal device at athletic events or as a prop in any stage 
performance.

Hunting.

The discharge of a shotgun or use of a bow and arrow for hunting wild animals 
and birds under licenses issued pursuant to Ch. 29, Wis. Stats., including the 
hunting of deer during the State of Wisconsin gun and bow and arrow deer 
seasons.

Anyone engaged in the discharge of a shotgun or use of bow and arrow for 
hunting wild animals and birds under this section shall comply with all state 
statutes and rules promulgated by the Department of Natural Resources 
pertaining to game, including but not limited to the following:

State-designated hunting seasons, times, and zones.

State limits on the number of game obtained per season.

Safety measures.

Acquisition of necessary permits and licenses.



[5] 

(6) 

(a) 

(b) 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Penalties and fines for violations and noncompliance.

Shooting or discharging a bow and arrow or crossbow.

It shall be unlawful for a person to hunt with a bow and arrow or crossbow 
within a distance of 100 yards from a building located on another person's land. 
This restriction shall not apply if the person who owns the land on which the 
building is located allows the hunter to hunt with a bow and arrow or crossbow 
within the specified distance of the building. A building is defined as a 
permanent structure used for human occupancy and includes a manufactured 
home, as defined in § 101.91(2), Wis. Stats.

A person who hunts with a bow and arrow or crossbow shall discharge the 
arrow or bolt from the weapon toward the ground.

Transporting weapons. No person shall possess, use or transport, while on the lands of 
another, within the Village, any firearm, air gun or other weapon or device capable of 
discharging a missile, unless the express permission of the owner or occupant of such 
land has been first obtained.

Hunting and trapping prohibited. Hunting and/or trapping on all Village-owned property is 
prohibited.

It shall be illegal to discharge a firearm utilizing a single projectile in the area of the 
Village bordered by Sheridan Road on the west, Lake Michigan on the east, 128th 
Street (Illinois State Line) to the south and the Village boundary line to the north.



 

Chiwaukee West Restoration Plan 

Phases 1 & 2 

 

 

11/20/18 

 

FULL PROJECT OVERVIEW & GOALS:   The Nature Conservancy  (TNC) currently owns 150 acres of 
ditched, drained and degraded agricultural land in the Village of Pleasant Prairie and intends to restore 
the property’s natural hydrology and vegetation to host a mix of dry prairies, wetland swales and oak 
savannas for the benefit of nature and people. 
 
This property is located along Sheridan Road/Wisconsin Hwy 32 between 116th Street and the Wisconsin‐
Illinois State Line. The Chiwaukee Prairie State Natural Area is adjacent to the east of the property.  
 
TNC hopes to work with the Village to plan public access opportunities for this site, including walking 
trails. Once restoration is complete, the site will offer substantial habitat for monarch butterflies and 
other pollinators through reestablishment of native prairie cover. The site will feature a mix of grassy 
habitats intermixed with shallow wetlands, providing additional habitat for shorebirds including greater 
yellow legs, sandpipers, plovers, dowagers and godwits. Blanding’s turtles have already been 
documented successfully nesting in the site’s sandy agriculture fields, but restoration will enhance 
opportunities and nest viability.  
 
Beyond providing new wildlife habitat, improving degraded habitat and offering the public opportunities 
for nature‐based outdoor recreation on this site, the planned restoration will also stop the excessive 
flow of storm water runoff from this site through its ditch and drain tile network. By restoring this site’s 
hydrology to hold back storm water, the project will decrease downstream flooding and increase 
infiltration of clean ground water flows to benefit drinking water supplies and feed springs that upwell 
to the adjoining State Natural Area. 
 
 

CURRENT SITE CONDITIONS: The site currently hosts about 67 acres of undesirable woody brush and 
trees interspersed with oak and hickory trees, 74.9 acres of agriculture fields, an approximately 5.8‐acre 
emergent low‐prairie, and a few acres of remnant native vegetation along the railroad right‐of‐way 
which borders the site to the east. 
 
Existing woody zones (67 acres): The property’s woody zones are primarily in areas of ditched and 
degraded wetland, with some areas of woody upland along Sheridan Road. The largest block of wooded 
upland occurs immediately south of the adjoining Buoy Storage property and consists almost entirely of 
invasive black locust trees. The balance of the site’s degraded woodlands primarily grow on wetter soils 
and include a mix of undesirable cottonwood, aspen, box elder, green ash, silver maple, Norway maple, 

 



willow, black cherry, pine, spruce and fir trees. All wooded areas include an understory mix of invasive, 
non‐native shrubs like European buckthorn, Japanese honeysuckle, multi‐flora rose, and autumn olive, 
as well as a significant population of invasive Oriental bittersweet vines. Some native shrubs such as red 
dogwood, gray dogwood and hazelnut are found at woodland edges. 
 
A variety of native oak species (bur oak, swamp white oak, black oak, etc.) as well as shagbark hickory 
are scattered in the property’s woodlands, but these classic savanna trees have been severely 
suppressed by the surrounding invasive growth. Similarly, many ground surfaces in the woodland areas 
are denuded of native grasses and flowers that were present historically before invasive trees and 
shrubs shaded them out and invasive weeds like garlic mustard outcompeted for the limited remaining 
light, water and space. One 3‐acre woodland area near the site’s south border includes a small ravine 
and does have a diverse array of ground vegetation remaining, including classic woodland species such 
as large‐flowered trillium, jack‐in‐the‐pulpit, large‐flowered bellwort, wild leeks and mayapples.  
However, even this site has been invaded by garlic mustard, dame’s rocket, burdock and other problem 
species. 
 
Agriculture fields (74.9 acres): Judging by the age of some drain tile located on the property, the site’s 
agriculture fields have likely been in tillable production for at least a century. A recent investigation has 
found many eras of drain tile installed, with some of the oldest dating to the early 1900s. Subsequent 
tile installations date to the 1930s, 40s and 50s. The site’s ditch network was created in the 1970s, and 
the most recent drain tile was installed in the 1980s. Despite these efforts to dewater the property, the 
frequently wet soils tend to offer low crop yields. In 2018, the site was so wet that the farm tenant was 
unable to plant soybeans as planned in the spring, and similarly unable to plant a cover crop of winter 
wheat ahead of frost in the fall. The property was sprayed with glyphosate herbicide in early July to 
combat weeds during this fallow year.  
 
Emergent low‐prairie and border with railroad right‐of‐way: A diverse array of residual native 

vegetation still exists in a few pockets on this property. A 5.8‐acre emergent low prairie in the central 

part of the site hosts the most native species, with over 70 documented in 2004 when surveyed by 

Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC). Unfortunately, this pocket still suffers 

from invasion by at least eleven exotic plant species including reed canary grass, phragmites, purple 

loosestrife, Canada thistle and buckthorn. 

The narrow, untilled acreage along the railroad right‐of‐way similarly hosts a variety of native species, 

but suffers from invasive species like reed canary grass, burdock, Canada thistle and garlic mustard. 

 

PROJECT PHASES, OBJECTIVES & SCOPES OF WORK: TNC envisions executing this restoration in 
four primary phases: Phase 1 includes ongoing planning, permitting and neighbor notifications. Phase 2 

covers site preparation between now and mid‐2019 including removal of all undesirable woody trees, 

shrubs and vines this coming winter. Phase 3 covers restoration of the site’s hydrology and replanting of 

native vegetation in late summer/early fall 2019. Phase 4 covers intensive monitoring and follow‐up for 

at least three years thereafter to assure restoration success before transitioning to a long‐term 

maintenance plan.  

 



 

Phase 1 – Planning, Permitting and Neighbor Notifications  

State and Federal Planning & Permitting ‐ We have begun restoration planning for the site with 

technical assistance from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) Partners for Fish & Wildlife Private 

Lands Program, which recently surveyed the property’s ditches and prepared a preliminary ditch‐fill plan 

that includes filling ditches and recontouring low areas to recreate natural wetland swales. TNC also 

recently contracted Huddleston McBride, a consulting firm specializing in drain tile investigations, to 

map the network of tile on our property so we can refine our plans for filling ditches and disabling drain 

tile to assure no negative off‐site impacts.  

The preliminary wetland restoration plan developed by the FWS will consider the property’s mapped 

drain tile network and be further refined ahead of submission to the Wisconsin Department of Natural 

Resources as well as the Army Corps of Engineers for review and permitting at the State and Federal 

levels. It is of note that the ditch network travels almost exclusively through the site’s nearly 30 acres of 

existing wetlands. All of these wetlands will remain, though their topography will be modified and 

naturalized, with the expectation that at least 33 more acres of wetlands will be created as part of the 

project.  

The site underwent an archeological review in summer 2018 to identify pre‐historic cultural activity. The 

archeological survey resulted in the identification of prehistoric cultural materials in the southern 

portion of the property. These materials include a single lithic flake associated with a previously‐

identified archeological site, and three pieces of lithic debitage that are part of a newly identified site 

just north of the other. Although archeological materials were confirmed to be present, no further 

investigations were recommended because planned restoration activities will provide a level of 

protection to these materials that is currently lacking, and no soil disturbance is planned near the sites. 

We are currently awaiting a Section 106 NHPA (National Historic Preservation Act) clearance to proceed 

with our plans. 

We are additionally working with the FWS to secure a Section 7 ESA (Endangered Species Act) clearance 

and the Wisconsin DNR to assure our project protects all relevant NHI (Natural Heritage Inventory) 

occurrences. 

 

Neighbor Notifications – We have contacted all of our property’s adjoining neighbors and are now 

sending letters to all other property owners within 300’ of our land. To date, we have received a positive 

response from any neighbors with whom we have spoken and we intend to keep all neighbors fully 

informed as we move ahead. We will also be installing signs at three locations (116th Street entrance, 

128th Street trailhead, and the “Big‐I” field along Sheridan Road) explaining the restoration project’s 

objectives and phases before any substantially visible change occurs on our land. 

 

Village of Pleasant Prairie Planning & Permitting ‐ 

Stipulated Conservancy Permit: The Village of Pleasant Prairie requires landowners secure a 

Stipulated Conservancy Permit ahead of embarking on a project such as this and we hope this 



Restoration Plan provides the basis for Village approval through Phase 2 (outlined below). After TNC has 

secured a Wetland General Permit through the DNR and ACOE to complete Phase 3 of the project, we 

would subsequently submit an updated restoration plan or other materials as needed to secure Village 

approval for the balance of the project.  

Erosion Control Permit: Although this project’s Phase 2a, as described below, will occur on 

frozen ground and so no erosion is anticipated, TNC is applying for an Erosion Control Permit covering 

this phase. TNC will submit an updated Erosion Control Permit Application prior to beginning Phase 3 

(ditch filling and recontouring into wetland swales, followed by replanting to native cover) and will work 

with Village Staff on this aspect after our wetland restoration plans are finalized.  

Zoning Map Amendment & Comprehensive Plan Amendments: TNC has sought Zoning Map 

and Comprehensive Plan Amendments at the request of Village Staff. The amendments will update the 

zoning and land use categories across the entire site to reflect the future land uses resulting from TNC’s 

investment in the ecological restoration of this degraded property. 

 

Phase 2a – Site Preparation – Woody Vegetation Removal 

Scope of Work: This project site has undergone over a century of intensive land use that has degraded 

its natural values. The site preparation phase of this project is fundamental. In the woodland areas, site 

preparation will focus on removing all undesirable woody vegetation including trees, shrubs and vines, 

while carefully preserving all oak and hickory trees. See attached Woody Vegetation Removal Map for 

reference.  

Description of Work: TNC will contract with Homer Tree Service of Lockport, IL to clear all trees, brush 

and vines, except oak and hickory trees, from approximately 67 acres of land. This woody removal will 

begin at the northern boundary of our property (see access point 1 on the map) and move south in a 

clockwise sequence, completing work in the vicinity of access point 6 on Sheridan Road, pending Village 

approval to clear in that area zoned C‐2. This work will be conducted by trained operators using heavy 

forestry equipment under sufficiently dry or frozen ground conditions to avoid rutting or soil 

disturbance. Logs and wood chips generated by the tree chipping process will be staged at pre‐

determined locations and removed from the site.  

Stumps 4” in diameter or greater in locations where future grading is planned will be ground out, with 

the stump grindings backfilled into stump holes. If TNC determines that stump grinding activities have 

disturbed sufficient soil that erosion may pose a concern, an oat cover crop will be broadcast wherever 

soil has been exposed to stabilize the site until Phase 3’s wetland restoration begins later in 2019. 

All other areas will have stumps cut flat and nearly flush (max 2” high) with the ground surface. All 

stumps not ground will be immediately treated with an appropriate herbicide according to 

manufacturer specifications, to minimize resprouting. Herbicide shall only be applied by licensed 

applicators. 

All property lines and removal boundaries will be marked ahead of the woody vegetation removal. 

Neighboring landowners will be consulted about whether any clearing can or should take place across 

property boundaries to ensure clean and aesthetic edges. In the event neighboring landowners consent 



to cutting on their lands, their permission will be secured in writing. TNC is working with Village staff to 

coordinate any clearing in the Village‐managed rights‐of‐way along 116th and 128th Streets and in 

undeveloped rights‐of‐way within the “Schmidt’s First Addition” area formerly owned by Kenosha 

County. 

Schedule: Assuming all permits are in place, the woody clearing project should be started by early 

January 2019 and be completed within 2‐4 weeks. 

Please refer to TNC’s Erosion Control Permit application filed with Village Engineering for any further 

information related to this process. 

 

Phase 2b – Invasive Herbaceous Vegetation Management & Woody Resprout Treatment 

Scope of Work: Herbaceous weeds have impacted all areas of this 150‐acre project site. Garlic mustard 

is ubiquitous in woodland areas while reed canary grass thrives in the site’s small emergent low prairie 

and along its railroad right‐of‐way. Numerous other herbaceous invasive weeds are present and need to 

be proactively managed through both chemical and mechanical means. TNC will contract a reputable 

land restoration firm to begin controlling invasive herbaceous weeds and treating woody resprouts 

across the property in the spring of 2019, as early as weather permits. 

Description of Work: The exact description and sequencing of work will vary depending on the specific 
proposal accepted by TNC when hiring a restoration company. However, TNC anticipates several specific 
actions will be taken to begin managing herbaceous weeds and woody resprouts: 
 

1) Use of Prescribed Fire: Although this will be a tool used broadly across the site in its later 
maintenance (Phase 4) stages, the application of prescribed fire may be used initially to begin 
enhancing the 5.8‐acre emergent low prairie as well as the native vegetation persisting along 
the railroad right‐of‐way. Prescribed fire may be implemented in early spring 2019 to clear off 
the duff and dead vegetation accumulated on these sites to prepare them for later, more 
effective targeted herbicide treatments of invasive plants. Any prescribed burns will be 
discussed in advance with the Village Fire and Rescue Department, and TNC or its contractor will 
apply for an applicable Burn Permit prior to implementing prescribed fire. 
 

2) Targeted Herbicide Treatments of Invasive Herbaceous Plants & Woody Vegetation Resprouts: 
TNC will contract a land restoration firm with licensed herbicide applicators to conduct ongoing 
and seasonally‐appropriate treatments of invasive weeds across our entire 150‐acre property. 
The following treatment areas and strategies are planned: 

 
a. Emergent low prairie, railroad right‐of‐way and southeast ravine: Each of these areas 

still hosts substantial populations of beneficial native grass, sedge and forb species. 
Restoration crews skilled in plant identification will grid these areas and carefully target 
invasive weeds with foliar spray or wick applications of an appropriate herbicide to 
minimize overspray and impacts to non‐target species. Key invasive weeds treated will 
include but not be limited to rhizomatous weeds such as reed canary grass, phragmites, 
Canada thistle and Canada goldenrod as well as biennial invasive weeds like garlic 
mustard, dames rocket and burdock. Other weeds known to be present and targeted for 
treatment include redtop, spotted St. John’s‐wort, purple loosestrife, and curly dock. 



 
b. Cleared woody areas: All cleared woody areas will undergo a “woody resprout” 

treatment when sprouts have reached a size of 3‐6 inches and enough leaf tissue is 
present to apply herbicide. A follow‐up re‐sprout/small stem treatment may be 
completed prior to July 1, 2019 if adequate control has not already been achieved. 
These same areas will also be searched for invasive herbaceous weeds such as garlic 
mustard. Weeds found in these areas will be treated with an appropriate herbicide and 
methods.  

 

c. Crop fields: TNC and the tenant leasing the crop fields had mutually agreed that winter 
wheat would be planted in September 2018, but wet conditions made this infeasible 
and the fields are currently fallow. If conditions in March 2019 are conducive, the tenant 
will cultivate the fields and plant a dense crop of oats to hold soil and compete with 
weeds until harvest in mid‐summer. Upon harvest of this final crop, the fields will be 
assessed for weed issues and other conditions that could impact seeding of perennial 
cover following wetland construction in late summer/early fall. Actions will be taken to 
assure optimal field conditions for seeding perennial cover. 

 

Schedule: Invasive plant treatments will begin in early spring 2019 and continue through the entire 

growing season. 

 

Future Phases – (3) Restoration of Site Hydrology & Replanting of Native Vegetation &   

       (4) Monitoring and Follow‐Up  

TNC’s restoration plan for Phases 3 and 4 of this project will be submitted to the Village of Pleasant 

Prairie as soon as a General Wetland Permit has been issued following review by the Wisconsin DNR and 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in early 2019. TNC requests issuance of a Stipulated Conservancy Permit 

and Erosion Control Permit allowing us to proceed with this project’s Phase 2 as soon as weather 

conditions permit. 



0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet ¯

Legend

Chiwaukee
Prairie

Preserve
State Natural Area

Hw
y3

2/S
he

rid
an

Ro
ad

Document Name: ChiwWest_VPP_PermitMap Date: 10/26/2018

Un
ion

Pa
cif

ic
Ra

ilro
ad

Tr
ac

ks

WISCONSIN - ILLINOIS STATE LINE

TNC Ownership - 150 acres

Chiwaukee West Restoration Area Site Map

116th St.

128th St.

kj

kj

kj

kj Public Information Signage Location

"Big-I"
Field

Ra vi ne

"Schmidt's
First

Addition"
Area

Emergent
Low

Prairie

Invasive
Black
Locust
Zone



0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet

¯
Legend

Chiwaukee
Prairie

Preserve
State Natural Area

Hw
y3

2/S
he

rid
an

Ro
ad

Document Name: ChiwWest_VPP_Zoning_AccessPoints_Map Date: 11/28/2018

Un
ion

Pa
cif

ic
Ra

ilro
ad

Tr
ac

ks

WISCONSIN - ILLINOIS STATE LINE

Chiwaukee West Restoration Area Stipulated Conservancy Permit Application Map
Phase 2a - Woody Vegetation Removal

93-4-123-311-0070

116th St.

128th St.

93-4-123-311-0201

93-4-123-311-0204

93-4-123-314-0410

"Schmidt's
First

Addition"
Area

(82 Parcels)
See Tax

Parcel # List
Below

Tax Parcel LinesTNC Ownership - 150 acres

Neighbor/ROW Woody Removal Areas, 
Pending Neighbor and/or Village Agreement

3

2

4

5

6

1

x

TNC Woody Removal Areas

Woody Removal Access Points & Routes



630

63
2

614

61
8

62
0

616

622

624

62
8

62
6

61
2

592

59
6

590

594

63
6

634

63
8

58
8

640

642
644

646

648

634

590

632

63
2

636

618

61
6

59
0

61
6

59
0

61
6

632

632

58
8

63
6

616

59
0

63
2

58
8

63
2

592

618

58
8

59
4

61
4

59
4

632

638

640

58
8

63
2

63
2

630

632

63
6

59
0

59
4

618

59
4

59
0

632
634

630

58
8

58
8

594

58
8

632

63
2

62
0

61
6

59
6

620

616

59
6

63
2

588

62
0

638

61
8

61
8

63
6

64
4

61
4

61
6

63
6

632

63
4

59
2

63
8 59

2

63
6

59
0

63
4

62
6

636

59
4

592

636

616

630

63
6

59
2

63
2

63
2

63
2

630

61
6

59
0

63
2

594

632
614

624

62
2

58
8

632

62
6

632

588

58
8

63
8

596

616

624

590

63
2

58
8

59
0

594

63
0

59
0

61
4

59
2

61
6

634

590

634

59
0

636

58
8

63
8

63
6

63
4

63
6

59
4

640

63
2

632

59
4

63
2

624

638

59
4

592

58
8

63
6

63
6

632

59
0

59
0

590

632

62
0

59
4

61
6

63
6

63
6

63
2

618

638

61
6

632

59
2

590

596

61663
0

58
8

612

636

63
2

61
6

64
0

58
8

62
6

588

626

59
0

638

59
4

62
0

59
2

59
0

63
2

62
2

58
8

63
6

594

63
4

63
2

636

62
0

63
4

63
8

640

61
6

63
2

58
8

59
0

62
4

590

59
4

61
8

62
2

63
8

59
0

61
8

59
2

63
8

632
63

4

590

59
4

59
4

59
6

62
8

63
0

63
2

632

634

620

63
2

634

592

636

632

59
2

590

616

59
0

62
2

63
6

58
8

636

636

63
2

63
6

59
0

61
6

64
0

596

634

63
8

61
4

590
630

632

590

594

63
6

590

636

59
4

622

636

59
2

63
2

618

63
2

636

618

59
2

638

590
588

646

620

58
8

61
6

63
6

622

59
0

638

59
063

6

636

620

59
0

616

59
2

62
0

59
0

59
0

634

590

63
6

59063
0

59
0

63
6

62
2

59
2

61
6

59
2

58
8

632

632

59
4

63
2

636

59
2

63
0

59
4

620

622

58
8

61
4

63
4

594

63
2

63
8

63
2

640

63
2

61
8

614

620634

58
8

63
6

590

63
6

58
8

59
0

61
8

63
8

618

622

63
6

59
0

62
4

63
8

61
6

0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet ¯

Legend

Chiwaukee
Prairie

Preserve
State Natural Area

Hw
y3

2/S
he

rid
an

Ro
ad

Document Name: ChiwWestRR_FullComplex_Contours Date: 10/26/2018

Un
ion

Pa
cif

ic
Ra

ilro
ad

Tr
ac

ks

WISCONSIN - ILLINOIS STATE LINE

TNC Ownership - 150 acres

Chiwaukee West Restoration Site - 2' LIDAR Contours

116th St.

128th St.

LIDAR 2ft Contours



S3/E1Ks

T3/S3K

E1H

T3/S3K

T3K

E2K

E2K

S3/E2Ks

F0Kf

T3/E1K

T3K

T3K
T3/S3K

T3K

F0Kf

S3K

W0Hx

S3/E1K

S3K

T3/E1K

S3K

T3/S3H

W0Hx

W0Hx

E1Ks

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service

0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet ¯

Legend

Kenosha County Ownership - 15 acres

Wetland (SEWRPC)

Chiwaukee
Prairie

Preserve
State Natural Area

Hw
y3

2/S
he

rid
an

Ro
ad

Document Name: ChiwWestRR_FullComplex_Wetlands Date: 10/26/2018

Un
ion

Pa
cif

ic
Ra

ilro
ad

Tr
ac

ks

WISCONSIN - ILLINOIS STATE LINE

TNC Ownership - 150 acres

Chiwaukee West Restoration Site - Wetlands, Indicators & PRWs

116th St.

128th St.

Wetland Indicators (WDNR)

Potentially Restorable Wetlands (WDNR)







0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet ¯

Legend

Chiwaukee
Prairie

Preserve
State Natural Area

Hw
y3

2/S
he

rid
an

Ro
ad

Document Name: ChiwWest_VPP_Zoning_CompPlanChanges_Map Date: 11/20/2018

Un
ion

Pa
cif

ic
Ra

ilro
ad

Tr
ac

ks

WISCONSIN - ILLINOIS STATE LINE

TNC Ownership - 150 acres

Chiwaukee West Restoration Area
Rezoning & Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Map

93-4-123-311-0070

116th St.

128th St.

Tax Parcel Lines

93-4-123-311-0201

93-4-123-311-0204

93-4-123-314-0410

"Schmidt's
First

Addition"
Area

(82 Parcels)
See Tax

Parcel # List
Below





0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet ¯

Legend

Chiwaukee
Prairie

Preserve
State Natural Area

Hw
y3

2/S
he

rid
an

Ro
ad

Document Name: ChiwWest_VPP_Zoning_CompPlanChanges_Map Date: 11/20/2018

Un
ion

Pa
cif

ic
Ra

ilro
ad

Tr
ac

ks

WISCONSIN - ILLINOIS STATE LINE

TNC Ownership - 150 acres

Chiwaukee West Restoration Area
Rezoning & Comprehensive Plan Amendment Application Map

93-4-123-311-0070

116th St.

128th St.

Tax Parcel Lines

93-4-123-311-0201

93-4-123-311-0204

93-4-123-314-0410

"Schmidt's
First

Addition"
Area

(82 Parcels)
See Tax

Parcel # List
Below



DEV1812-006 

Consider approval of a Master Conceptual for the request of Mark D. Eberle, P.E. with 

Nielsen & Barber on the behalf of Branko Tupanjac, owner of the vacant properties at 7821 

120th Avenue for the development of a Hyatt Place hotel and the Kings and Convicts 

brewery. 

Recommendation:  On January 28, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 

recommends that the Village Board approve the Master Conceptual Plan subject to the 

comments and conditions of the February 4, 2019 Village Staff Report. 

 



2 

 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF FEBRUARY 4, 2019 

Consider approval of a Master Conceptual for the request of Mark D. Eberle, P.E. with 

Nielsen & Barber on the behalf of Branko Tupanjac, owner of the vacant properties at 7821 

120th Avenue for the development of a Hyatt Place hotel and the Kings and Convicts 

brewery. 

 

The developer is requesting approval of a Master Conceptual Plan for the development of 

the 7.4 acres of vacant land south of STH 50 on the east side of 120th Avenue (East 

Frontage Road) for commercial/manufacturing development of a hotel/conference facility 

and a brewery. 

The 5.7 acre site combined with the adjacent 1.7 acre site (being purchased by the 

developer from the WI DOT) is proposed to be developed with a Hyatt Place hotel and the 

Kings and Convicts Brewing Company. 

HOTEL:  The hotel will have 124 rooms with an 8,214 square private suite area with three 

(3) rooms on the 5th floor.  The main floor of the hotel will include a lobby/reception area, 

restaurant/bar area, banquet and meeting rooms, kitchen and pool area.  Additional 

banquet facilities with a terrace area will also be located on the 5th floor.  Pursuant to the 

application it is anticipated that the hotel will employ 10 full time and 6 part-time 

employees, plus employees for the restaurant and special event spaces. 

KINGS & CONVICTS BREWERY:  “The name Kings & Convicts derives from the two 

founder’s heritage, an Englishman (the King) and an Australian (the Convict) who reside on 

the shores of Lake Michigan with access to some of the best brewing water in the world, in a 

town that has a rich immigrant history with an undercurrent of anti-authority and love of 

the scoundrel. 

The foundation for the brand’s personality is the love of great beer, a fun anti-authority 

approach to marketing and the rich immigrant tapestry of the U.S., England and Australia. 

Great liquid and a great story with beers that appeal to the growing craft beer market. 

The brand name represents who they are, it is memorable and it is different.  This brand 

name enables growth outside of local markets with the ultimate goal to expand the brand 

regionally, then ultimately nationwide and internationally.   The history and beer styles 

translate across the U.S. and will flourish in Australia, the U.K., New Zealand and Asia.  The 

beer names capture a sense of American, English and Australian history that provides a 

deep well from which to draw in terms of marketing and beer styles. 

The new brewery, taproom and patio, event center and “Brig” will ensure that the essence 

of the brand is enhanced and carried throughout the customer experience. The exterior 

building will highlight the rich history of Kings sending Convicts to Australia.  The exterior 

landscape at the back of the building will incorporate natural prairie grasslands of the 

region. The interior design will ensure that the brewery is always on display, that the 

experience is “real” and that the space is appealing and comfortable, yet rugged. 

The brewhouse and cellar tanks will be visible from the I-94 on the west side of the property 

through the large arched windows and the tap room, restaurant and event space will face 

east and overlook the natural areas of the Kilbourn ditch and association wetlands and Des 

Plaines floodplain. 

The Brewery:  The automated brewhouse will be the focal point, situated behind the 

taproom bar with the towering fermenters standing immediately behind, holding the 

attention of patrons. The fermentation tanks will be on display internally and externally, 

glazed walls and lights highlighting the stainless steel.  Kings & Convicts Brewing Co. is 



3 

 

investing in a brand-new state of the art Brewhouse and Cellar. This $2 million system is 

being designed and manufactured in Wisconsin by QTS Tanks.  They will be brewing a range 

of Ales, Lagers & Pilsners for sale in the taproom and via distribution into Wisconsin & the 

Mid-West. 

Taproom:  The Taproom will have several Key sections, including: 

 Bar Area -with high tops, and bar seating 

 Dining Area – with classic table seating, communal picnic table seating 

 Lounge Area – with more relax comfortable seating 

 A patio with fire pits, outdoor seating and family seating area. 

The Food: Classic American fare served by the kitchen including burgers, tacos and pizza. 

An outdoor BBQ and Smoke pit will be on the patio, adjacent to the taproom.   Aussie Meat 

Pies and English Fish and Chips will be available periodically. 

The Event Center:  A 250 capacity Event Center on the 2nd floor overlooking the Des 

Plaines River and adjoining the Taproom. 

The “BRIG”:  A 50-person capacity room adjacent to the taproom that has access to the 

fermentation area with a brewing focused feel will be a feature of the Brig aimed at the 

corporate and smaller events, this room will be capable of holding smaller gatherings that is 

more private yet retains the essence of the brewing experience. 

Hours:  Brewery Operations will approximately be from 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday-

Friday and the taproom will be open from 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 a.m. 7 days a week. 

Estimated Daily Truck Trips:   Brewery Operations will require the delivery of goods and 

ingredients, and the removal of finished product and waste products.  The Taproom and 

Event space will require food deliveries.  In total it is anticipated that truck trips will average 

at 4-6 trips per day under full operation. 

Employment:  In the production area they will have between 13-25 full and part time 

staff; the taproom, kitchen and event space will generate 70-90 full and part time jobs for a 

total of 83-115 jobs on site. 

Type of Materials & Equipment to be stored on site:   Raw materials for the production 

and packaging of their beers includes: 

 Ingredients: hops, grains and yeasts 

 Packaging materials: cans, trays and kegs 

 Cleaning materials such as: acid & caustic for CIP of their equipment 

 Productions materials: carbon dioxide tanks and oxygen tanks.  

On site equipment includes: 

 Brewing equipment, 

 Cellar tanks for fermentation, 

 Canning and kegging lines for packaging our finished goods, 

 CO2 and O2 tanks, 

 Forklifts. 

The taproom will have a kitchen with ingredients dedicated to cold and dry storage areas. 

The primary solid waste from the production of beer is spent grain.   They will be installing a 

spent grain silo to capture 100% of the grain used in production, this grain will be physically 

removed from site and used as feed for local farms.  Yeast and hops are the two (2) solid 

waste “products” and both be disposed of offsite again with local farmers and organic 

recycling providers.   Their primary objective with water is reuse and recycling, they will 



4 

 

have several systems in place to capture water used in the brewing and cleaning of their 

tanks.  The remaining water waste will be routed into the sewer system. 

Village liquor licenses for selling or consuming alcohol will be required for each use.  In 

addition State of Wisconsin Department of Revenue permits for the brewery and wholesale 

sales of the beer will also be required.  

Site Access and Parking:  Although the hotel and brewery sites may be subdivided into 

two parcels, they will share access, parking and will be developed as a unified development.   

Two access points will be provided to the development from 120th Avenue (East Frontage 

Road) as allowed and permitted by the WI DOT.  A Transportation Impact Analysis (TIA) is 

in process and has been submitted to the WI DOT for review and approval.  All required off-

site improvements to 120th Avenue will be outline in a Memorandum of Understanding 

(MOU) between WI DOT and the Village.  The Developer will have a corresponding 

Agreement with the Village to financially guarantee the construction of the 120th Avenue 

improvements. 

Cross access will be provided between and through both properties.   The entire site 

provides for a total of 492 parking spaces including 16 handicapped accessible parking 

spaces.  Parking allocated to the brewery building is 114 parking spaces (including 8 

handicapped accessible spaces) and the parking allocated to the hotel is 376 parking spaces 

(including 8 handicapped assessable parking spaces).  The amount of parking is still be 

evaluated to ensure that there is adequate on-site parking is provided for the uses.  If it is 

determined that additional parking is required, then staff recommends that underground 

parking in the hotel be further examined. 

Municipal Services:  Public sanitary sewer and water will be required to be extended to 

service this development in 120th Avenue.  The developer will be responsible to pay for their 

fair share to utilize the Chateau Lift Station in the amount of $23,546.26 (see attached 

Village Engineer review comments dated January 1, 2019 for additional information).  This 

will be required to be paid prior to issuance of building permits.  In addition, the WI DOT will 

require additional roadway improvements within the frontage Road.  The Village will draft 

the required Development Agreement to be entered into that sets forth the required public 

and private improvements and outlines the financial security including the above noted lift 

station fee to ensure that the work is completed. 

A Certified Survey Map will be required to show any land division, any additional 

dedicated right-of-way and all easements, dedications and restrictive covenants.  The CSM 

shall at a minimum show all of the following easements and other noted items: 

 Dedicated Storm Water Drainage, Retention Basin, Access and Maintenance 

Easement areas 

 Dedicated Signage, Access and Maintenance Easement areas 

 Dedicated Ingress-Egress, Cross Access, Cross Parking and Maintenance 

Easement areas 

 Dedicated Wetland Preservation and Protection, Access and Maintenance 

Easement areas 

 Dedicated General Utility Easement areas 

A Comprehensive Land Use Map Amendment will be required to correctly show the 

location of any wetlands on the properties.  

Zoning Map and Text Amendments will be required to create the required Planned 

Development (PD) ordinance and to rezone any wetlands into the C-1, Lowland Resource 

Conservancy District.  The PD Ordinance will allow the Village to create an ordinance that 

outlines the specific uses and requirements for the development. 



5 

 

Site and Operational Plans will be required for each individual building that include site 

plans, drainage and grading plans, building plans, landscape plans, industrial waste survey, 

signage plans and all other required plans and documents pursuant to the Site and 

Operational Plan requirements of the Village Zoning Ordinance (Article IX of Chapter 420 of 

the Village Municipal Code).  Each building will be required to comply with the Village’s 

Digital Security Imaging System (DSIS) Ordinance pursuant to Chaper 410 of the Village 

Municipal Code.  Site and Operational Plans shall be identical to the required State approved 

building plans.  Further discussion is warranted to determine if Preliminary Site and 

Operational approval will be obtained to begin mass grading on the site and possible 

installation of underground on-site utilities and footing and foundation permits.  In addition, 

prior to issuance of any permits an Airport Overlay Site Plan Review approval from the City 

of Kenosha is required for this development. 

Recommendation: 

Plan Commission recommends approval of the Master Conceptual Plan subject to the above 

comments and the following conditions: 

1. The Master Conceptual Plan approval will be valid for a period of one (1) 

year (until February 4, 2020).  Prior to the expiration of the required Site and 

Operational Plans, Certified Survey Map, detailed Public and Private Improvement 

Plans and related documents which satisfy the conditions of the Master Conceptual 

Plan approval shall be submitted and considered by the Plan Commission and Village 

Board.   

2. The Village will begin to prepare the PD Ordinance when revised plans are submitted.  

At a minimum all site related and exterior building, elevations, landscaping and 

signage plans shall be completed and submitted so that the PD Ordinance can be 

written. 

3. The following plan changes shall be incorporated plans:  

a. See attached comments from the Village Engineering Department dated 

January 9, 2019. 

b. Each building will be required to install a sewer sampling manhole pursuant to 

the Village specifications. 

c. See attached comments from the Fire & Rescue Department dated January 

15, 2019. 

d. See attached comments from the Village Building Inspector dated January 

17, 2019. 

e. See attached current Government Agency Contact list to use on the cover 

sheet.  In addition add the Village Clerk, Jane C. Snell on the cover page with 

phone number: 262-925-6719 and email:  jsnell@pleasantprairiewi.com 

f. Add a note on the plans indicating who staked the wetlands, the date staked 

and the legal description of the wetlands that are on the property. 

g. Provide a copy of the Wetland Report and if not staked by a WI Assured 

biologist, then provide written concurrence from the WI DNR. 

h. Provide verification that there is no 100-year floodplain on the former DOT 

property.   

mailto:jsnell@pleasantprairiewi.com


6 

 

i. Correct the site data chart:  Zoning Proposed:  PD, Planned Development and 

C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District, and FPO if floodplain exists on 

the DOT property that will be included within this development; and Existing 

Land Use:  Commercial and Open Space. 

j. Add a chart that specifies, building size (not just footprint), and building 

height, number of hotel rooms, brewery manufacturing related areas, and 

commercial areas within the brewery area. 

k. Modify architectural site plan to match the civil plans.   

l. Clearly show all the setbacks of building and paved surfaces to property lines.  

m. The amount of parking is still being evaluated to ensure that there is 

adequate on-site parking is provided for the uses.  If it is determined that 

additional parking is required, then staff recommends that underground 

parking in the hotel be further examined.  Further discussion is warranted. 

n. Are additional handicapped accessible parking space required on the west side 

of the hotel? 

o. The south access driveway appears to be too wide.  Either provide a 

boulevard entrance or reduce to a maximum width of 35 feet or provide 

approval from WI DOT. 

p. See attached comments related to building materials, details and façade 

changes.  A building material/sample board shall be provided prior to meeting 

for staff review. 

q. Detailed building and site signage shall be submitted. 

r. The Landscape Plan will be required to be shown with the approved grading 

plan as the base map and with all easement locations shown. 

s. Landscaping within the WI DOT right-of-way will be required to be approved 

by the WI DOT.  Provide approvals/permits to the Village.  Additional street 

trees will not be required in the right-of-way. 

t. Additional landscaping will be required adjacent to the parking lots that abut 

the frontage road for headlight screening (24 to 36 inches high plantings). 

u. Further discussion is warranted related to the cross walk between the hotel 

and the brewery.  The Village staff would like for the project to consider a 

covered walkway.   

v. Provide greater detail of the 20 foot main boulevard between the hotel and 

the brewery and the outdoor event space.  These areas shall be designed to 

allow for seating, designated walkways and have a specific purpose.  

w. All parking lot islands shall also include low level plantings not just trees.  

x. Provide minimum 2-3 gallon plantings.  Plant materials shall provide for 

adequate screening in the winter months too. 

y. Landscaped islands shall provide mulched beds rather than stone.  

z. Provide retaining wall details, specifications and sample material. 

aa. The overhead electrical lines shall be buried.  Provide details. 

bb. Attractive and ornamental commercial light pole standards/LED fixtures the 

same type and style (pole and head) within the entire development shall be 



7 

 

provided in the parking lot at a maximum height of 20 feet from grade with 

the fixtures style and color to compliment the buildings (No shoe box 

fixtures).  The concrete bases of the light standards shall not exceed 12 

inches above grade.  All concrete, unpainted light pole bases shall be placed 

within landscaped areas or islands.  As a unified development all of the 

parking lot lights shall be the same style, height, color and size for the entire 

unified business development area. 

cc. All exterior lighting shall be of the same LED color and brightness. Parking lot 

lighting shall be illuminated to provide sufficient lighting for the public's safety 

and the effective operation of the security cameras - per the Village's 

satisfaction.  However, onsite lighting (including any lighting from a roof top 

sign) shall not glare onto adjacent properties or right-of-way. 

dd. All downspouts for all proposed buildings within the development shall be 

internal to the building and interconnected to the private storm sewer system 

and cut off at grade and shown on the required Site and Operational Plans. 

ee. Each handicapped parking space shall be appropriately signed (locations to be 

reviewed with planning staff) and painted on the pavement pursuant to ADA 

requirements prior to occupancy of any development site. 

ff. All exterior mechanical units, antennae and/or satellite dishes, whether roof-

mounted or ground-mounted, shall be screened from the general public's 

view.  

gg. All entrances and exits on each building shall be numbered on the exterior 

and interior beginning at the main entrance and moving clockwise around the 

structure.  Architectural pleasing numbers should be of a reflective material 

and must be visible from the farthest point of the adjacent parking lot 

(minimum size of 3 inch attractive numbers placed on the same location of 

each door).  Show on the plans. 

4. Further discussion is warranted related to the timing of the project and installation of 

public improvements, mass grading and building permits for the buildings. 

5. Airport Overlay Site Plan Review approval from the City of Kenosha is required for 

this development.  A copy of this approval is required to be submitted prior to 

issuance of any building permits. 

6. Permits will be required to be obtained from the Kenosha County Health Department.  

Prior to occupancy all permits will be required to be obtained and all required 

inspections passed. 

7. All required liquor licenses to sell, package and distribute alcoholic beverages shall 

be in place prior to occupancy for both the brewery and hotel.  Contact Jane Snell, 

Village Clerk for all required Village licenses. 

8. Permits from the WI Department of Revenue will be required for the brewery and the 

wholesale distribution of beer.  Copies of all requirement permits shall be provided to 

the Village prior to Village licensing and verbal occupancy. 

9. Any amplified sound or live music shall be contained on the site for any of the 

entertainment or terrace spaces within the development. 

10. Each business in the Village is required to obtain an annual business license with the 

Village.  The initial license shall be obtain prior to occupancy and shall be renewed 

annually the first of each year with the Village. 



8 

 

11. The development shall comply with the ordinances in effect at the time of 

construction.  In addition, detailed Site and Operational Plans are required to be 

submitted for review and approval prior to any development pursuant to the 

requirements for the Village Zoning Ordinance.   

12. All grading and other work impacting the adjacent frontage road shall be approved 

with permits granted by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation.  Copies of 

State permits shall be provided to the Village prior to issuance of Village permits. 

13. Coming Soon, Real Estate Marketing Signs and/or Temporary Development Signs are 

permitted only by permit pursuant to the requirements of Article X of Chapter 420.  

14. No use shall be conducted in such a way as to constitute a public or private nuisance 

or to violate any of the performance standards set out in Section 420-38 of the 

Village Zoning Ordinance. 

15. Chateau lift station fees and municipal connection fees shall be paid prior to the 

connections of each building to the sanitary sewer system. 

16. Development shall be in compliance with the Village Land Division and Development 

Control Ordinance, the Village Municipal and Zoning Codes, the Village Construction 

Site Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance and the State of Wisconsin Statutes. 

17. Impact fees pursuant to Chapter 181 of the Village Code are required to be paid at 

time of building permit for each development site. 

 



  
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

Office of the Village Engineer 
Matthew J. Fineour, P.E.     MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner / Zoning Administrator 

 
FROM:  Matthew Fineour, P.E.,Village Engineer 
 
  SUBJ:  Hyatt Place Hotel / Kings and Convicts Brewing Co. - Conceptual Plan 
    
 DATE:  January 9, 2019 

 

 
Peggy, 
 
The Engineering Department has reviewed the submitted concept plans for the proposed 
development. We have the following comments as noted below and on the attached mark-up plan. 
Refer to this memo and the mark up plan for all comments.  The review was conceptual and nature 
and additional comments will be provided upon detailed engineering plans being completed and 
submitted for further review. 
 
See comments on attached mark-up plan sheets.   

 
1. Only plan sheets with comments are included. 

 
2. Comments that apply to multiple locations are not repeated for every occurrence 

   
Conceptual Plan  
 

3. Storm water management meeting Village Ordinance is required.  The plan currently does not 
provide any information for planned storm water management facilities. A preliminary storm 
water management plan and detention facility information shall be provided showing how the 
site will meet peak discharge and water quality requirements. 
 

4. A conceptual on-site utility plan was not provided.  A conceptual on-site utility plan showing 
planned locations of storm sewers, sanitary services and sampling manhole(s), water services, 
on-site hydrant locations, and detention facility locations shall be provided.  
 

5. Identify the proposed location(s) of the pumper pads.  These locations will need to be reviewed 
by the Fire Department. 
 

6. There is a retaining wall around the entire north, east, and south perimeter of the site.  The 
wall varies in height from approximately 4-feet to 15-feet.  The wall on the south side facing the 
existing residential home varies from 7 feet to 15-feet in height.  Label the wall height so non-
engineering staff clearly understand the site characteristics. 
 

7. The Developer is required to provide streetlights along the 120th Avenue.  A map is attached 
for reference.  Streetlights shall be WE-Energies LED, bronze poles (same style as used along 
Frontage Road for The Gateway). 
 



P a g e  | 2 
Memo – Hyat Place / Kings and Convicts Conceptual Plan 
January 9, 2019 
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

8. Provide a completed industrial waste survey for the hotel and a separate completed survey for 
the brewery.  Provide waste characteristics for the brewery and verify that it meets ordinance 
requirements and if pre-treatment is needed to meet ordinance requirements.  
 

9. Provide the following water usage information for both the hotel and brewery.  
 

a. Gallons per day (average day usage) 
b. Gallons per day (maximum day usage) 
c. Gallon per minute (peak usage) 

 
Public Sewer and Water Extensions    
 
 

10. Detailed plans and a project manual are required for the public sanitary sewer and water main 
extensions.  Plans will need to be approved by the Village, Kenosha Water Utility, and DNR. 
 

11. A cursory review of the conceptual public water main and sanitary sewer plans was completed 
with comments noted on the plan markup attachment.  We note that the planned gravity sewer 
needs to be re-evaluated based on the assumed starting invert elevation and conflict with the 
large storm sewer culverts, as noted in the plan mark up.   
 

12. In 2008, the Village constructed the Chateau Eau Plaines lift station.  A Special Assessment 

was levied for developable properties that would be serviced by the lift station.  Parcels 91-4-

122-072-0110 and 91-4-122-072-0104 were not included in the lift station service area and 

design calculations, nor was a special assessment for the lift station levied on the subject 

parcels. The sewerage from the proposed Hyatt / Kings and Convicts is tributary to the 

Chateau Lift Station. A review of the service area shows that the lift station currently has the 

capacity for the proposed development; however, the lift station capacity will be re-evaluated in  

as the Chateau Eau Plaines service area continues to develop with potential land use 

changes.  The Development Cost share towards the Chateau lift station is $23,546.26 based 

the previous method of charges places on developable benefitted properties by the Chateau 

Eau Plaines sanitary sewer lift station and force main assessment.  The Development shall 

pay this cost share towards the Chateau Lift station and may be subject to additional future 

upgrade costs, if applicable.    

 
The engineering plans have been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted engineering 
practices and Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the design engineer is 
responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of plans and supplemental data and for their 
compliance with all state and local codes, ordinances, and procedures.  Modifications to the plans, etc. 
may be required should errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and as additional 
information is provided. 
 
*** 

 



 

Chateau Lift Station Service Area Cost Share Calculation 

Parcels 91-4-122-072-0110 and 91-4-122-072-0104 

 

Calculation is based on method of area assessment charges. 

Development Acreage: 7.39 Acres 

Land Use Type: Commercial 

Land Use Type Flow Contribution:  500 gal/day/acre  

Acreage flow contribution:  3,695 gal / day  

Equivalent Household Unit = 125 gal/day/capita x 2.73 capita / household = 341.25 gal / day 

Development Household Equivalent:  10.82 

Charge per Household Equivalent:  $2,176.18 

Cost Share:  10.82 x $2,176.18 = $23,546.26 

 

 

 

  



D
A
T
E

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

B
Y

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

2018.0287.01
C-1

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

NDB
MDE

09-17-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

CONSTRUCTION PLANS
for

HYATT PLACE HOTEL
&

THE KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING COMPANY
CONCEPTUAL PLAN SUBMITTAL

for
BRANKO TUPANJAC

Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin

KENOSHA

GAS METER

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET IRON PIPE

UNDERGROUND VAULT

SECTION CORNER

STREET SIGN

MAIL BOX

HVAC UNIT

GUARD POST

SOIL BORING

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

LIGHT POLE

WATER MAIN REDUCER

SANITARY MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

NO VEHICULAR ACCESS

SEPTIC VENT

FENCE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

RAILROAD TRACKS

UNDERGROUND GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND COMMUNICATIONS

SILT FENCE

UTILITY POLE

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

TELEPHONE BOX

CULVERT 

ENDWALL

CATCH BASIN

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

CONTOURS

CONIFEROUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE REMOVAL

BUSH

STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY CLEAN OUT

HYDRANT

WATER MAIN VALVE

DECIDUOUS TREE REMOVAL

DECIDUOUS TREE

EDGE OF WOODS WATER SHUT OFF

WATER MANHOLE

AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY
BRIAN MCGEE
OFFICE: 262-506-6700
EMAIL: bmcgee@atcllc.com
EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 972-5341

WISCONSIN D.O.T.
SOUTHEAST REGION
OFFICE: 414-266-1167

AT&T
MIKE TOYEK
OFFICE: 262-636-0549
EMAIL: mt1734@att.com

TDS TELECOM
SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN
OFFICE: 877-483-7142

SPECTRUM
ROBERT TUNUTA
UTILITY COORDINATOR
OFFICE: 414-277-4205
CELL: 414-758-5688
EMAIL: tunuta@charter.net

WE-ENERGIES
ALLIE MILLER
KENOSHA SOUTH
OFFICE: 262-552-3227
EMAIL: allie.miller@we-energies.com

NATURAL GAS EMERGENCY: (800) 261-5325
ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY: (800) 662-4797

PLEASANT PRAIRIE PUBLIC WORKS
JOHN STEINBRINK, JR.,

             - DIRECTOR
ROGER PRANGE MUNICIPAL BUILDING
8600 GREEN BAY ROAD

           OFFICE: 262-925-6768
EMAIL: jsteinbrink@plprairiewi.com

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE
NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

PUBLIC UTILITY CONTACTS

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

WATERMAIN

LEGEND
Existing Existing Proposed

FORCE MAIN

FIRE PROTECTION

UTILITY CROSSING

DITCH OR SWALE

BASE LINE BL
LONG CORD OF CURVE CHD
CURB AND GUTTER C&G
CATCH BASIN CB
CENTERLINE CL
EDGE OF PAVEMENT EOP
FINISHED FIRST FLOOR FFF
FINISHED GRADE FG
FLOW LINE FL
FLOODPLAIN FP
ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK OHWM
TOP OF BANK TOB
TOP OF CURB TOC
TOP OF WALK TOW

ABBREVIATIONS
INVERT ELEVATION IE
LENGTH OF CURVE ARC
MANHOLE MH
NORMAL WATER LEVEL NWL
POINT OF CURVATURE PC
POINT OF TANGENCY PT
TANGENCY OF CURVE TAN
POINT OF VERTICAL INTERSECTION PVI
RADIUS R
RIGHT OF WAY ROW
SANITARY SEWER SAN
STORM SEWER STM
TOP OF FOUNDATION TOF
WATER MAIN WM

Description Description

PROJECT LOCATION

BRANKO TUPANJAC
1020 EVERGREEN DRIVE
LAKE FOREST, IL 60045
PHONE: (312)593-2727

           EMAIL: highwoodtowers@gmail.com

OWNER / DEVELOPER

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING (OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE, OWNER'S ENGINEER, GENERAL CONTRACTOR, VILLAGE ENGINEER,
AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR) MUST BE HELD AT THE VILLAGES OFFICES. THE
PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE SHALL BE SCHEDULED AND MODERATED BY THE
DESIGN ENGINEER OF RECORD.

PRE-CONSTRUCTION NOTE

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A COPY OF THESE PLANS AND THE PROJECT MANUAL
INCLUDING ALL CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ON-SITE DURING TIMES OF
CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF
THE CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS.

SPECIFICATION NOTE

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 P
LA

N
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
FO

R
BR

AN
KO

 T
U

PA
N

JA
C

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE HALL
9915 39TH STREET
PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI  53158
OFFICE: (262) 694-1400

- ADMINISTRATION
NATHAN THIEL

 - VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6721
EMAIL: nthiel@plprairiewi.com

THOMAS SHIRCEL
       - ASSISTANT VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6721
EMAIL: tshircel@plprairiewi.com

  - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
JEAN WERBIE-HARRIS, DIRECTOR

- PLANNER, ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6718
EMAIL: jwerbie-harris@plprairiewi.com

PEGGY HERRICK
- ASSISTANT PLANNER & ZONING

ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6716
EMAIL: pherrick@plprairiewi.com

  - ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
MATT FINEOUR
     - VILLAGE ENGINEER
OFFICE: (262) 925-6778
EMAIL: mfineour@plprairiewi.com

KURT DAVIDSEN
     - ASSISTANT VILLAGE ENGINEER
OFFICE: (262) 925-6728
EMAIL: kdavidsen@plprairiewi.com

  - BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT
SANDRO PEREZ

 - BUILDING INSPECTION SUPERINTENDENT
OFFICE: (262) 694-9304
DIRECT: (262) 925-6722
EMAIL: sperez@plprairiewi.com

PLEASANT PRAIRIE FIRE DEPARTMENT
CRAIG ROEPKE
   - DEPUTY CHIEF OF FIRE & RESCUE
DIRECT: (262) 948-8981
EMAIL: croepke@plprairiewi.com

AARON LONGRIE
   - ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF
EMAIL: alongrie@plprairiewi.com

PLEASANT PRAIRIE PUBLIC WORKS
JOHN STEINBRINK, JR.,
    - DIRECTOR
ROGER PRANGE MUNICIPAL BUILDING
8600 GREEN BAY ROAD
OFFICE: (262) 925-6768
EMAIL: jsteinbrink@plprairiewi.com 

STEVE WLAHOVICH
    - ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN
OFFICE: (262) 925-6767
EMAIL: swlahovich@plprairiewi.com

WI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
PETER WOOD
   - WATER RESOURCES ENGINEER
OFFICE: 262-884-2360
EMAIL: peter.wood@wisconsin.gov

GOVERNING AGENCY CONTACTS

Plan Sheet Sheet No.
TITLE SHEET

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

EXISTING CONDITIONS TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

CONCEPTUAL DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

CONCEPTUAL SITE GRADING PLAN

SANITARY SEWER & WATER MAIN PLAN & PROFILE

LANDSCAPING PLANS

C-1

A-1 THRU A-9

C-2

C-3

 C-4

C-5 THRU C-6

L1 THRU L4

SHEET INDEX

VOPP ENG REVIEW
PLAN MARK UP

JANUARY 9, 2019

PROVIDE
CONCEPTUAL
ON-SITE UTILITY
PLAN



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

100'

SCALE 1"=50'

50' 0' 50' 100'

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

BEARING BASE: GRID NORTH, WISCONSIN
COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE.

ALL ELEVATIONS REFER TO NATIONAL

LEGEND:

GEODETIC DATUM OF 1929. LIGHT POLE

SIGN

SANITARY SEWERCATCH BASIN

STORM MANHOLE

STORM SEWER

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT

WATER MAIN

HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

ELECTRIC LINE

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

COMMUNICATION BOX

COMMUNICATION LINE

GAS MAIN

GAS VALVE

GAS METER

MISC. MANHOLE

POWER POLE

UG VAULT

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

GUY WIRE

FENCEGUARD POST

YARD LIGHT

FLAG POLE GUARD RAIL

FLOOD LIGHT

OVERHEAD WIRES

POST INDICATOR VALVE

SOIL BORING

MISC. HAND HOLE

WELL BUSH

HVAC

MAILBOX HAND RAIL

MON. WELL

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET 5/8" REBAR

FLOOR DRAIN

DOWNSPOUT

DRAIN TILE

SUMP HOSE

VENT PIPE

WATER MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

BASED UPON NAD 1927.

WATER CONTROL VALVE

CHISEL CROSS

"PK" NAIL

SPRINKLER HEADFIELD WORK:  09-10-2018    BY:  XXX / XXX

Part of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 7, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, being described as follows:  Beginning
on the East line of U.S. Highway 41, as said line was determined by a conveyance, Hercules Powder Company to Kenosha County, and recorded
in Volume of Deeds 183, Page 459, at a point which is 2184.5 feet South from the Northwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 7-1-22, and
81.3 feet East from the West line of said 1/4 Section, and running thence North 01°29'East along and upon the East line of the above mentioned
highway, 800 feet, to a point which is 102 feet East from the West line of said 1/4 Section; thence running due East 370 feet; thence running
Southerly, parallel with the East line of said highway, 800 feet; thence running West 370 feet to the place of beginning.  EXCEPTING THEREFROM
parcel conveyed to State of Wisconsin by Warranty Deed recorded on November 12, 1957 in Volume 469 of records on page 371 as Document
No. 388904 and more particularly described as:  The following tract of land in Kenosha County, State of Wisconsin; in Township 1 North, Range
22 East, Section 7, all that part of the West 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 lying Westerly of a line 245 feet Easterly of, measured normal to, the
following described line;  From a point in the 1/4 line of Section 12, Township 1 North, Range 21 East, 102.52 feet West of the East 1/4 corner,
thence North 01°53'57" West 409.30 feet to the point of beginning of said reference line; thence continuing North 01°53'57" West 801.51 feet
to the point of ending of said reference line.  Said land being in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin.

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
S 

TO
PO

GR
AP

HI
C 

SU
RV

EY
FO

R
BR

AN
KO

 T
U

PA
N

JA
C

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES

ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL

INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE

TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS

AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL

“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

2018.0287.01
C-2

NDB
MDE

09-17-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

120TH AVENUE (EAST FRONTAGE ROAD)

INTERSTATE 94/41 (I-
94/I-4

1)

EXISTING

BUILDING

LABEL CONTOUR
ELEVATIONS (TYP)

IDENTIFY
WETLAND
DELINEATOR
AND DATE OF
DELINEATION

91-4-122-072-0142
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE

91-4-122-072-0120
RANDALL HECKMAN

91-4-122-072-0130
WDOT

91-4-122-072-0104
WDOT

HAS THIS
PARCEL BEEN
ACQUIRED?

91-4-122-072-0110
BRANKO TUPANIAC

LABEL
PROPERTIES
(TYP)



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

100'

SCALE 1"=50'

50' 0' 50' 100'

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

FO
R

BR
AN

KO
 T

U
PA

N
JA

C
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES

ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL

INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE

TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS

AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL

“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

2018.0287.01
C-3

NDB
MDE

11-9-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

120TH AVENUE (EAST FRONTAGE ROAD)

INTERSTATE 94/41 (I-
94/I-4

1)

PROPOSED BREWERY

32,700 S.F.

PROPOSED HOTEL

18,300 S.F

OUTDOOR EVENT

SPACE

PATIO

PATIO

SITE DATAPARKING DATA

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

CHECK WITH
CD...ADDTIONAL
ISLANDS NEEDED IN
THIS PARKING AREA?

STORM WATER MANAGMENT MEETING VILLAGE ORDINANCE IS
REQUIRED.  A PRELIMINARY STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
PLAN AND DETENTION FACILITY INFORMATION SHALL BE

PROVIDED SHOWING HOW SITE WILL MEET PEAK DISCHARGE
AND WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

IDENTIFY PUMPER PAD
LOCATIONS

VERIFY WITH FIRE DEPT
THAT THIS LANE CAN
BE 24' VS 30'

LABEL
RETAINING
WALL AND
HEIGHTS,

H = 7.2'

H = 11.2'

H = 15.6'

RETAINING
WALL

H = 10.3' H = 12.7'H = 3.8'H = 5.5'
H = 8'

H = 6.5'

RETAINING
WALL

SHOW EXISTNG
OVERHEAD LINES.
THIS NEEDS TO BE
BURIED AS PART OF
PROJECT.

WDOT CONCURRENCE
AND PERMIT REQUIRED
FOR ROADWAY
IMPROVEMENTS AND
WORK WITHIN THE ROW

IS WALL CROSSING
THE PROPERTY LINE?



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

100'

SCALE 1"=50'

50' 0' 50' 100'

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

BEARING BASE: GRID NORTH, WISCONSIN
COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE.

ALL ELEVATIONS REFER TO NATIONAL

LEGEND:

GEODETIC DATUM OF 1929. LIGHT POLE

SIGN

SANITARY SEWERCATCH BASIN

STORM MANHOLE

STORM SEWER

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT

WATER MAIN

HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

ELECTRIC LINE

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

COMMUNICATION BOX

COMMUNICATION LINE

GAS MAIN

GAS VALVE

GAS METER

MISC. MANHOLE

POWER POLE

UG VAULT

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

GUY WIRE

FENCEGUARD POST

YARD LIGHT

FLAG POLE GUARD RAIL

FLOOD LIGHT

OVERHEAD WIRES

POST INDICATOR VALVE

SOIL BORING

MISC. HAND HOLE

WELL BUSH

HVAC

MAILBOX HAND RAIL

MON. WELL

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET 5/8" REBAR

FLOOR DRAIN

DOWNSPOUT

DRAIN TILE

SUMP HOSE

VENT PIPE

WATER MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

BASED UPON NAD 1927.

WATER CONTROL VALVE

CHISEL CROSS

"PK" NAIL

SPRINKLER HEADFIELD WORK:  09-10-2018    BY:  XXX / XXX

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 S
IT

E 
GR

AD
IN

G 
PL

AN
FO

R
BR

AN
KO

 T
U

PA
N

JA
C

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES

ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL

INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE

TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS

AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL

“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

2018.0287.01
C-4

NDB
MDE

10-10-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

120TH AVENUE (EAST FRONTAGE ROAD)

INTERSTATE 94/41 (I-
94/I-4

1)

PROPOSED BREWERY

FFF: 7
02.00

PROPOSED HOTEL

FFF: 7
02.00

PROPOSED

RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED

RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED

RETAINING WALL

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

PROVIDE LOCATION
OF STORM SEWERS /
INLETS.  REVISE TO
ELIMINATE MASS
SHEET FLOW (TYP)

H = 8'

H = 5.5' H = 3.8'

H = 10.3' H = 12.7' H = 15.6'

H = 11.2'

H = 7.2'

H = 6.5'

PROVIDE
DOWNSTREAM
DRAINAGE INFO
(CULVERTS,
SWALES, ETC. 
VERIFY ADEQUACY

WHAT ELEVATION IS THE
FLOODPLAIN AND DOES
IT EXTEND ONTO THIS
PROPERTY?  LABEL AND
SHOW ON PLANS



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

PROPOSED DOUBLE

LAYER OF SILT FENCE

PROPOSED DOUBLE

LAYER OF SILT FENCE

SAN MH 4.0

SAN MH 5.0

SAN MH 6.0

SAN MH 7.0

SAN MH 8.0

SAN MH 9.0

SAN MH 10.0

SAN MH 3.0

HYDRANT #2

STA 8+58.96 - 33.9' LT

4.0' - 6" LEAD @ 1.00%

ELEV CTR. LRG. CPL. 687.30

BURY DEPTH - 6.5' MIN

HYDRANT #1

STA 4+67.08 - 38.2' LT

3.0' - 6" LEAD @ 1.00%

ELEV CTR. LRG. CPL. 684.80

BURY DEPTH - 6.5' MIN

HYD #1

HYD #2

HYD #2

2018.0287.01
C-5

NDB
MDE

10-10-2018
MDE

EA
ST

 F
RO

N
TA

G
E 

RO
AD

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

 &
 W

AT
ER

 M
AI

N
 E

XT
EN

SI
O

N
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

PL
AN

 &
 P

RO
FI

LE
FO

R
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

EAST FRONTAGE ROAD (120TH AVENUE)

D=9.7'

D=9.3'

D=9.2'

D=9.2'

D=7.9'

D=9.5'

D=8.7'

D=9.5'

EXISTING PAVEMENT TO BE

REMOVED AND REPLACED IN KIND

PER VILLAGE SPECIFICATIONS

EXISTING 12"

WATER MAIN

EXISTING 12"

SANITARY SEWER

HYDRANT #3

STA 12+63.75 - 37.4' LT

20.0' - 6" LEAD @ 1.00%

ELEV CTR. LRG. CPL. 683.00

BURY DEPTH - 6.5' MIN

EXISTING 72"

CMP CULVERTS

EX SAN MH 1

RIM 683.38

I.E. 8" (N/E/W) 675.88

12-18-2018

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

ROW

ROW

ROW LINE
MISSING

EOP? LABEL

LANE LINE?

STARTING I.E.
APPEARS
INCORRECT...TOO LOW
BASED ON EXISTING
SANITARY ELEVATION.

I.E. ?

BACKFILL NEEDS TO BE
RECHECKED AND
CONCURRED WITH DOT. 
APPEARS PORTIONS OF
SANITARY WILL REQUIRE
GRANULAR

EDGE OF
SHOULDER?

CHANGE WM
TO PVC. 

WATER MAIN SIZE SHALL BE
12-INCH BASED ON
DEVELOPMENT.  DESIGN
ENGINEER SHALL VERIFY
ADQUATE FIRE PROTECTION
ADEQUACY

PROVIDE
BRANCH
VALVE

LEAD LENGHT WILL NEED
TO BE INCREASED TO
ACCOMODATE HYDRANT
VALVE PLACEMENT (more
like 6-feet)

8.4 ft 7.
9 

ft

7.8 ft

9.
3 

ft

CURSORY REVIEW COMMENTS ONLY

VERIFY;
RECORD
DRAWING
INDICATES 10"
CLAY

ACTUAL FIELD
SURVEYED
VALVE?

CONFIGURATION
MAY BE MORE
LIKE MARK UP -

SET
HYDRANTS
APROX.
15-FEET FROM
PAVEMENT
(TYP)

SHOW STORM
IN PROFILE

W
M

W
M

CONSIDER WM CLOSER TO
ROAD FOR LEADS TO FACE
EAST; RESUBMIT ALGINMENT
PLAN FOR REVIEW AFTER
ADDRESSING SANITARY
CULVERT CONFLICT

FM

FM

ADDRESS CONFLICT IF
SANITARY STARTING
ELEVATION IS
INCORRECT

RAISE WM



EAST FRONTAGE ROAD (120TH AVENUE)

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

2018.0287.01
C-6

NDB
MDE

10-10-2018
MDE

HYD #3

HYD #4

HYD #6

HYDRANT #4

STA 16+63.41 - 51.3' LT

11.0' - 6" LEAD @ 1.00%

ELEV CTR. LRG. CPL. 700.00

BURY DEPTH - 6.5' MIN

TEMPORARY HYDRANT #6

STA 22+23.72 - 97.0' LT

10.0' - 6" LEAD @ 1.00%

ELEV CTR. LRG. CPL. 691.90

BURY DEPTH - 6.5' MIN

SAN MH 10.0

SAN MH 11.0

SAN MH 12.0

SAN MH 13.0

EA
ST

 F
RO

N
TA

G
E 

RO
AD

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

 &
 W

AT
ER

 M
AI

N
 E

XT
EN

SI
O

N
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 &

 W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

PL
AN

 &
 P

RO
FI

LE
FO

R
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

D=9.5'

D=15.1'

D=17.3'

D=8.2'

HYDRANT #3

STA 12+63.75 - 37.4' LT

20.0' - 6" LEAD @ 1.00%

ELEV CTR. LRG. CPL. 683.00

BURY DEPTH - 6.5' MIN

HYDRANT #5

STA 20+63.47 - 49.1' LT

4.0' - 6" LEAD @ 1.00%

ELEV CTR. LRG. CPL. 697.10

BURY DEPTH - 6.5' MIN

HYD #5

12-18-2018

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

4.3 ft

8.
3 

ft

10
.1

 ft

9.8 ft

9.
7 

ft

TOO SHALLOW

WHY IS WM SO
DEEP?  RAISE.

TERMINATE:
VALVE,
REDUCER,
HYDRANT. 

CURSORY REVIEW COMMENTS ONLY



I
1 inch = 200 feet

0 400200 Feet

PROVIDE STREET
LIGHTS ALONG EFR

STREET
LIGHTS IN THIS
SECTION TO
BE FURTHER
EVALUATED
/DISCUSSED

KINGS AND CONVICTS
CONCEPTUAL PLAN REVIEW



 

 

SITE AND BUILDING INFORMATION 

Lot Area: ___________________ ac.  Total Impervious Surface Area: ___________ sq. ft. 

Total Landscape Area: _______________ sq.ft.   Site % of Open Space ___________% 

Number of Buildings within the development proposed:  _____________________________ 

Building #1 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#1 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #2 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#2 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #3 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#3 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #4 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#4 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #5 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#5 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #6 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#6 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #7 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#7 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #8 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#8 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #9 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#9 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #10 Area:  _________________ sq. ft.  Building#10 Height: _____________ ft. 

**If additional buildings are proposed attached a separate sheet. 

ON-SITE PARKING/TRAFFIC INFORMATION 

Total # of regular parking spaces (on-site): _____   

Total # of handicapped accessible spaces (on-site):_____ 

Total # of truck parking spaces (on-site):_______ Total # of dock doors: _____________ 

Anticipated automobile trips to and from the site (excluding trucks):  

Number of daily average trips:__________ Maximum number of daily trips:  __________ 

Anticipated truck trips to and from the site: 

Number of daily average trips:  _________ Maximum number of daily trips:  __________ 

EMPLOYMENT AND OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 

Proposed total number of full-time employees: ______________________________________ 

Proposed total number of part-time employees: ______________________________________ 

Number of shifts:  __________________ 

Hours (Open to the public): ______________________________________________________ 

Delivery hours: ________________________________________________________________ 

PUBLIC FACILITIES INFORMATION 

Check all that apply: 

□ The property is serviced by Public Sanitary Sewer  

□ The property is serviced by Public Water 

□ The building is serviced by fire sprinklers 

Maximum number of gallons/minute of water expected to be used per day is: ______________ 

Is pre-treatment being proposed for sanitary sewer discharge?  _________________________ 

29,000 gpm or gpd 
verify...this does not
seem correct as gpm nor
can system provide.
Provide: gpd (average),
gpd (maximum) and peak
gpm usage.

PROVIDE WASTE CHARATERISTICS
ALSO, DESIGN ENG SHALL CHECK
ORDINANCE AND VERIFY THAT
PLANNED DISCHARGE WILL MEET
DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS



KINGS_AND_CONVICTS
HOTEL

OVERALL_LANDSCAPE

NORTH

DOT
APPROVAL
NEEDED FOR
LANDSCAPING
WITHIN ROW

REVISED TO AVOID
TREES AND
SIGNIFICANT
LANDSCAPING OVER
WATER AND SEWER
UTILITIES (TYP)



Governing Agency Contacts 
 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE HALL 
 9915 39TH STREET 
 PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI  53158 
 OFFICE: (262) 694-1400 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 JEAN WERBIE-HARRIS, DIRECTOR PLANNING, ZONING ADMINISTRATOR       
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6718 
 EMAIL: jwerbie-harris@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
 PEGGY HERRICK 

ASSISTANT PLANNER & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6716 
 EMAIL: pherrick@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 

AARON KRAMER 
DEPUTY PLANNER & ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

 OFFICE: (262) 925-6711 
 EMAIL: akramer@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
  ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
 MATT FINEOUR, P.E. 
           VILLAGE ENGINEER 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6778 
 EMAIL: mfineour@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
 KURT DAVIDSEN, P.E. 

ASSISTANT VILLAGE ENGINEER 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6728 
 EMAIL: kdavidsen@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 
  PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 JOHN STEINBRINK, JR., P.E.  
 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 

ROGER PRANGE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 8600 GREEN BAY ROAD 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6768 
           EMAIL: jsteinbrink@pleasantprairiewi.gov 

 
 STEVE WLAHOVICH 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 
 OFFICE: (262) 925-6767 
 EMAIL: swlahovich@pleasantprairiewi.gov  
 
  

mailto:jwerbie-harris@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:pherrick@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:akramer@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:mfineour@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:kdavidsen@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:jsteinbrink@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:swlahovich@pleasantprairiewi.gov


BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT 
 SANDRO PEREZ 

BUILDING INSPECTION SUPERINTENDENT  
 OFFICE: (262) 694-9304 
 DIRECT: (262) 925-6722 
 EMAIL: sperez@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 

DONALD KOEHNE 
BUILDING INSPECTOR 
OFFICE:  (262) 694-9304 
EMAIL:  dkoehne@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 
MICHAEL KAPRELIAN 
BUILDING INSPECTOR 
OFFICE: (262) 694-9304 
EMAIL:  mkaprelian@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 

FIRE & RESCUE DEPARTMENT  
 CRAIG ROEPKE,  
 CHIEF OF FIRE & RESCUE 
 8044 88TH AVENUE 
 OFFICE: (262) 694-8027  
 EMAIL: croepke@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
 
 AARON LONGRIE 
 ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF  
 OFFICE: (262) 694-8027 
 EMAIL: alongrie@pleasantprairiewi.gov 

 

Public Utility Contacts 
 
AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY   

BRIAN MCGEE 
 OFFICE: (262) 506-68955 
 EMAIL: bmcgee@atcllc.com 

EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 972-5341 
 
WISCONSIN DOT 
 ART BAUMANN 
 TRAFFIC OPERATIONS ENGINEER 
 OFFICE: (262) 548-6707 
 EMAIL: art.baumann@dot.wi.gov 
  

KEVIN KOEHNKE, P.E. 
PERMITS COORDINATOR 

 OFFICE: (262) 548-5891  
 EMAIL: kevin.koehnke@dot.wi.gov  
 
  

mailto:sperez@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:dkoehne@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:mkaprelian@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:croepke@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:alongrie@pleasantprairiewi.gov
mailto:art.baumann@dot.wi.gov
mailto:kevin.koehnke@dot.wi.gov


AT&T 
 MIKE TOYEK 
 OFFICE: (262) 636-0549 
 EMAIL: mt1734@att.com  
 
TDS TELECOM 
 SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN 
 OFFICE: (877) 483-7142 
 
TIME WARNER CABLE/SPECTRUM 
 STEVE CRAMER 
 UTILITY COORDINATOR 
 OFFICE: (414) 277-4045 
 EMAIL: steve.cramer@twcable.com  

EMERGENCY NUMBER:  (800) 627-2288 
 
WEC ENERGY GROUP 

JOEL BUROW 
 CEM MANAGER 
 OFFICE: (414) 221-3192 

EMAIL: joel.burrow@wecenergygroup.com 
 

WE-ENERGIES 
ALLIE KLAWINSKI 
SR. SERVICE MANAGER 
OFFICE: (262) 552-3227 
EMAIL: allie.klawinski@we-energies.com 
 
MICHAEL BAKER 
CUSTOMER SERVICE MANAGER 
OFFICE: (262) 886-7041 
EMAIL: michael.baker@we-energies.com 
 
HUSSAIN BIYAWERWALA 
SENIOR ENGINEER 
OFFICE: (262) 886-7074 
EMAIL: hussain.biyawerwala@we-energies.com 
 
BRANDON ERTS 
GAS ENGINEERING 
OFFICE: (414) 221-3654 
EMAIL: Brandon.erts@we-energies.com 
 

 NATURAL GAS EMERGENCY: (800) 261-5325  
 

ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY:  (800) 662-4797  

 
  

mailto:mt1734@att.com
mailto:steve.cramer@twcable.com
mailto:joel.burrow@wecenergygroup.com
mailto:allie.klawinski@we-energies.com
mailto:michael.baker@we-energies.com
mailto:hussain.biyawerwala@we-energies.com
mailto:Brandon.erts@we-energies.com


WI Department Of Natural Resources 
 
 TRAVIS SCHROEDER  

WATER MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST  
 OFFICE: (262) 574-2171 
 EMAIL: travis.schroeder@wisconsin.gov 
 

PETER WOOD, P.E. 
 WATER RESOURCES ENGINEER  
 OFFICE: (262) 884-2360 
 EMAIL: peter.wood@wisconsin.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rev 11-2018 

mailto:peter.wood@wisconsin.gov










 

 

8044 88th Avenue  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  Phone 262.694.8027  Fax 262.697.1901  pleasantprairiewi.gov 

 

Office of the Chief of Fire & Rescue  
Craig Roepke  

 
 
 
 

VILLAGE STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 

FROM:  Craig Roepke, Chief Fire & Rescue 

CC:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 

SUBJECT: Fire Department review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Permit/Trakit#: DEV1812-006 

DATE:  January 15, 2019 

 

These are Comments/Reviews for the conceptual plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts. 

The Fire and Rescue Department will be responsible for providing fire prevention inspections of this facility, twice 
annually. Based on the information and plans submitted, the Fire & Rescue Department have the following 
comments regarding the project: 

Overall 

1. Each building shall have its own review for fire detection and suppression systems as well as the 
comments within this overall document. 

2. Review proposed on-site hydrant placement and FDC for hotel. This is preliminary. Cursory  

3. Brewery FDC placement needs to be discussed based on mechanical/riser room location. 

4. At least one elevator at each building must meet size requirements (See Elevator requirement) 

5. Hose valves/standpipes will be required for both buildings 

6. Hotel shall require an evaluation for a Public safety radio coverage system. 

7. Please reference additional comments below 

 
Distribution of Comments: the person who obtains the building permit to all contractors and subcontractors affected by 
this document shall distribute copies of these comments. This document outlines critical times and deadlines. All recipients 
of this document must become familiar with the contents. 

AHJ: The Authority Having Jurisdiction is the Village of Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department. 

Planned Unit Development: Should this project fall under a zoning PUD agreement or other negotiated provisions 
by the Village of Pleasant Prairie, these comments and requirements may supersede and be more stringent than 
other State or building related rules or code sets. 

Verbal Discussion: Any verbal discussions regarding variations to the comments within this document shall be 
confirmed in writing by both the AHJ and the responsible agent. Failure to secure written confirmation shall nullify 
any verbal variance. 

Conflicts: In the event a conflict in code(s) is identified, or a conflict with the insurance carrier criteria occurs, the 
more stringent shall apply.  In the event this conflicts with any codes adopted by the State of Wisconsin, the owner 
must petition the State directly for a variance.  The Owner must demonstrate that they will provide materials or 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 2 | 10 
 

design equivalent to the code or that they will exceed the code when petitioning the State of Wisconsin and/or the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie where applicable. 

Fire Safety System Plans:  such as fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans, will need to be submitted to the State of 
Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services and also to this fire department for review. No 
installation of any fire protection system is allowed until a satisfactory review is obtained from both departments.  

FIRE ALARM AND SPRINKLER PLANS ARE A SEPARATE SUBMITTAL TO THE FIRE DEPARTMENT. 
DUE TO CONSTRUCTION AND TIME CONSTAINTS FIRE PROTECTION SUBMITTALS MAY AND ARE TYPICALLY 

BROKEN INTO AN UNDERGROUND SUBMITTAL AND AN ABOVE GROUND SUBMITTAL. 

Pre-Construction Meeting:  A pre-construction meeting may take place with the general contractor, the fire 
protection contractor, the Fire and Rescue Department, Village staff, and any other sub-contractor prior to the 
start of any project construction. 

 

1. Contact Information: For questions on the information and comments included within this document please 
use the following information: 

Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue Department 
   8044-88th Avenue 
   Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
   262.694.8027 
   firerescue@pleasantprairiewi.gov 
   Attn: Laurie Waldenstrom 

2. Site Access: 
a. Access shall be provided around the perimeter of the site for Fire Department apparatus, and must 

comply with the State of Wisconsin and the International Building Code, 2015 edition.  

b. A minimum wall-to-wall turning radius of 45’-0” shall be allowed for apparatus movement.   

c. All entrances from public streets, as well as road and driveways around the proposed building shall be a 
minimum of 30 feet wide. 

d. All roadways and fire lanes must be unobstructed and not used any part as a parking area for automobiles, 
semi-trucks or trailers. Fire lanes shall comprise of a hard and maintainable surface. 

e. All exterior exit pathways as well as access to the Fire Pump room shall have a hard surface, leading to a 
hard surface. This includes all exit doors from the facility. These pathways shall be maintained and accessible 
at all times. 

f. An exterior personnel door shall be located in close proximity to each fire sprinkler riser. 

g. There shall be Knox padlocks, Knox key switches, or other AHJ approved devices on all gates on site.  
The Fire & Rescue Department will review the proper placement and operation of the Knox system 
locks. 

3. Gates / Barriers:  

a. Any gates or barriers that are employed or installed on a private roadway or access shall have a 
minimum width clearance of sixteen (16) feet. Builder/developer to identify any other gate widths 
and obtain written AHJ approval. 

b. Gates or barriers that are locked must have the ability for the AHJ to remove, unlock or disable either 
manually or automatically the securing mechanism to open or raise the gate or barrier. 
Builder/developer to identify methodology. 

c. Any barrier or gate that raises vertically at a pivot point to allow for passage must provide for at least 
90 degrees of clearance from the ground to the bottom of the gate or barrier.  

d. Gates or barriers that raise vertically shall have a minimum vertical clearance of 13’6”.  

e. There shall be a manufacture endorsed mechanism or process to secure the gate or barrier in the 
open position without utilizing personnel to maintain an open condition.  

mailto:firerescue@pleasantprairiewi.gov


Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 3 | 10 
 

f. The gate or barrier access on premise shall be readily identifiable to the AHJ.  

4. Combination Water Sizing Confirmation: The owner shall provide a letter from the sprinkler designer affirming that 
the combination water main is sized appropriately for both domestic use and fire sprinkler protection demand. This 
will typically include the designer’s license stamp on the document. 

5. Compliance: A letter shall be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department prior to receiving a building permit, stating 
that the project will comply with all requirements addressed within this document. This document shall be received 
prior to holding any pre-construction meeting. 

6. Required Licenses:  A Wisconsin licensed fire protection contractor and/or sprinkler fitter must install any and all 
dedicated fire protection underground fire mains and aboveground fire protection.   

7. Insurance Carrier: The Owner of this project shall submit to the insurance carrier for review the plans for both 
underground water distribution and fire protection prior to construction. The Fire & Rescue Department shall receive 
a copy of the comments when plans are submitted for review. 

8. Review and Comments: the Fire Department will review and comment on the following areas outlined below. 

 A. Site and Operational Permits 

1. Site accessibility (Plans provided do not specific clearances or distances) 

2. Fire Pump Location  

3. Pumper Pad  

4. Fire hydrant spacing 

 B. Conditional Use and Operational  
1. Standpipe outlet locations . 
2. Fire alarm pull stations  
3. Emergency and Exit Lighting  
4. Fire extinguishers 

9. Plan Review, Permits and Fees 

a. The plans for the fire protection underground, aboveground and fire alarm system shall be submitted 
for review a minimum of four (4) weeks before installation is scheduled to begin. 

b. The Village will use an independent fire safety consultant for review of all fire protection plans 
submitted. 

c. An approved AHJ review must be completed before any permits will be issued and before 
construction can begin. 

d. A submittal is not considered permitted or an approved plan. 

e. Acquiring WI State approved plans is not acceptable to bypass the AHJ permit process. 

10. Permit fees: must be paid at time of submission for review. Work cannot begin until all permits have been issued. A 
typical review turnaround is four weeks 

The following fees and permits are generated directly from the Fire & Rescue Department. 

a. Bulk water Usage 
b. Fire Protection Plans for Underground and Aboveground 
c. Fire Alarm System Plans 
d. Kitchen Hood Systems Plans 
NOTE: Permits are required from the Fire & Rescue Department for the installation of water main in addition to any 
permits required by other Village of Pleasant Prairie Departments. 

11. Occupancy: 

a. All fire and life safety requirements must be in place and operational prior to any building being occupied. 

b. No occupancy inspections shall be scheduled until all life-safety systems are complete. 

c. Key life safety systems include: Fire sprinkler system, Fire alarm system, Fire extinguishers, Emergency 
Lighting, and any additional requirements determined by both the Fire Department and the Village Building 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 4 | 10 
 

inspection department. 

d. AEDs as required are in place. 

e. Building access keys and related interior access methods must be in place. 

12. Hazardous Occupancies: Should there be identified hazard occupancies with this project, the Fire & Rescue 
Department will need more than the typical four week time period to review potential Hazardous 
Occupancies. The owner must contact the Fire & Rescue Department as soon as possible to begin the review 
process. 

13. Exterior Doors: All outside doors must have access to the interior. Such as a lock and handle provided at each door.  

14. AED: The owner may be required to acquire and install one or more public access Automatic External 
Defibrillator (AED) onsite for employee and public use in the event of a sudden cardiac arrest. It is suggested 
that during the construction phase that a location(s) be identified so that options for recessed cabinets may be 
determined. 

15. Storage:  Maximum height, width and aisle ways and egress pathways must be maintained and will be 
enforced.  The same concerns apply to the storage of quantities of combustibles (plastics and cardboard) and 
other storage of flammable liquids or chemicals must also be properly identified, placarded and stored. 

16. Elevators:  

a. If applicable, must comply with Village of Pleasant Prairie Ordinance 180-20, including acceptable 
minimum size and emergency notification. 

b. Review the proper sizing requirements with the fire department early in the planning process. 

c. Elevator emergency phone notification shall dial the Pleasant Prairie Dispatch emergency number or 
262.694.1402  

d. Provide copy of State inspection approval to use documents to AHJ. 

e. In addition to the required “Drop-key” in the elevator key box, provide two additional “drop-keys” 
appropriate for the elevator manufacturer type to be delivered to the AHJ as part of the access key 
requirement. 

f. Ensure that additional elevator “FEK01” keys are available for Knox Box placement for use in 
accessing the required elevator wall mounted key box as reference in WI SPS 318.1708(10)(b) 

17. Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall identify the area within the building that can be used as a “severe 
weather shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. That area will be identified with 
signage. 

18. Door Numbering: Each exterior door shall be sequentially numbered. 

a. Shall consist of a 4” reflective number in a color that is contrasting to the door color. 

b. Numbering shall be in an increasing sequence and located in the upper right-hand portion of the 
door. 

c. The starting numbering point shall be determined in the field and approved by the AHJ. 

d. Door numbering shall also be identified in some manner on the interior. 

19. Door numbering – Internal: in multi-unit dwelling buildings a numbering scheme shall be devised so that 
locations of a room are intuitively expected. Each room shall have a unique number assignment. 

20. On Premise Secure Key System:  Knox Company Rapid Entry System, “Knox Boxes” shall be provided for the 
building. The Knox Boxes shall be Model 4400. Two sets of all keys (Master, fire alarm pull station, 
annunciator, elevator, etc.) shall be placed within the box, as well as a copy of the pre-fire plan.   

21. Fire Extinguishers:  Shall meet NFPA 10 (Portable Fire Extinguishers) for the specific use of the building and be 
in sufficient number.  Final approval, of fire extinguisher locations and quantity, will not be given until 
occupancy is taken, to see how a tenant furnishes the space.  The company providing the fire extinguishers 
shall submit a letter to the Fire and Rescue Department stating the locations and size of the extinguishers are 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 5 | 10 
 

in compliance with NFPA 10. 

22. Emergency and Exit Lighting:  Exit and Emergency Lighting shall be provided and shall have battery backup. 
Combination units are acceptable and recommended.  An Emergency Generator eliminates the need for 
battery backup.  These circuits shall be clearly labeled.  

23. Sprinkler System: 

a. The building shall be equipped with an “automatic fire sprinkler system”.  The systems shall be 
designed and constructed to the current printed edition of NFPA 13, Automatic Fire Sprinklers and the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie Ordinance 180-16, Automatic Fire Sprinklers. Confirm NFPA edition with the 
Fire Department prior to system design. 

b. Risers shall be durably labeled with the system or riser identification. 

c. Outside/exterior Riser Control Valves: Where installed, outside control valves shall be durably labeled 
with the associated system or riser that it controls. Any outside valves such as PIVs or OS&Y valves 
shall be locked with chain and/or commercially breakable locks. 

d. Hydrant flow test values for sprinkler design purposes shall be no older than one year from the above 
ground fire submittal date. 

24. The following information as applicable, must be submitted with the sprinkler plans for review: 

 

Building height Number of stories/floors Mezzanines Elevators 

Hazard class Commodity Class Exterior storage Fire protection 

 
25. Fire Hydrants:  Fire hydrants shall meet the Village of Pleasant Prairie hydrant specification.  Fire hydrants 

shall be spaced no more than 350 feet apart around the perimeter of the building, per Village Ordinance §180-
16.  As many hydrants as possible shall be supplied directly by municipal water.  The distance from the finished 
grade line to the lowest discharge shall be no less than 18 inches and no more than 23 inches. 

26. Fire Protection Loop: As applicable for building type or unless otherwise approved in writing by the AHJ, a fire 
protection (hydrant) loop shall be required as part of the overall fire protection systems as outlined in §180-
16(K)(5).  

27. Fire Hydrant Acceptance: This project will include the installation of water mains for domestic and fire 
protection use. Prior to the fire sprinkler system connection to any new water mains (including water mains, 
fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building and risers) must be hydrostatically tested flushed according to 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) code standard 24 and witnessed by the Fire Chief or designee.  

28. Fire hydrant / water main flushing: can be disruptive to the job site and requires significant coordination of all 
sub-contractors by the General Contractor. Nonetheless flushing is an essential part of assuring public safety.  
The General Contractor is highly encouraged to coordinate the flushing of all new water mains, fire hydrants, 
laterals leading to the building and risers with both the sub-contractors responsible, the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie Engineering Department, Fire & Rescue Department and the Water Utility Department, prior to seeking 
a ‘clean water sample’ on this site.  

29. Pumper Pad:   

a. A municipally fed fire hydrant and fire department connection (FDC) combination is defined to be a 
“pumper pad”. 

b. The FDC shall comprise of a 30 degree angled 5” Storz connection unless otherwise approved by the 
fire department in writing. 

c. Both the hydrant and FDC shall between 18” and 23” above finished grade as a pair. 

d. There shall be dedicated space for a fire engine to have unobstructed access to the pumper pad. 

e. Both the Fire Department Sprinkler connection and the fire hydrant shall be installed remote from 
the building and located a minimum distance from the building equal to the highest wall. Any 
variances shall be approved by the AHJ in writing. 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 6 | 10 
 

f. The pumper pad shall be free of vegetation, plant, shrubs, or other obstructions at least 5 feet on 
each side. 

g. The fire hydrant shall be located no more than five (5) feet from the roadway and the Fire 
Department sprinkler connection shall be placed no more than five (5) feet from the fire hydrant. 

h. The Fire Department connection shall be constructed along with an underground drain with access 
for inspection. In cases where there is an accessible basement, the FDC drip/valve assembly may be 
located inside the basement. Should this situation present itself, written AHJ approval shall be 
required to utilize this arrangement. 

i. The area around the pumper pad shall be comprised of a hard surface such as asphalt or concrete. 

j. The pumper pad area shall have some form of posted signage or painted pavement designation 
indicating no parking or obstructions in that area. 

k. Refer to the Village specification drawing for the pumper pad design. 

30. Bollards:   

a. Shall be placed near fire hydrants, remote post indicator valves (PIV) and Fire Department 
connection(s) that are subject to damage. 

b. Bollards shall be six (6) inches in diameter. Bollards shall not obstruct charged fire hoses. 

c. It is recommended that the Fire Department approve the location of the bollard(s) before final 
placement is made.  

31. Standpipes: 

a. Where required, standpipes/hose valves shall be wet and placed adjacent to all exterior exit doors, 
same side as the door handle/knob. Village Ordinance 180.16 (I). 

b. The building protection system shall be equipped with standpipes that shall consist of 2-½ inch NST 
valve, capable of delivering 250 GPM, at 75 PSI measured at the standpipe valve.   

c. No 1-1/2” cap reductions are required. 

32. Pump Room / Riser Room Door:  

a. The exterior door that accesses either the fire pump or riser room shall be labeled in the following 
manner outlined below 

i. At the center upper 1/3 of the door, utilizing 4” reflective RED or WHITE block lettering 
contrasting to the door color, with the following title. 

ii. “FIRE PUMP ROOM” or “FIRE RISER ROOM”, respective for the type of existing room. 

b. This door shall have a Knox-Box installed adjacent to the door. The specific location heights and 
details are documented in the “Fire Department – Appendix A” attachment. 

33. MSDS / SDS Station:  

a. Within the pump or riser room locate a (SDS) Safety Data Sheet Station in a conspicuous and 
accessible location. The station shall be labelled so to be readily identified. 

b. Products used for maintenance, production or stored within the facility shall have their SDS 
information located at this SDS station. 

c. The SDS information shall be organized in such manner that access to product information is intuitive. 

d. The contents of the SDS station shall be updated and/or reviewed at least annually by the building 
owner or active tenant. A dated record log shall be kept with the SDS station indicating such review. 

34. Strobe Light: 

a. All strobe lights required below shall meet Village specifications as found in section 180-16(m) of the 
Sprinkler Ordinance.  The lens color shall be RED. 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 7 | 10 
 

b. A strobe light and 10” dome bell shall be provided, visible from the pumper pad to indicate a 
waterflow alarm condition. 

c. If the building has a fire pump, an additional strobe light shall be required and installed adjacent to 
the waterflow alarm and activated when the fire pump is running. 

d. Both notification devices above (b & c) shall be labeled appropriately as “WATERFLOW” and “PUMP 
RUN” below the respective devices. In instances where only one strobe is required, no signage is 
required. 

e. A strobe light shall be provided and installed vertically at each riser location on the exterior of the 
building. No bell or signage is required. In instances where two or more risers are located at one 
location, only one exterior strobe is required. The strobe shall activate on any one riser waterflow. 

f. A separate “Appendix A” document is available to provide visual detail supporting the above 
requirements. 

35. Fire Alarm System:  There shall be a full function remote annunciator installed.  Utilizing a fire pull station, 
sprinkler water flow, or any other fire detection device that maybe installed in this building shall activate the 
internal fire alarm system. The systems shall be designed and constructed to the current printed edition of 
NFPA 72. Confirm NFPA edition with the Fire Department prior to system design 

a. Installation: Installation of the Fire Alarm System shall be in accordance with NFPA 70 – The National 
Electrical Code and applicable local building codes and practices. 

b. Manual Fire Alarm Pull Stations:  Shall be located at a minimum, immediately adjacent to each 
exterior door. Any additional exterior doors will be required to meet this requirement. The pull 
station shall not be placed in the area of the door, but immediately adjacent to the door jamb. 

c. Pull Stations and Audiovisual Alarms:  Shall be installed per ADA requirements. 

d. Smoke and Heat Detection:  Shall be installed as required. 

e. Tamper Switches:  Tamper switches shall be placed on all sprinkler valves and be identified on the 
annunciator panel. 

f. PIV & Exterior Valves: Shall be monitored by the Fire Alarm system. 

g. Strobe & Bell: Strobe light and Bell devices shall be identified and documented on the submitted Fire 
Alarm plan submittal. It is understood that typically this work is completed by the electrical 
contractor and not part of the alarm plan per say.  

h. Duct Detectors: Duct detectors shall be programmed as a Supervisory Alarm, not as an alarm 
condition unless pre-approved by the AHJ. 

i. Fire Alarm Plans Location:  There shall be a designated location for a set of as-built fire alarm plans 
near the FACP per NFPA 72.   

j. FACP Nomenclature: Confirmation of nomenclature shall be discussed between the Fire Department 
and the fire alarm program technician prior to any inspections. 

k. Initiating Devices Labeling: All initiating devices e.g.: pull stations, smoke detectors, tampers, etc 
shall be labeled with the FA device number that matches the system nomenclature programmed. The 
font/letters shall be at least 14pt and of such size that they are visible based on accessibility to the 
device. (e.g.: ceiling initiating devices may require a larger font size) 

l. Annunciator Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type shall be approved by the AHJ. 
The panel shall identify a fire sprinkler water flow by riser, and the specific locations of the fire alarm 
pull stations and any other fire detection devices that may be installed in this building. 

m. Transmission of Fire Alarms.  The method of transmission to central station shall be documented 
within the submittal and approved by the AHJ.  (e.g. RF Radio/Mesh network, cellular, VOIP, MFVN, 
or other approved technologies allowed by code.) 

n. FACP Main Panel: There will be one main fire alarm panel within a building. The system will not be 
split into two or multiple fire alarm panels interconnected together. (Example: West wing is one 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 8 | 10 
 

panel, East wing is a different panel) 

o. FACP Location: The main fire alarm panel shall be located in the fire pump or riser room. Any other 
location shall be identified in advance and in writing. The AHJ shall review and any deviation must be 
conveyed in writing by the AHJ prior to any submitted plans or construction. 

p. Fire Alarm Map: An “as-is” drawing of the fire alarm system shall be provided and posted in the riser 
or pump room of the building. The drawing shall have at minimum, the initiating device numbers, 
locations, and door numbering scheme on the posted drawing. Size of the drawing to be discussed 
with the fire department. 

q. Central Station:  The Fire Alarm Control Panel shall transmit all fire alarm, tamper, trouble and 
supervisory signals to a central station that is certified by Underwriters Laboratories (UL) and/or 
Factory Mutual (FM) and approved by the Fire & Rescue Department. The owner shall provide such 
documentation for approval. It is recommended that the owner consult with the Fire & Rescue 
Department prior to signing any contracts with the Central station. 

Fire:   Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
Medical:   Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
Phone numbers 
Emergency:   (262) 694-1402 
Non-emergency:  (262) 694-7105 
Business:  (262) 694-8027 

 

36. All Hazards Notification System:  Should the owner or tenant plan on the installation of an in-building all hazards 
notification system (fire, weather, active threat, etc), the fire department shall be made aware and the system shall 
meet all NFPA 72 requirements. 

 

37. Public Safety Radio Coverage: Provide for adequate radio coverage to public safety service workers, including but not 
limited to firefighters, and law enforcement officers. For purpose of this section, adequate radio coverage shall 
include all of the following: 

 
a) a minimum signal strength of -101 dBm available in 95% of the area of each floor of the building when 

transmitted from the Public Safety Radio Communications System: and 
 

b) A minimum signal strength of -101 dBm received at the Public Safety Radio Communications System when 
transmitted from 95% of the area of each floor of the building, via portable radio with public safety 
microphone. 
 

c) Channel Performance Criterion (CPC):  CPC is the minimum performance level in a faded channel, per TSB-
88, clause 4.2.  TSB-88 is a “Telecommunications Systems Bulletin” published by the TIA, 
Telecommunications Industry Association.  The performance level is rated using “Delivered Audio 
Quality”.  Industry standard DAQ definitions are shown in Table 1. 
 

d) DAQ level of three (3) is the minimum performance level which shall be attainable by public safety radio 
systems in 95% of the area of each floor of a building, via portable radio with public safety microphone 

 
Table 1 - Delivered Audio Quality Definitions 
 

DAQ Delivered 
Audio Quality 

Subjective Performance Description 

1 Unusable, speech present but unreadable. 

2 
Understandable with considerable effort. Frequent repetition due 
to noise / distortion. 

3 
Speech understandable with slight effort.  Occasional repetition 
required due to noise / distortion. 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 9 | 10 
 

3.5 
Speech understandable with repetition only rarely required.  Some 
noise / distortion. 

4 Speech easily understood.  Occasional noise / distortion. 

4.5 Speech easily understood.  Infrequent noise / distortion. 

5 Speech easily understood. 

 
e) The frequency range which must be supported shall be 151.0000 to 160.0000 MHz, in both digital and 

analog signals. 
 
Testing Procedures: 

A. Initial Tests.  Public safety employees or their designees will perform initial tests.  A Certificate of 
Occupancy shall not be issued to any new structure if the building fails to comply with this section.  

B. Annual Tests.  Fire Department personnel in conjunction with inspection procedures will conduct 
annual tests. 

 
Amplification Systems Allowed 
1. Buildings and structures which cannot independently support the required level of radio coverage shall be 

equipped with any of the following in order to achieve the required adequate radio coverage: a radiating 
cable system or an internal multiple antenna system with or without FCC type accepted signal booster 
amplifiers as needed. The installation of equipment as indicated above cannot be detrimental to the 
operation of the Public Safety Radio System.  

 
2. In the event that a signal booster is employed it shall meet the following minimum requirements: 

a. be fully encased within a dust resistant case; 
b. be contained in a National Electrical Manufacturer’s Association (NEMA) 4-type waterproof cabinet; 
c. battery systems used for the emergency power source shall be contained in a NEMA 4-type 

waterproof cabinet; 
d. the signal booster system and battery system shall be electrically supervised and monitored by a 

supervisory service, or shall sound an audible signal at a constantly attended location; 
e. Have FCC certification prior to installation. 

 
Secondary Power 
Emergency responder radio coverage systems shall be provided with an approved secondary source of power 
conforming to NFPA 72. The secondary power supply shall be capable of operating the emergency responder 
radio coverage system for a period of at least twenty-four (24) hours. When primary power is lost, the power 
supply to the emergency responder radio coverage system shall automatically transfer to the secondary 
power supply. 
 
Field Testing 
Fire Department personnel, after providing reasonable notice to the owner or their representative, shall have 
the right to enter onto the property to conduct field-testing to be certain the required level of radio coverage 
is present. 
 

38. Final Inspection:  The General Contractor shall be responsible to provide or confirm from the MEPs that the 
following system related documents have been delivered to the AHJ throughout the project and before a final 
occupancy scheduled:  

a. 100% Completion Letters – Shall be delivered on company letterhead and stamped as applicable. Letters 
shall include at minimum, the project name, address, and scope of work description, along with an 
authorized signatory of the organization. 

a. The fire protection contractor shall provide the AHJ with a letter (upon completion of the 
sprinkler work) stating the sprinkler system, or portion thereof, is “100% operational and built 
according to the design”, Village Ordinance, 180-16 N if modifications are made to the system. 



Review of Conceptual Plans for Hyatt Place and Kings and Convicts 

Page 10 | 10 
 

b. The fire alarm contractor shall provide the AHJ with a letter (upon completion of the fire alarm 
work) stating the fire alarm system, or portion thereof, is “100% operational and built according 
to the design” if modifications are made to the system. 

b. Contract copy with fire alarm central monitoring station. 

c. UL and/or FM certificate(s) for the contracted fire alarm central monitoring station. 

d. Fire protection underground flushing documents. 

e. Underground and fire sprinkler (Wet & Dry) hydrostatic test certificates. 

f. Clean Agent System documentation as applicable. 

g. Copies of the fire sprinkler operational test certificates. 

h. Copies of the fire alarm test documents. – Record of Completion 

i. Copies of other related system documents such as, hood/duct, smoke, etc… 

j. The Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue Department shall have all information needed for our pre-fire plan 
prior to occupancy. 

k. Provide in an electronic PDF format, floor plans and fire protection (Sprinkler/Fire Alarm) plans for the 
building in an as-built condition. 

l. Maps of the fire alarm and fire sprinkler system shall be placed in the fire pump room, near the fire alarm control 
panel; the maps shall be hung on the wall. Size and configuration to be determined 

m. AED is in place at such time that the occupancy inspection is conducted. 

n. A copy of the Emergency Plan must be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department before occupancy. 



 



9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.925.6722    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com

Office of the Building Inspection Superintendent 
Sandro Perez

Village Staff Memorandum

To:               Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director

From:          Sandro Perez, Building Inspection Superintendent

Subject:       Knights & Convits

Date:            January 17, 2019

1. Building Inspection Department information:
Hours:  Mon-Fri, 8am-5pm.
Phone# 262-694-9304
Email: buildinginspection@plprairiewi.com

2. Permit applications can be found online at pleasantprairieonline.com 

3. Inspections are performed Mon- Fri 9am-4pm except electrical inspections; those are only Tue 
& Thu mornings. 48hr notice is required to schedule an inspection. Please note you must call 
and speak with a Building Inspection Department representative a voicemail or email will not 
constitute an inspection please plan accordingly. Final occupancy inspections require 
coordination with multiple departments and staff members there for a minimum of 72 hour 
notice is required. Any re-inspection fees due must be paid prior to scheduling a re-inspection.

4. All contractors requiring permits shall not commence work until permit issuance.

5. We are currently inspecting to the 2015 IBC, IEBC, IMC, IECC, IFGC, 2009 ANSI A117.1, 
2017 NEC and WI. Plumbing code SPS 381-386.

6. Please submit all applicable plans (Building, HVAC, Fire Suppression, Fire Detection, 
Conveyance, Plumbing, etc.) to the state for review (DSPS/DHS). Please be aware state 
plumbing plan review has a long lead time, plan accordingly. 

7. Building Inspection Department will not issue permits until we receive the applicable state 
approval letter and plans. 

8. All state approved drawing must be available at job site for inspector review during 
inspections.

9. Please submit emergency egress lighting plan and energy compliance worksheets form SBD 
10512 to Building Inspection Department prior to issuance of building permit. 

10. Fire alarm systems require two permits from both the Fire Department and Building Inspection 
Department.

mailto:buildinginspection@plprairiewi.com


9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.925.6722    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com

11. Any building fire protection loop and combination water main will require approval by the Fire 
Department prior to issuance of exterior plumbing permit. 

12. Fire alarm systems and fire protection loops will require inspections by both the Fire 
Department and Building Inspection Department.

13. Any tradesmen requiring state license will be “carded” on the jobsite for compliance.

14. All equipment must be “LISTED” by a nationally recognized testing laboratory.

15. All equipment, materials, etc. must be rated for the environment in which they will be used.

16. Please contact me with any questions on permitting and/or plan submittal.

17. Village of Pleasant Prairie recommends all exterior lighting to be LED, 5000K and “Dark Sky” 
compliant. No spillover of lighting beyond lot lines is allowed.

18. Provide adequate accessible parking per Ch.11 of the 2015 IBC.



 

MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN APPLICATION 

For Commercial and Industrial Projects 

 
 

 
Name of Business: ______________________________________________________________ 

Site Address:_________________________________________________ Suite #: ___________ 

Tax Parcel Number: ______________________________________________________________ 

Zoning District(s): _______________________________________________________________ 

Name of Development:  ___________________________________________________________ 

Estimate Start date:  _____________  Estimate Completion Date of entire project: ____________ 

Detailed Description of the Proposed Project and Use:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Detailed Description of any known Company/Tenants:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Select All that Apply 

□ The Development will be constructed in _____ phase(s) 

□ The Development abuts or adjoins State Trunk Highway _________________________ 

□ The Development abuts or adjoins County Trunk Highway ________________________ 

□ The Development abuts the Kenosha County Bike Trail 

 

 



 

 

SITE AND BUILDING INFORMATION 

Lot Area: ___________________ ac.  Total Impervious Surface Area: ___________ sq. ft. 

Total Landscape Area: _______________ sq.ft.   Site % of Open Space ___________% 

Number of Buildings within the development proposed:  _____________________________ 

Building #1 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#1 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #2 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#2 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #3 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#3 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #4 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#4 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #5 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#5 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #6 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#6 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #7 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#7 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #8 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#8 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #9 Area:  __________________ sq. ft.  Building#9 Height: ______________ ft. 

Building #10 Area:  _________________ sq. ft.  Building#10 Height: _____________ ft. 

**If additional buildings are proposed attached a separate sheet. 

ON-SITE PARKING/TRAFFIC INFORMATION 

Total # of regular parking spaces (on-site): _____   

Total # of handicapped accessible spaces (on-site):_____ 

Total # of truck parking spaces (on-site):_______ Total # of dock doors: _____________ 

Anticipated automobile trips to and from the site (excluding trucks):  

Number of daily average trips:__________ Maximum number of daily trips:  __________ 

Anticipated truck trips to and from the site: 

Number of daily average trips:  _________ Maximum number of daily trips:  __________ 

EMPLOYMENT AND OPERATIONAL INFORMATION 

Proposed total number of full-time employees: ______________________________________ 

Proposed total number of part-time employees: ______________________________________ 

Number of shifts:  __________________ 

Hours (Open to the public): ______________________________________________________ 

Delivery hours: ________________________________________________________________ 

PUBLIC FACILITIES INFORMATION 

Check all that apply: 

□ The property is serviced by Public Sanitary Sewer  

□ The property is serviced by Public Water 

□ The building is serviced by fire sprinklers 

Maximum number of gallons/minute of water expected to be used per day is: ______________ 

Is pre-treatment being proposed for sanitary sewer discharge?  _________________________ 



 

 

If property is zoned M-1, M-2 or M-5 then the following shall be completed: 

Occupancy Type pursuant to the Use and Occupancy Classification specified in Chapter 3 of the 2006 

International Building Code (2006 IBC). Include all that apply and associate square footage for each 

classification: 
 

□ Factory Group F-1 (Moderate-hazard) __________________sq. ft. 

□ Factory Group F-2 (Low-hazard)   sq. ft. 

□ Storage Group S-1 (Moderate-hazard)   sq. ft. 

□ Storage Group S-2 (Low-hazard)   sq. ft. 

□ Business Group B   sq. ft. 

□ High-Hazard Group H   sq. ft. 

□ Other _____________________ __________________sq. ft. 

 

Types and quantities of goods and materials to be made, used or stored on site:  

 

 

 

 

Types of equipment or machinery to be used on site:  

 

 

 

 

Types and quantities of solid or liquid waste material which require disposal:   

 

 

 

 

Method of handling, storing and disposing of solid or liquid waste materials:   

 

 

 

 

Methods of providing site and building security other than the Village Police Department:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Description of the methods to be used to maintain all buildings, structures, site improvements 

and sites in a safe, structurally sound, neat, well-cared-for and attractive condition:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description of potential adverse impacts to neighboring properties or public facilities and 

measures to be taken to eliminate or minimize such adverse impacts:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A list of all local, Kenosha County (highway access, health department), State and Federal 

permits or approvals required for the project:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANS AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS 

□ Three (3) full size and a PDF copy of the Master Conceptual Plan, which shall include at a 

minimum: 

o Detailed and Dimensioned Site Plan 

o Conceptual Engineering Plans 

o Phasing Plan (if applicable) 

o Floor Plans and Elevations 

o Proposed Zoning District Change(s) 

□ Application Fee 

□ Any other information as specified by the Village 

  

 

 

 





 

 

 

 

Preliminary Site and Operational Plan 

 for  

The Kings & Convicts Brewery & Taproom  

Pleasant Prairie, WI 
December 18, 2018 

 

  



Preliminary Site and Operational Plan for The  Kings & Convicts Brewery & Taproom  

 Pleasant Prairie, WI 

 

Introduction 

The name Kings & Convicts derives from the two founder’s heritage, an Englishman (the King) and an Australian 
(the Convict) who reside on the shores of Lake Michigan with access to some of the best brewing water in the 
world, in a town that has a rich immigrant history with an undercurrent of anti-authority and love of the scoundrel.   
 
The foundation for the brand’s personality is the love of great beer, a fun anti-authority approach to marketing 
and the rich immigrant tapestry of the U.S., England and Australia. Great liquid and a great story with beers that 
appeal to the growing craft beer market; 
 
Our brand name represents who we are, it is memorable and it is different; A brand name that enables growth 
outside of our local market with the ultimate goal to expand the brand regionally, then ultimately nationwide and 
internationally; The history and beer styles translate across the U.S. and will flourish in Australia, the U.K., New 
Zealand and Asia; and The beer names capture a sense of American, English and Australian history that provides a 
deep well from which to draw in terms of marketing and beer styles. 
 
The new brewery, taproom and patio, event center and “Brig” will ensure the essence of the brand is enhanced 
and carried throughout the customer experience. The exterior building will highlight the rich history of Kings 
sending Convicts to Australia. The exterior landscape at the back of the building will incorporate natural grasslands 
of the region . The interior design will ensure that the brewery is always on display, that the experience is “real’ 
and that the space is appealing and comfortable, yet rugged. 
 
Internal Concepts for the Taproom and Brig areas. 
 

 

The brewhouse and cellar tanks will be visible from the road through the large arched windows. 
 

 



Process, Operations or Function of Building 

The Brewery 
The automated brewhouse will be the focal point, situated behind the taproom bar with  
the towering fermenters standing immediately behind, holding the attention of  
patrons. 
 
The fermentation tanks will be on display internally and externally, glazed walls and lights highlighting  
the stainless steel. 
 
Kings & Convicts Brewing Co. is investing in a brand-new state of the art Brewhouse and Cellar. This $2m system is 
being designed and manufactured in Wisconsin by QTS Tanks.  
 
We will be brewing a range of Ales, Lagers & Pilsners for sale in the taproom and via distribution into Wisconsin & 
the Mid-West. 
 
Taproom 
The Taproom will have several Key sections, including:  

Bar Area -with High tops, and bar seating 
Dining Area – with classic table seating, communal picnic table seating  
Lounge Area – with more relax comfortable seating 
A patio with fire pits, outdoor seating and family seating area. 

 
The Food - Classic American fare served by the kitchen including burgers, tacos and pizza. An outdoor BBQ and 
Smoke pit will be on the patio, adjacent to the taproom. Aussie Meat Pies and English Fish and Chips will be 
available periodically. 
 
The Event Center 
A 250 capacity Event Center on the 2nd floor overlooking the river and adjoining the Taproom. 
 
The “BRIG” 
A 50-person capacity room adjacent to the taproom that has access to the fermentation  
Area with a brewing focused feel will be a feature of the Brig 
 
Aimed at the corporate and smaller events, this room will be capable of holding smaller gatherings 
that is more private yet retains the essence of the brewing experience 
 

Hours of Operation 

Brewery Operations will approximately be from 5am to 5pm Mon-Fri. 

Taproom Hours of operation will be from 11am to 12am 7 days a week. 

Estimated Daily Truck Trips 

Brewery Operations will require the delivery of goods and ingredients, and the removal of finished product and 

waste products. 

The Taproom and Event space will require food deliveries. 

In total it is anticipated that truck trips will average at 4-6 trips per day under full operation 

 

 



Anticipated Number of Full-time & Part-time Employees 

In the production area Kings & convicts will be adding between 13-25 full & Part time staff, the taproom, kitchen 

and event space will generate a further 70-90 Full & Part time jobs for a total of 83-115 jobs on site. 

 

Type of Materials & Equipment to be stored on site 

We will be storing raw materials for the production and packaging of our Beers, this will include  

- Ingredients, Hops, Grains, Yeasts,  

- Packaging materials, Cans, Trays, kegs, 

- Cleaning Materials such as Acid & Caustic for CIP of our Equipment, 

- Productions Materials – Carbon Dioxide Tanks, Oxygen Tanks. 

On site we will have the following equipment: 

- Brewing equipment,  

- Cellar tanks for fermentation,  

- Canning and kegging lines for packaging our finished goods, 

- CO2 and O2 Tanks, 

- Forklifts. 

The taproom will have  

- Kitchen  

- Ingredients dedicated cold and dry storage 

 

Methods of handling and storing solid and liquid waste disposal 

The primary solid waste from the production of beer is spent grain. We will be installing a spent grain silo to 

capture 100% of the grain used in production, this grain will be physically removed from site and used as feed for 

local farms.  

Yeast and Hops are the 2 solid waste “products” and both be disposed of offsite again with local farmers and 

organic recycling providers. 

Our primary objective with water is reuse and recycling, we will have several systems in place to capture water 

used in the brewing and cleaning of our tanks. The remaining water waste will be routed into the sewer system. 

Our general trash area will be secured within the brewery and used for general waste and recycling. 

 

Methods of Site & Building Security 

Internal security will control access between public areas, office areas and the production facility.  

We will have interior and exterior camera monitoring, for the parking lot, access points and within the production 

and taproom areas. 

All security systems will be coordinated with Hotel security to provide a consistent solution for the site. 



D
A
T
E

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

B
Y

N
O

.

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

2018.0287.01
C-1

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

NDB
MDE

09-17-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

CONSTRUCTION PLANS
for

HYATT PLACE HOTEL
&

THE KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING COMPANY
CONCEPTUAL PLAN SUBMITTAL

for
BRANKO TUPANJAC

Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin

KENOSHA

GAS METER

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET IRON PIPE

UNDERGROUND VAULT

SECTION CORNER

STREET SIGN

MAIL BOX

HVAC UNIT

GUARD POST

SOIL BORING

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

LIGHT POLE

WATER MAIN REDUCER

SANITARY MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

NO VEHICULAR ACCESS

SEPTIC VENT

FENCE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

RAILROAD TRACKS

UNDERGROUND GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND COMMUNICATIONS

SILT FENCE

UTILITY POLE

GAS VALVE

GUY WIRE

TELEPHONE BOX

CULVERT 

ENDWALL

CATCH BASIN

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

CONTOURS

CONIFEROUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE REMOVAL

BUSH

STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY CLEAN OUT

HYDRANT

WATER MAIN VALVE

DECIDUOUS TREE REMOVAL

DECIDUOUS TREE

EDGE OF WOODS WATER SHUT OFF

WATER MANHOLE

AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY
BRIAN MCGEE
OFFICE: 262-506-6700
EMAIL: bmcgee@atcllc.com
EMERGENCY NUMBER: (800) 972-5341

WISCONSIN D.O.T.
SOUTHEAST REGION
OFFICE: 414-266-1167

AT&T
MIKE TOYEK
OFFICE: 262-636-0549
EMAIL: mt1734@att.com

TDS TELECOM
SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN
OFFICE: 877-483-7142

SPECTRUM
ROBERT TUNUTA
UTILITY COORDINATOR
OFFICE: 414-277-4205
CELL: 414-758-5688
EMAIL: tunuta@charter.net

WE-ENERGIES
ALLIE MILLER
KENOSHA SOUTH
OFFICE: 262-552-3227
EMAIL: allie.miller@we-energies.com

NATURAL GAS EMERGENCY: (800) 261-5325
ELECTRICAL EMERGENCY: (800) 662-4797

PLEASANT PRAIRIE PUBLIC WORKS
JOHN STEINBRINK, JR.,

             - DIRECTOR
ROGER PRANGE MUNICIPAL BUILDING
8600 GREEN BAY ROAD

           OFFICE: 262-925-6768
EMAIL: jsteinbrink@plprairiewi.com

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND ARE
NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY
CONNECTIONS AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL
“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

PUBLIC UTILITY CONTACTS

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

WATERMAIN

LEGEND
Existing Existing Proposed

FORCE MAIN

FIRE PROTECTION

UTILITY CROSSING

DITCH OR SWALE

BASE LINE BL
LONG CORD OF CURVE CHD
CURB AND GUTTER C&G
CATCH BASIN CB
CENTERLINE CL
EDGE OF PAVEMENT EOP
FINISHED FIRST FLOOR FFF
FINISHED GRADE FG
FLOW LINE FL
FLOODPLAIN FP
ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK OHWM
TOP OF BANK TOB
TOP OF CURB TOC
TOP OF WALK TOW

ABBREVIATIONS
INVERT ELEVATION IE
LENGTH OF CURVE ARC
MANHOLE MH
NORMAL WATER LEVEL NWL
POINT OF CURVATURE PC
POINT OF TANGENCY PT
TANGENCY OF CURVE TAN
POINT OF VERTICAL INTERSECTION PVI
RADIUS R
RIGHT OF WAY ROW
SANITARY SEWER SAN
STORM SEWER STM
TOP OF FOUNDATION TOF
WATER MAIN WM

Description Description

PROJECT LOCATION

BRANKO TUPANJAC
1020 EVERGREEN DRIVE
LAKE FOREST, IL 60045
PHONE: (312)593-2727

           EMAIL: highwoodtowers@gmail.com

OWNER / DEVELOPER

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING (OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE, OWNER'S ENGINEER, GENERAL CONTRACTOR, VILLAGE ENGINEER,
AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR) MUST BE HELD AT THE VILLAGES OFFICES. THE
PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE SHALL BE SCHEDULED AND MODERATED BY THE
DESIGN ENGINEER OF RECORD.

PRE-CONSTRUCTION NOTE

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE A COPY OF THESE PLANS AND THE PROJECT MANUAL
INCLUDING ALL CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ON-SITE DURING TIMES OF
CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF
THE CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS.

SPECIFICATION NOTE

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 P
LA

N
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
FO

R
BR

AN
KO

 T
U

PA
N

JA
C

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE HALL
9915 39TH STREET
PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI  53158
OFFICE: (262) 694-1400

- ADMINISTRATION
NATHAN THIEL

 - VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6721
EMAIL: nthiel@plprairiewi.com

THOMAS SHIRCEL
       - ASSISTANT VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6721
EMAIL: tshircel@plprairiewi.com

  - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
JEAN WERBIE-HARRIS, DIRECTOR

- PLANNER, ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6718
EMAIL: jwerbie-harris@plprairiewi.com

PEGGY HERRICK
- ASSISTANT PLANNER & ZONING

ADMINISTRATOR
OFFICE: (262) 925-6716
EMAIL: pherrick@plprairiewi.com

  - ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
MATT FINEOUR
     - VILLAGE ENGINEER
OFFICE: (262) 925-6778
EMAIL: mfineour@plprairiewi.com

KURT DAVIDSEN
     - ASSISTANT VILLAGE ENGINEER
OFFICE: (262) 925-6728
EMAIL: kdavidsen@plprairiewi.com

  - BUILDING INSPECTION DEPARTMENT
SANDRO PEREZ

 - BUILDING INSPECTION SUPERINTENDENT
OFFICE: (262) 694-9304
DIRECT: (262) 925-6722
EMAIL: sperez@plprairiewi.com

PLEASANT PRAIRIE FIRE DEPARTMENT
CRAIG ROEPKE
   - DEPUTY CHIEF OF FIRE & RESCUE
DIRECT: (262) 948-8981
EMAIL: croepke@plprairiewi.com

AARON LONGRIE
   - ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF
EMAIL: alongrie@plprairiewi.com

PLEASANT PRAIRIE PUBLIC WORKS
JOHN STEINBRINK, JR.,
    - DIRECTOR
ROGER PRANGE MUNICIPAL BUILDING
8600 GREEN BAY ROAD
OFFICE: (262) 925-6768
EMAIL: jsteinbrink@plprairiewi.com 

STEVE WLAHOVICH
    - ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN
OFFICE: (262) 925-6767
EMAIL: swlahovich@plprairiewi.com

WI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
PETER WOOD
   - WATER RESOURCES ENGINEER
OFFICE: 262-884-2360
EMAIL: peter.wood@wisconsin.gov

GOVERNING AGENCY CONTACTS

Plan Sheet Sheet No.
TITLE SHEET

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

EXISTING CONDITIONS TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

CONCEPTUAL DIMENSIONED SITE PLAN

CONCEPTUAL SITE GRADING PLAN

SANITARY SEWER & WATER MAIN PLAN & PROFILE

LANDSCAPING PLANS

C-1

A-1 THRU A-9

C-2

C-3

 C-4

C-5 THRU C-6

L1 THRU L4

SHEET INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:17:23 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
X      X

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
>

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
\

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

100'

SCALE 1"=50'

50' 0' 50' 100'

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

BEARING BASE: GRID NORTH, WISCONSIN
COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE.

ALL ELEVATIONS REFER TO NATIONAL

LEGEND:

GEODETIC DATUM OF 1929. LIGHT POLE

SIGN

SANITARY SEWERCATCH BASIN

STORM MANHOLE

STORM SEWER

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT

WATER MAIN

HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

ELECTRIC LINE

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

COMMUNICATION BOX

COMMUNICATION LINE

GAS MAIN

GAS VALVE

GAS METER

MISC. MANHOLE

POWER POLE

UG VAULT

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

GUY WIRE

FENCEGUARD POST

YARD LIGHT

FLAG POLE GUARD RAIL

FLOOD LIGHT

OVERHEAD WIRES

POST INDICATOR VALVE

SOIL BORING

MISC. HAND HOLE

WELL BUSH

HVAC

MAILBOX HAND RAIL

MON. WELL

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET 5/8" REBAR

FLOOR DRAIN

DOWNSPOUT

DRAIN TILE

SUMP HOSE

VENT PIPE

WATER MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

BASED UPON NAD 1927.

WATER CONTROL VALVE

CHISEL CROSS

"PK" NAIL

SPRINKLER HEADFIELD WORK:  09-10-2018    BY:  XXX / XXX

Part of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 7, Township 1 North, Range 22 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian, being described as follows:  Beginning
on the East line of U.S. Highway 41, as said line was determined by a conveyance, Hercules Powder Company to Kenosha County, and recorded
in Volume of Deeds 183, Page 459, at a point which is 2184.5 feet South from the Northwest corner of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 7-1-22, and
81.3 feet East from the West line of said 1/4 Section, and running thence North 01°29'East along and upon the East line of the above mentioned
highway, 800 feet, to a point which is 102 feet East from the West line of said 1/4 Section; thence running due East 370 feet; thence running
Southerly, parallel with the East line of said highway, 800 feet; thence running West 370 feet to the place of beginning.  EXCEPTING THEREFROM
parcel conveyed to State of Wisconsin by Warranty Deed recorded on November 12, 1957 in Volume 469 of records on page 371 as Document
No. 388904 and more particularly described as:  The following tract of land in Kenosha County, State of Wisconsin; in Township 1 North, Range
22 East, Section 7, all that part of the West 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 lying Westerly of a line 245 feet Easterly of, measured normal to, the
following described line;  From a point in the 1/4 line of Section 12, Township 1 North, Range 21 East, 102.52 feet West of the East 1/4 corner,
thence North 01°53'57" West 409.30 feet to the point of beginning of said reference line; thence continuing North 01°53'57" West 801.51 feet
to the point of ending of said reference line.  Said land being in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin.

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
S 

TO
PO

GR
AP

HI
C 

SU
RV

EY
FO

R
BR

AN
KO

 T
U

PA
N

JA
C

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES

ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL

INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE

TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS

AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL

“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

2018.0287.01
C-2

NDB
MDE

09-17-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

120TH AVENUE (EAST FRONTAGE ROAD)

INTERSTATE 94/41 (I-
94/I-4

1)

EXISTING

BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC. SOUTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC. WEST)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC. S 01°29' W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REC. EAST)

AutoCAD SHX Text
330' ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
267' ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
179' ROADSIDE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:17:30 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

100'

SCALE 1"=50'

50' 0' 50' 100'

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

FO
R

BR
AN

KO
 T

U
PA

N
JA

C
VI

LL
AG

E 
O

F 
PL

EA
SA

N
T 

PR
AI

RI
E,

 K
EN

O
SH

A 
CO

U
N

TY
, W

IS
CO

N
SI

N

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES

ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL

INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE

TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS

AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL

“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

2018.0287.01
C-3

NDB
MDE

11-9-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

120TH AVENUE (EAST FRONTAGE ROAD)

INTERSTATE 94/41 (I-
94/I-4

1)

PROPOSED BREWERY

32,700 S.F.

PROPOSED HOTEL

18,300 S.F

OUTDOOR EVENT

SPACE

PATIO

PATIO

SITE DATAPARKING DATA

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:17:35 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL NUMBERS:  ZONING PROPOSED: EXISTING LAND USE: EXISTING FLOOD ZONE: DEVELOPMENT TYPE:  PROPOSED BUILDING USE:  EXISTING IMPERVIOUS SURFACE TOTAL IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA TOTAL GREEN SPACE AREA TOTAL PARCEL AREA PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS SURFACE PROPOSED BUILDING/ENCLOSURE PROPOSED PAVEMENT TOTAL IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA TOTAL GREEN SPACE AREA APPLICANT: SURVEYOR/CIVIL ENGINEER: 91-4-122-072-0110 91-4-122-072-0104 B-4 OPEN LAND NOT IN A FLOOD ZONE COMMERCIAL HOTEL / BREWERY / RESTAURANT 3,146 S.F. = 0.07 AC (0.9%) 318,952 S.F. = 7.32 AC (99.1%) 322,098 S.F. = 7.39 AC 51,000 S.F. 210,759 S.F. 261,759 S.F. = 6.01 AC (81.3%) 60,339 S.F. = 1.38 AC (18.7%) BRAKO TUPANJAC 1020 EVERGREEN DRIVE LAKE FOREST, IL 60045 312-596-2727 NIELSEN, MADSEN + BARBER 1458 HORIZON BOULEVARD SUITE 200 RACINE, WI 53406 262-634-5588 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOTEL PARKING 9'x18' PARKING SPACES HANDICAP PARKING SPACES TOTAL PARKING SPACES BREWERY PARKING 9'x18' PARKING SPACES HANDICAP PARKING SPACES TOTAL PARKING SPACES TOTAL PARKING SPACES: 9'x18' PARKING SPACES HANDICAP PARKING SPACES TOTAL PARKING SPACES 370 8 376 106 8 114 476 16 492 



DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

N
O

.

SHEET

PROJ. MGR:
DRAFTED:
DATE:
CHECKED:
DATE:

100'

SCALE 1"=50'

50' 0' 50' 100'

CI
VI

L 
 E

N
GI

N
EE

RS
  A

N
D 

 L
AN

D 
 S

U
RV

EY
O

RS

14
58

 H
or

izo
n 

Bl
vd

. S
ui

te
 2

00
, R

ac
in

e,
 W

I. 
53

40
6

Te
le

: (
26

2)
63

4-
55

88
  W

eb
sit

e:
 w

w
w

.n
m

bs
c.

ne
t

BEARING BASE: GRID NORTH, WISCONSIN
COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE.

ALL ELEVATIONS REFER TO NATIONAL

LEGEND:

GEODETIC DATUM OF 1929. LIGHT POLE

SIGN

SANITARY SEWERCATCH BASIN

STORM MANHOLE

STORM SEWER

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT

WATER MAIN

HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

ELECTRIC LINE

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL

PAD MOUNT TRANSFORMER

COMMUNICATION BOX

COMMUNICATION LINE

GAS MAIN

GAS VALVE

GAS METER

MISC. MANHOLE

POWER POLE

UG VAULT

DECIDUOUS TREE

CONIFEROUS TREE

GUY WIRE

FENCEGUARD POST

YARD LIGHT

FLAG POLE GUARD RAIL

FLOOD LIGHT

OVERHEAD WIRES

POST INDICATOR VALVE

SOIL BORING

MISC. HAND HOLE

WELL BUSH

HVAC

MAILBOX HAND RAIL

MON. WELL

FOUND IRON PIPE

SET 5/8" REBAR

FLOOR DRAIN

DOWNSPOUT

DRAIN TILE

SUMP HOSE

VENT PIPE

WATER MANHOLE

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

BASED UPON NAD 1927.

WATER CONTROL VALVE

CHISEL CROSS

"PK" NAIL

SPRINKLER HEADFIELD WORK:  09-10-2018    BY:  XXX / XXX

HY
AT

T 
PL

AC
E 

HO
TE

L 
/

TH
E 

KI
N

G
S 

&
 C

O
N

VI
CT

S 
BR

EW
IN

G
 C

O
.

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 S
IT

E 
GR

AD
IN

G 
PL

AN
FO

R
BR

AN
KO

 T
U

PA
N

JA
C

VI
LL

AG
E 

O
F 

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
PR

AI
RI

E,
 K

EN
O

SH
A 

CO
U

N
TY

, W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES

ONLY AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED TO BE ACCURATE OR ALL

INCLUSIVE.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE

TYPE, LOCATION, SIZE AND ELEVATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AS THEY DEEM NECESSARY FOR PROPOSED UTILITY CONNECTIONS

AND / OR TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO, CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL

“DIGGER'S HOTLINE” PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY NOTE

2018.0287.01
C-4

NDB
MDE

10-10-2018
MDE

12-18-2018

IS
S
U
E
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
 -
 1

2
-1

8
-2

0
1
8

120TH AVENUE (EAST FRONTAGE ROAD)

INTERSTATE 94/41 (I-
94/I-4

1)

PROPOSED BREWERY

FFF: 7
02.00

PROPOSED HOTEL

FFF: 7
02.00

PROPOSED

RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED

RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED

RETAINING WALL

WETLANDS

WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:17:41 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STM

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CM

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"



KINGS_AND_CONVICTS
HOTEL

OVERALL_LANDSCAPE

NORTH



N
O

R
T

H0

SCALE: 

feet20 40 60

1" = 20'



N
O

R
T

H0

SCALE: 

feet20 40 60

1" = 20'



PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.  -  PROPOSED HOTEL

12.18.18

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
/BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTAURANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN HOTEL ENTRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOBBY

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUEST ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENTIAL PRIVATE GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HSKPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADING/TRASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAUNA

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANQUET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAUNDRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4,900 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,000 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MECH



PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.  -  PROPOSED HOTEL

12.18.18

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
25,756 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
38,184 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL ROOMS PER FLOOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
5

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL ROOMS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA PER FLOOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
18,288 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
124 + 3 = 127

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
23

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
11

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
9

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE SUITE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
8,214 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
19

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
18

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
10

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
6

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
8

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
28

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
12

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
14

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
22

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
ftp://image.autodesk.com/drawing/TANK_TOILET_3_PV.dwg
AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE



RESIDENCE

RESIDENCE

RESIDENCE

TERRACE

MEETING BANQUET

PREP KITCHEN

M

W

PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.  -  PROPOSED HOTEL

12.18.18

FIFTH FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2 LEVELS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2 LEVELS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2 LEVELS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR



12.18.18

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.

PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

HOTEL EAST ELEVATION

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF (SUITES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEZZ (SUITES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN ROOF



12.18.18

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.

PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

HOTEL SOUTH ELEVATION HOTEL NORTH ELEVATION



PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.  -  PROPOSED HOTEL

12.18.18

FIRST FLOOR PLAN SECOND LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK DOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
17,563 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER CEILING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
15,561 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2,343 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 panels @ 14'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
87' BLDG SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF EXTERIOR WALL ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMPLOYEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR LAYOUT SHOWN AS REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY STAIRS, ELEVATOR AND TOLIETS TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF BASE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
&

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECYCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF CANTILEVERED BALCONY ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,651 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15,561 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH CEILING

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2nd Floor

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,640 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 panels @ 14'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERIOR LAYOUT SHOWN AS REFERENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY STAIRS, ELEVATOR AND TOLIETS TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF BASE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN TO BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVENT SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,987 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
KITCHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF TRUCK DOCK BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE OF EXTERIOR WALL BELOW



12.18.18

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.

PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

HOTEL WEST ELEVATION

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF (SUITES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEZZ (SUITES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN ROOF



12.18.18

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.

PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

EAST ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'



12.18.18

PROPOSED KINGS & CONVICTS BREWING CO.

PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI

COPYRIGHT 2018c

ALLEN

OLSEN

ARCHITECT

21W363 WALNUT ROAD

GLEN ELLYN, IL   60137

630.842.2625

allentolsen@gmail.com

BRANKO TUPANJAC, DEVELOPER

SOUTH ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMPLOYEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE











DEV1809-002 

Consider approval of a Master Conceptual for the request of Kevin Risch with Clark Dietz, Inc. 

agent, on behalf of Prairie Holdings LLC, owner of the vacant property east of 9201 Wilmot Road 

for the development of three limited use industrial related buildings and associated site 

improvements including Extra Space Storage building. 

Recommendation: On January 28, 2019, the Plan Commission and recommended that the 

Village Board approve the Master Conceptual Plan subject to the comments and conditions of 

the February 4, 2019 Village Staff Report. 

 



2 

 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF FEBRUARY 4, 2019 

Consider approval of a Master Conceptual for the request of Kevin Risch with Clark Dietz, Inc. 

agent, on behalf of Prairie Holdings LLC, owner of the vacant property east of 9201 Wilmot Road 

for the development of three limited use industrial related buildings and associated site 

improvements including Extra Space Storage building. 

 

The developer is requesting approval of a Master Conceptual Plan for the development of the 

vacant 17.6 acres of land located east of 9201 Wilmot Road at the southwest corner of CTH H 

(88th Avenue) and CTH C (Wilmot Road) for a limited manufacturing development.  The property 

is zoned M-1, Limited Manufacturing and is proposed to be subdivided into three parcels for 

limited use industrial buildings and associated site improvements.  Lot 2 is proposed to be 

developed as an Extra Space Storage building, the other two properties have no proposed users 

at this time, but are shown as potential building sites. 

On October 2, 2017, the Village approved a Certified Survey Map and associated Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) for the owner to subdivide the property so that the existing 9201 Wilmot 

Road building would remain on one property and the vacant land to the east would be located on 

a separate property.  The owner has removed the large unused parking lot to the east of the 

building and installed the required storm water retention system and other site improvements for 

the existing industrial development.  It was the intent of the developer that the remaining vacant 

land (with the private driveway access to Fire Station #2) would be further developed for light 

industrial purposes.  

To the west of the vacant land is an existing 22.34 acre property with a 385,000 square foot 

industrial building being used primary for warehousing and storage.  To the east of the 

development area is Fire Station #2 and on the east side of 88th Avenue is the southern entrance 

to the Westwood Mobile Home Park, a few single family homes, and Hidden Oak Apartments.  To 

the north along CTH C are single family residential homes and Pleasant Prairie Elementary School 

and to the south is Kenosha Grounds Care. 

This vacant land is proposed to be further subdivided into three parcels for additional light 

industrial development pursuant to the existing M-1, Limited Manufacturing zoning district 

requirements (see attached draft CSM). 

 Lot 1 is proposed to be 3.7 acres and could be developed with a 14,112 square building.  

No proposed user has been identified but the property has been laid out for this potential 

type of light industrial development. 

 Lot 2 is proposed to be 6.2 acres for the development of a 127,000 square foot warehouse 

building proposed to be occupied by Extra Space Storage (climate controlled mini-

storage). 

 Lot 3 is proposed to be 7.7 acres and could be developed with a 43,500 square building.  

No proposed user has been identified but the property has been laid out for this potential 

type of light industrial development. 

The lots will not have direct driveway access to CTH H and CTH C, but will have access through 

private roadways that will connect to CTH H and CTH C.  The primary access will be through the 

existing north/south private drive that currently services the needs of the Village Fire & Rescue 

Station #2.  This private roadway will connect with an east/west private road that will connect to 

the existing access on the property to the west, which has an existing connection to CTH C as 

well.  The private north/south and east west private roadways within this vacant land area will be 

reconstructed with curb and gutter, paving, storm sewer drainage systems, roadway lighting to 

service these three lots while continuing to service the Fire Station. 



3 

 

All buildings will be required to connect to municipal water and sewer within the adjacent streets.  

The development of the property will also require the installation of two (2) additional retention 

basins to ensure that adequate stormwater management is being provided for the development.  

The developer intends to grade the properties, construct both stormwater basins and install all 

required improvements associated with the private roadways.   

The Village will draft an addendum to the existing MOU for the remaining site improvements 

(private road, street lights, grading and storm basins) and will require additional financial security 

be provided to ensure that these improvements are completed.  Upon approval of the Master 

Conceptual Plan, detailed site development plans, revised CSM and documents to vacate any 

existing easements shall be submitted for review and approval so this addendum can be drafted 

and the CSM finalized.  The CSM, easement vacation document(s) and the MOU addendum will be 

considered by the Plan Commission and the Village Board at the same time. 

There are some wetlands within Lot 3 that have been determined by the WI DNR to be artificial 

wetlands pursuant to the attached August 8, 2018 letter.  The petitioner is waiting for 

confirmation from the ACOE that they will not be taking jurisdiction or they could also obtain fill 

permits from the ACOE.  Prior to any grading of the site all required approvals from the ACOE 

shall be obtained and submitted to the Village.  A Comprehensive Land Use Map Amendment and 

Zoning Map Amendment will be required to correctly show the location of any wetlands that will 

remain on the properties.  

EXTRA SPACE STORAGE:  Lot 2 is proposed to be sold and the Extra Space Storage facility is 

proposed to be constructed.  The Extra Space Storage building will be approximately a 127,000 

square foot building.  Within the building will be a 1,000 square foot office area and climate 

controlled storage units ranging in size from 5’ x 5’ to the largest which is 30’ x 10’.  All storage 

units are located inside the climate controlled building.  All persons/businesses that may rent a 

storage unit would access the building in their vehicle through an overhead door on the north side 

of the building. Upon entering, the overhead garage door will close and the customer would 

continue to drive through a large center aisle to the appropriate storage aisle to unload or 

retrieve items from their units and exit the building on the south.  There is no access to the 

storage units from outside of the building.  The building and site is monitored with camera 

systems and the exterior of the site will be monitored pursuant to the Village’s Security Ordinance 

with a Digital Security Imaging System (DSIS) pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 410 of 

the Village Municipal Code.  The pre-cast panel building will provide for windows and a metal 

entry feature at the main office entry and by the required exterior man door fire exits from the 

building.  Additional architectural details will be required. 

The facility will employ 1-2 full time employees and would expect about 10 daily trips from their 

customers.  A total of 11 parking spaces (including 1 handicapped accessible parking space) will 

be provided adjacent to the office area of the building. 

Site and Operational Plans will be required for each individual building that includes site plans, 

drainage and grading plans, building plans, landscape plans, signage plans and all other required 

plans and documents pursuant to the Site and Operational Plan requirements of the Village 

Zoning Ordinance (Article IX of Chapter 420 of the Village Municipal Code) for each building site.  

Further discussion is warranted to determine if Preliminary Site and Operational approval will be 

obtained to begin mass grading on the site and possible installation of underground on-site 

utilities and footing and foundation permit for the Extra Space Storage building prior to the 

owner’s completion of the improvements covered in the addendum to the MOU.  A detailed 

schedule shall be submitted for the MOU improvements so that the Village can determine when 

any work can commence on the Extra Space Storage site prior to the work being completed 

within the development area. 



4 

 

Recommendation: 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Master Conceptual 

Plan subject to the above comments and the following conditions: 

1. The Master Conceptual Plan approval will be valid for a period of one (1) year 

(until February 4, 2020). 

2. The following plan changes shall be incorporated into the Site Development Plan 

to be included as an Exhibit to the Addendum to the MOU.  Three (3) sets of 

revised/detailed site improvements plans and a pdf shall be submitted for review 

and so that the Addendum of the MOU can be drafted:  

a. See attached comments from the Village Engineering Department dated January 

8, 2019. 

b. See attached site plan comments dated January 11, 2019 from the Community 

Development Director. 

c. A legal description of the wetlands that will remain shall be provided on the plans. 

d. The existing fence along the south property line shall be removed and replaced. 

3. See attached comments from the Village Fire Chief dated September 25, 2018. 

4. Comments related to the draft CSM will be forthcoming.  A revised draft shall be submitted 

with the detailed site improvement plans to ensure that all easements are shown correctly.   

Documents to vacate any existing easements shall be submitted for Village staff review as 

well. 

5. A Comprehensive Land Use Map Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment applications and 

related fees shall be submitted to correctly show the location of any wetlands that will 

remain on the properties.  

6. After the Site Development Plans are approved by the Village staff, then a MOU 

Addendum, CSM and easement vacation documents will be finalized and considered by the 

Village Board.  The following will need to be final form prior to Village Board 

considerations: 

a. All required permits shall be obtained from Kenosha County regarding any work 

within their rights-of-way. 

b. Approvals from the ACOE regarding the wetlands to be removed shall be submitted. 

c. A copy of the required wetland fill, N.O.I. Chapter 30 permits from the WI DNR and 

ACOE. 

d. A copy of the signed contracts, certificates of insurance, and performance and 

payment bonds.  The contracts shall have the Developer’s name as shown on the 

title of the property.  The certificates of insurance shall also list the Village as an 

insured party. 

e. Erosion Control Permit application related fees (fees to be calculate by the 

Engineering Department). 

f. Three (3) paper copies of the approved Engineering Plans, Profiles and 

Specifications and a pdf copy.   

g. A “draft” LOC or other approved financial security shall be provided to the Village 

for staff review.  A one year minimum Irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC) to the 

Village, in the amount of 115% of the total cost of the related improvements 

outlined in the Addendum, shall be submitted to the Village.  The Itemized Cost 

Breakdown Exhibit will be prepared by the Village staff to determine the amount of 

the Letter of Credit and the cash payments. IMPORTANT:  A draft Letter of Credit 



5 

 

equal to the cost breakdown analysis (need to verify proper format and dollar 

amount of Letter of Credit prior submitting the Original Letter of Credit.  The Cash 

payments and the “Final” LOC shall be provided prior to the Village at the closing. 

7. Following the closing, the Developer’s engineer shall conduct a pre-construction meeting at 

the Village with all of the contractors, utilities and Village on-site inspectors (meeting is 

required prior to private improvement field work commencing).  Contact Jean Werbie-

Harris to coordinate the pre-con meeting. 

8. The following comments relate specifically to the development of the Extra Space 

Storage facility and shall be included in the required Site and Operational Plan 

submittal: 

a. A Pre-Development Agreement shall be submitted for review of the specific 

development plans for the Extra Space property. 

b. All required Site and Operational Plan components shall be submitted pursuant to 

Article IX of the Village Zoning Ordinance.  These plans shall be identical to the 

required State approved plans. 

c. A copy of the lease explaining allowable items to be stored shall be submitted. 

d. See attached Engineering memorandum dated January 8, 2019. 

e. Any changes specific to the Extra Space Storage site in the attached Community 

Development Directors comments shall be incorporated into the Site and 

Operational Plans. 

f. See attached comments related to building materials, details and façade changes.  

A building material/sample board shall be provided prior to the meeting. 

g. A sewer sampling manhole is required to be installed in hard surface area of the 

site (not in a parking space) pursuant to the Village specifications.   In addition, all 

existing laterals not used for this project need to be abandoned at the main. 

h. Verify that a minimum of 25% of the site is open space. 

i. All exterior lighting shall be of the same LED color and brightness. Parking lot 

lighting shall be illuminated to provide sufficient lighting for the public's safety and 

the effective operation of the security cameras - per the Village's satisfaction.  In 

addition, all on-site building lighting and light poles shall not glare onto adjacent 

properties. 

j. All downspouts for all proposed buildings within the development shall be internal 

to the building and interconnected to the private storm sewer system and cut off at 

grade and shown on the required Site and Operational Plans. 

k. All exterior mechanical units, antennae and/or satellite dishes, whether roof-

mounted or ground-mounted, shall be screened from the general public's view from 

the adjacent roadways and properties. 

l. All entrances and exits shall be numbered on the exterior and interior beginning at 

the main entrance and moving clockwise around the structure. Numbers should be 

of a reflective material and must be visible from the farthest point of the adjacent 

parking lot (minimum size of 3 inch attractive numbers placed on the same location 

of each door).  Show on the plans. 

m. Camera plans and specifications for the required DSIS system shall be submitted 

for review and approval. 

9. Further discussion is warranted related to the timing of the project and installation of on-

site improvements, mass grading and building permits for the buildings. 



6 

 

10. The following comments relate to future development of all of the lots: 

a. The Fire & Rescue Department will provide additional comments as each 

building/site is proposed to be developed as part of the required Site and 

Operational Plans. 

b. Each building will be required to install a sewer sampling manhole in a hard surface 

area (not in a parking space) pursuant to the Village requirements.   In addition, all 

existing laterals not used for this project need to be abandoned at the main. 

c. All entrances and exits on each building shall be numbered on the exterior and 

interior beginning at the main entrance and moving clockwise around the structure. 

Numbers should be of a reflective material and must be visible from the farthest 

point of the adjacent parking lot (minimum size of 3 inch attractive numbers placed 

on the same location of each door). 

d. Airport Overlay Site Plan Review approval from the City of Kenosha is required for 

all buildings within this development.  A copy of this approval is required to be 

submitted prior to issuance of any building permits. 

e. Each business in the Village is required to obtain an annual business license with 

the Village.  The initial license shall be obtain prior to occupancy and shall be 

renewed annually the first of each year with the Village. 

f. The development shall comply with the ordinances in effect at the time of 

construction.  In addition, detailed Site and Operational Plans are required to be 

submitted for review and approval prior to any development pursuant to the 

requirements for the Village Zoning Ordinance.   

g. All grading and other work impacting the adjacent frontage road shall be approved 

with permits granted by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation.  Copies of 

State permits shall be provided to the Village prior to issuance of Village permits. 

h. Real Estate Marketing Signs and/or Temporary Development Signs are permitted 

only by permit pursuant to the requirements of Article X of Chapter 420.  

i. No use shall be conducted in such a way as to constitute a public or private 

nuisance or to violate any of the performance standards set out in Section 420-38 

of the Village Zoning Ordinance. 

j. Municipal connection fees shall be paid prior to the connections of each building to 

the sanitary sewer system. 

k. Development shall be in compliance with the Village Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance, the Village Municipal and Zoning Codes, the 

Village Construction Site Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance and the State 

of Wisconsin Statutes. 

l. Impact fees pursuant to Chapter 181 of the Village Code are required to be paid at 

time of building permit for each development site. 



  
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6796   PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

Office of the Village Engineer 
Matthew J. Fineour, P.E.     MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner / Zoning Administrator 

 
FROM:  Matthew Fineour, P.E.,Village Engineer 
 
  SUBJ:  Prairie Holding, LLC - Conceptual Plan 
    9201 Wilmot Road 
    
 DATE:  January 8, 2019 

 

 
Peggy, 
 
The Engineering Department has reviewed the revised conceptual plans for the proposed 
development and find the plan acceptable.  It is our understanding that the development will proceed 
with the individual development of lot 2 with surrounding site improvements to be completed by Prairie 
Holdings, LLC. 
 
The following shall be provided as the project proceeds: 

 
Lot 2 and Site Improvements 

 
1. Detailed civil engineering plans shall be submitted for review and approval for the development 

of lot 2. 
 

2. A separate set of civil engineering plan set shall be submitted for review and approval for the 
site improvements being completed by Prairie Holding LLC.   Also, provide a final storm water 
management plan with this submittal. 
 

3. As part of the civil engineering plans, a proposed schedule and sequence of construction for 
the site improvements and lot 2 development shall be submitted for review. 

 
The conceptual plans have been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted engineering 
practices and Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the design engineer is 
responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of plans and supplemental data and for their 
compliance with all state and local codes, ordinances, and procedures.  Modifications to the plans, etc. 
may be required should errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and as additional 
information is provided. 
 
*** 

 



 

 

8044 88th Avenue  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  Phone 262.694.8027  Fax 262.697.1901  PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

Office of the  
Chief of Fire & Rescue  
Craig Roepke  

 

VILLAGE STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 

FROM:  Craig Roepke, Chief Fire & Rescue 

CC:  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 

SUBJECT: Fire Department review of Conceptual site of Prairie Holdings  

Permit/Trakit#: DEV1809-002 

DATE:  September 25, 2018 

 

These are initial and overall comments for the conceptual plans for Prairie Holdings  

The Fire and Rescue Department will be responsible for providing fire prevention inspections of this facility, twice 
annually. Based on the limited information and conceptual plans submitted, the Fire & Rescue Department have 
the following comments regarding the site: 

1. All buildings shall install both automatic Fire Sprinkler systems along with a Fire Alarm notification system 
and associated appliances and fixtures. 

2. All lots shall have some form of fire protection access containing hydrants and sectional valves. Specific 
arrangement to be discussed 

3. Buildings may require additional protections systems applicable to the type of tenant, commodities store, 
and occupancy. 

4. Each building shall have its own review for specific requirements for areas including but limited to access, 
fire protection and detection, key access systems, and life safety related items. 

5. Agreements for the continued maintenance, use, and access of the private road by the Fire Station shall 
remain in effect. An agreement as to whom will be responsible for snowplowing and salting shall also be 
discussed and/or re-affirmed. 



pherrick
Text Box
2019-01-11 CD Comments











pherrick
Text Box
Add more dimension to the building--the roof line shall have projections above the main roof line and all facades.See attached photos of other buildings in LakeView Corporate Park as acceptable examples that provide varying roof lines and windows and colors.

pherrick
Callout
Dark gray area on corners should extend above the main roof line

pherrick
Callout
Extend the dark grey area above the main roof line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
expand and raise dark grey above roof line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
Add a colored stripe and clear story windows

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
Extend the dark grey area above the main roof line

pherrick
Callout
Add a colored stripe and clear story windows

pherrick
Callout
Dark gray area on corners should extend above the main roof line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
Dark gray area on corners should extend above the main roof line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
Add dark gray and extend above the main roof line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
Dark gray area on corners should extend above the main roof line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
Extend the dark grey area above the main roof line

pherrick
Callout
expand and raise dark grey above roof line

pherrick
Callout
expand and raise dark grey above roof line

pherrick
Line

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Rectangle

pherrick
Callout
Add a colored stripe and clear story windows









































 
 
August 2, 2018  EXE-SE-2018-30-02521 
 
  
OC Holdings, LLC 
Dave Doro 
5721 W. Ryan Road 
Franklin, WI 53132 
 
RE:  Artificial Wetland Exemption Determination for an area described as Wetlands A, B, C 
and I, located in the SW1/4 of the NW1/4 of Section 09, Township 01 North, Range 22 East, City 
of Kenosha, Kenosha County 
 
 
Dear Mr. or Ms. Doro: 
 
This letter is in response to your request for an artificial wetland exemption determination for the 
above mentioned wetlands.    
 
According to 281.36 (4n), State Statutes, a landscape feature where hydrophytic vegetation may 
be present as a result of human modification to the landscape or hydrology and for which no 
definitive evidence exists showing a prior wetland or stream history before August 1, 1991, may 
be exempt from state wetland regulations.  The following types of artificial wetlands cannot be 
exempted from state wetland regulation: 1) a wetland that serves as a fish spawning area or that 
is passage to a fish spawning area and 2) a wetland created as a result of a wetland mitigation 
requirement.  In addition, DNR must also consider whether the artificial wetland is providing 
significant flood protection to adjacent or downstream properties and infrastructure, and/or 
significant water quality functions to adjacent or downstream water bodies.     
 
The Department reviewed the following materials to aid in our exemption determination:  

• The request narrative  
• Historic Maps, including the Original Land Survey Plat, Bordner Survey, USGS 

topographic Quad map from 1971, and soil mapping.   
• Aerial photographs, including the 1937/8 era photograph, a pre-construction photograph, 

and a post-construction photograph.   
• Site photographs that show different angles and views of the wetland  

 
Below is a summary of our findings:  
 
Request Narrative 
According to the request narrative all wetlands A, B, C, and I appear to be human- caused and not 
historic wetlands. Wetlands B and C flow to a stormwater pond system and wetlands A and I flow 
to the west and north towards wetland H. No wetlands on site had wetland or stream history.  
 
Historic Map Review 

• Original Land Survey Plat.  The original land survey does not indicate wetness signatures 
in the area in question.  

State of Wisconsin 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
101 S. Webster Street 
P.O. Box 7921 
Madison, WI  53707-7921 

 

wisconsin.gov Printed on 
Recycled 

Paper 

dnr.wi.gov 

 

Scott Walker, Governor 
Daniel L. Meyer, Secretary 

Telephone 608-266-2621 
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 

TTY Access via relay - 711 

 

 
 



• Bordner Survey.  The Bordner survey indicates the area was actively cropped historically. 
• Soil Maps: The soil maps indicates that upland soils are present in the wetland areas in 

question. 
 
Aerial Photograph Review 

• 1937/38 era aerial photograph.  The 1937/38 aerial photograph shows the site is in 
agricultural use 

• Pre-construction aerial photograph:  The 1970s aerial photograph shows the site under 
construction with grading and land disturbance occurring in the area.  

• Post-construction aerial photograph:  The 1980 aerial photograph shows some wetness 
signatures forming and progressing through 2015.  

 
Site Photographs 
The site photographs show wetlands forming in swales and other disturbed areas.  
 
Conclusion:   
Based upon the information provided above, the wetlands identified as Wetland A, B, C, and I, 
lacked a wetland history prior to August 1, 1991, and fulfills all artificial wetland exemption 
standards.  Therefore, Wetlands A, B, C, and I are exempt from state wetland regulations.   
 

 
 
This letter describes DNR’s decision regarding the jurisdictional status of Wetlands A, B, C, and I, 
and is only valid for state jurisdictional purposes.  For decisions regarding the federal jurisdictional 
status of Wetlands A, B, C, and I, you will need to contact the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  The 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers contact for Kenosha County is Rachel Nuetzel.  Rachel Nuetzel 
can be reached at (651) 290-5729. 
 
If you have any questions about this determination, please contact me at (608) 264-9223 or email 
Amanda.Minks@wisconsin.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Amanda Minks 



Wetland Exemption Specialist 
 
cc: Rachel Nuetzel, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
 Travis Schroeder, Regional WMS, DNR 
 Neil Molstad, Regional Wetland Identification Specialist, DNR 
 
 
 



PRAIRIE HOLDINGS, LLC
MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN

O0480030
9201 WILMOT ROAD

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE
KENOSHA COUNTY, WI

HORIZONTAL DATUM IS BASED ON THE

WISCONSIN STATE PLANE COORDINATE

SYSTEM GRID, SOUTH ZONE (NAD-27),

AND ALL BEARINGS ARE REFERRED

TO GRID NORTH. VERTICAL DATUM IS NGVD 29.

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T 

- P
H

A
S

E
 2

1
DWG 1 OF   DWGS



2
0
'

5

1

0

'

W

W

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

W

W

W

(

9

2

0

1

 

W

i

l

m

o

t

 

R

d

)

L

I

M

I

T

E

D

 

M

A

N

U

F

A

C

T

U

R

I

N

G

 

Z

O

N

I

N

G

W

A

R

E

H

O

U

S

I

N

G

/

D

I

S

T

R

I

B

U

T

I

O

N

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

120'0' 60'

R/W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

PHASE 1 - POND AND SITE

EXCAVATION FOR LOT 1 & 3

PHASE 2 - ROADWAY &

STORM SEWER

PHASE 3 - LOT 2 SITE

DEVELOPMENT.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
H

A
S

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 -

M
A

S
TE

R
 C

O
N

C
E

P
TU

A
L 

P
LA

N

3
DWG 3 OF   DWGS

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1



1

5

0

'

PLEASANT PRAIRIE

FIRE STATION

LOT 1 OF CSM 2852

1

2

5

'

NOTE:

ALL STORM WATER REQ'T

WILL ROUTE TO PROP. LOT 1

IN POND NEAR ROUNDABOUT

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

 

(

W

I

T

H

F

O

U

N

T

A

I

N

 

-

 

M

I

N

.

 

O

F

 

1

 

P

U

M

P

)

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

 

P

O

N

D

 

(

W

I

T

H

F

O

U

N

T

A

I

N

 

-

 

M

I

N

.

 

O

F

 

1

 

P

U

M

P

)

TOTAL =

14,112 SF

9

6

'

1

4

7

'

2

9

0

'

1

5

0

'

TOTAL =

127,000 SF

3

1

5

'

4

0

3

'

TOTAL =

43,500 SF

3

0

'

3

0

'

F.F. = 734.50

F.F. = 730.50

F.F. = 735.50

3

0

'

0

+

0

0

1

+

0

0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

5

+

1

5

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

2

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

6

+

0

0

7

+

0

0

8

+

0

0

9

+

0

0

9

+

6

7

2

2

.

5

2

2

.

5

1

6

16

2

2

.

5

2

2

.
5

1

6

.
0

1
6
.0

3

0

.
0

3
0
.
0

5

0

.
0

5

0

.

0

1

7

.

5

2

7

.

5

2

7

.

5

2
7
.5

20'

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

B

E

R

M

5

1

0

'

W

W

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L

A

T

L
A

T

L
A

T

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C.T.H. "H"   88TH AVENUE

W

W

W

P

R

O

P

O

S

E

D

B

E

R

M

(

9

2

0

1

 

W

i

l

m

o

t

 

R

d

)

L

I

M

I

T

E

D

 

M

A

N

U

F

A

C

T

U

R

I

N

G

 

Z

O

N

I

N

G

W

A

R

E

H

O

U

S

I

N

G

/

D

I

S

T

R

I

B

U

T

I

O

N

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WETLANDS

(PROPOSED TO BE FILLED)

120'0' 60'

1

1

4

.

5

'

4

0

'

1

1

4

'

7

1

.

5

'

60'

3

0

.

5

'

4

4

.

5

'

1
2
8
'

4
2
'

20'

2

2

'

98'

WETLANDS

(PROPOSED TO BE FILLED)

DELINEATED BY THOMPSON & ASSOCIATES

WETLAND SERVICES, LLC ON 6-25-18

DELINEATED BY THOMPSON & ASSOCIATES

WETLAND SERVICES, LLC ON 6-25-18

D

E

L

I

N

E

A

T

E

D

 

B

Y

 

T

H

O

M

P

S

O

N

 

&

 

A

S

S

O

C

I

A

T

E

S

W

E

T

L

A

N

D

 

S

E

R

V

I

C

E

S

,

 

L

L

C

 

O

N

 

6

-

2

5

-

1

8

DELINEATED BY THOMPSON & ASSOCIATES

WETLAND SERVICES, LLC ON 6-25-18

1

4

0

'

1

3

0

'

PROPOSED 30-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

4

0

'

4

0

'

PERMANENT

EASEMENT LINES

(TYP)

PROPOSED ROADWAYS, 33'

B.O.C. to B.O.C. (WILL

FOLLOW VILLAGE MINOR

STREET SECTION UNDER

VOPP STANDARDS)

PERMANENT

EASEMENT LINE

(TYP)

PERMANENT

EASEMENT

LINE

R/W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

R

/

W

PROPOSED 30-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

PROPOSED 18-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

WE ENERGIES

POWER LINES

(FUTURE RELOCATE)

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

4

0

'

ACCESS TO CTH H

WILL REQUIRE

KENOSHA COUNTY DPW

PERMIT

ACCESS TO CTH C

WILL REQUIRE

KENOSHA COUNTY DPW

PERMIT

TREE

REMOVAL

TYP.

36-INCH RCP

15-INCH RCP

15-INCH CMP

10-OPEN GRATE

TO CMP

15-INCH CMP

12-INCH CMP PIPE WILL

BE REPLACED WITH A

15-INCH CMP UNDER

RECONFIGURED DRIVE

15-INCH CMP

30-INCH CMP

24-INCH RCP

NOTE: NOT DISPLAYING ALL

CONTOURS ON THIS DRAWING

AS IT IS JUST TO SHOW

PROPOSED POND AND BERMS

(2) LOADING

DOCKS

(10-12) LOADING

DOCKS

PUMPER PAD

PUMPER PAD

(PER VOPP FIRE DEP'T, THIS

MAY BE AN OPTION FOR

BOTH SITES)

PROPOSED 18-INCH

CURB & GUTTER

(BARRIER)

SNOW

STORAGE

AREAS

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

MONUMENT SIGN

LOCATION

MONUMENT SIGN

LOCATION

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 M
A

S
TE

R
C

O
N

C
E

P
TU

A
L 

P
LA

N

4
DWG 4 OF   DWGS

POND WILL DISCHARGE THROUGH AN OUTLET

STRUCTURE AND A 15-INCH RCP INTO EXISTING

DITCH UNDER THE PROPOSED ACCESS DRIVE

POND WILL DISCHARGE THROUGH AN OUTLET

STRUCTURE AND A 15-INCH RCP INTO EXISTING

DITCH & THRU THE EXISTING 36-INCH PIPE

12-14-18 Submittal #3

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

3

0

'

FIRE PROTECTION NOTE:

THIS PLAN ONLY SHOWS CONCEPTUAL FIRE PROTECTION

ELEMENTS. AS PLANS PROGRESS, EACH INDIVIDUAL SITE

WILL REQUIRE DETAILED FIRE PROTECTION CONSISTENT

WITH THE STAFF MEMORANDUM FROM CHIEF CRAIG

ROEPKE HIGHLIGHTING EVERYTHING REQUIRING

ATTENTION.

EACH SITE WILL REQUIRE ITS OWN REVIEW AND WILL

HAVE SITE DESIGN BY A FIRE PROTECTION CONSULTANT.

PROPOSED

SIDEWALK



734

734

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
1

7
3
2

7
3
3

733
734

737

733

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

7

7

3

6

7
3
5

7

3

4

7

3

5

7
3
4

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

5

7
3
5

7
3
4

7
3
3

7
3
2

7
3
1

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

1

7
3
2

7
3
3

7
3
4

7
3
5

7
3
0

7

2

8

7

2

7

7

2

5

7
2
8

7
2
9

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7
3
3

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

1

R20.0'

R20.0'

R15.0'

142.6'30.0'142.5'

3
0
.
5
'

71.5'

L2A CB3

24'' INLET

RIM = 733.07

IE=723.90 S

IE=723.80 NE

L2B CB2

24'' INLET

RIM = 732.57

IE=730.00 NW

L2B CB1

24'' INLET

RIM = 731.83

IE=728.50 SE

IE=727.00 NW

L2A CB6

24'' INLET

RIM=731.51

IE=727.00 SE

IE=724.50 NW

L2A CB8

24'' INLET

RIM=731.50

IE=729.00 NW

L2A CB7

24'' INLET

RIM=731.50

IE=728.00 SE

IE=728.00 NW

L2A CB5

24'' INLET

RIM = 731.01

IE=724.20 SE

IE=724.20 N

OS MH4

5' CATCH BASIN

RIM=729.04

IE=722.90 SW

IE=722.70 NE

L2A CB2

24'' INLET

RIM = 733.25

IE=723.40 SW

IE=723.30 NE

L2A CB1

48'' INLET

RIM = 730.75

IE=723.10 SW

IE=723.10 NE

72' OF 30" RCP @ 1.95%

113' OF 12" PVC @ 0.89%

132' OF 15" PVC @ 0.23%

63' OF 15" PVC @ 0.48%

140' OF 15" PVC @ 0.29%

188' OF 18" PVC @ 0.11%

69' OF 24" RCP @ 0.29%

75' OF 15" RCP @ 2.69%

104' OF 12" PVC @ 1.44%

132' OF 12" PVC @ 0.76%

3
.
1
%

0
.
5
%

4
.
8
%

55.8'

44.5'

104' OF 30" RCP @ 1.95%

OSA MH2

60" MH

RIM=728.00

IE=720.90 W

IE=720.77 NE

OSA MH1

60" MH

RIM=725.18

IE=718.75 SW

IE=718.64 NE

136' OF 30" RCP @ 1.95%

0
.
5
%

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 E

A
S

T 
D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

DESIGNED BY:    
DRAWN BY:       
CHECKED BY:     
DATE CHECKED:   

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

5
DWG 5 OF   DWGS

   
   
   
   
   

80'0' 40'

9.0'

1
8
.
0
'

1
2
.
0
'

124.9' 30.3'16.5'

2
4
.
0
'

R

1

4

.

5

'

PARKING LOT DETAIL

LOT 2 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

40'0' 20'

S
TO

R
A

G
E

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

- P
H

A
S

E
 2

12-14-18 Submittal #3



C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

D

.

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

D

R

I

V

E

8
0
T

H
 
S

T

8
2
N

D
 
S

T

C
.T

.H
. 
"H

"  
 8

8
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

C

.

T

.

H

.

 

"

C

"

 

 

 

W

I

L

M

O

T

 

R

O

A

D

C
.T

.H
. 
"H

"  
 8

8
T

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

DESIGNED BY:    
DRAWN BY:       
CHECKED BY:     
DATE CHECKED:   

 

6
2
5
 
5
7
T
H
 
S
T
R
E
E
T

6
T
H
 
F
L
O
O
R

K
E
N
O
S
H
A
,
 
W
I
 
5
3
1
4
0

P
H
O
N
E
 
:
 2
6
2
.
6
5
7
.
1
5
5
0
 
 
 
 
w
w
w
.
c
l
a
r
k
d
i
e
t
z
.
c
o
m

   
   
   
   
   
DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

Wetland J

36-INCH RCP

15-INCH RCP

15-INCH CMP

10-OPEN GRATE

TO CMP

15-INCH CMP

12-INCH CMP

15-INCH CMP

30-INCH CMP

24-INCH RCP

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
IT

E
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
 -

P
H

A
S

E
 2

6
DWG 6 OF   DWGS

12-14-18 Submittal #3

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1



7

3

0

7

3

5

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

1

6

7

1

67

1

7

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

1

6

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7
2
7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
1

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

0

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

6

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

3

8

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

729

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

8

7

2

9

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

3

1

7

3

1

7
3
4

7

3

3

7

3

0

7

3

0

7

3

3

7
3
2

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

2

9

7

3

0
7

3

1

7

3

2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
3

7

3

4

7
3
5

7

3

6

7

3

7

7

3

8

7

2

0

7

2

0

7

2

5

7
1
9

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7
2
6

7
2

7

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

4

1

7

3

5

7

4

0

7

3

7

7

3

5

7

3

4

7
3
1

7
3
2

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

4

7

3

5

7

3

5

7

3

4

7

3

4

7
3
4

7

2

6

7

3

3

7

3

4

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

3

2

7

3

2

7
2
6

7

2

5

7

2

4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3

5

7
3
6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
3
5

7
3
0

7
3
2

731

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

3

732

7
3
2

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

4

7
3
2

7

3

7

7

3

6

7

3

4

7

3

3

7
1
9

7

2

5

7

2

1

7

2

2

7
2
3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

7

2

8

7

2

0

7

2

5

7

1

7

7

1

8

7

1

9

7

2

1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

6

7

2

7

709

715

7

2

9

7

3

3

7

2

9

7

3

3

7
2
1

7

2

2

7

2

3

7

2

4

7

2

1

7

1

9

7

1

7

7

1

6

7
1
87

1

8

719

7
2

9

7
2
8

7

2

9

7

2

8

7

2

6

7

2

4

7

2

3

721

721

7

1

5

7

3

4

7

3

3

7

3

2

7

3

0

7

2

6

7

2

5

7

3

0

7

2

7

7
3
1

732

7

3

6

7

3

8

7

3

3

A
N

TI
C

IP
A

TE
D

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

DWG 7 OF   DWGS

DATE REVISION

PROJECT No.

DRAWING No.

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
T
I
T
L
E

D
R
A
W
I
N
G
 
T
I
T
L
E

P
R

A
IR

IE
 H

O
LD

IN
G

S
, L

LC
P

H
A

S
E

 2
 D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T

O0480030

NOTE: DIMENSIONAL DATA IS NOT TO BE OBTAINED BY SCALING ANY PORTION OF THIS DRAWING.

120'0' 60'

WETLANDS

Lot 1 - Excavate pond will require all topsoil on site to be

stripped off since this site will require fill for development.

Total topsoil stripping = 17,300 SY. and if no development,

topsoil to remain = 15,100 SY. This means 2,200 SY to be

hauled off site.

The total excavation for Lot 1 = 10,500 CY (Cut, primarily

pond) & 9,000 CY (Fill, pond and site). This excavation

includes the topsoil quantity. The total cut = 1,500 CY.

Lot 3- Excavate pond a total topsoil stripping = 8,500 SY.

and if no development, topsoil to remain = 7,100 SY. This

means 1,400 SY to be hauled off site. Total topsoil to strip if

development occurs = 25,750 SY and total to be hauld off =

18,700 SY.

The total excavation for Lot 3 = Cut, 10,500 (pond & site) &

11,300 CY (Fill, pond and site). This excavation includes the

topsoil quantity. The total need = 800 CY.

Total Excess Lot 1 & 3 = 700 CY.

LOT 3

LOT 1

LOT 3

7.2 Acres

CN 71

Tc 35.1 Min.

LOTS 1&2

11.0 Acres

CN 71

Tc 52.9 Min.

7

12-14-18 Submittal #3







Consider approval of Resolution #19-02 for support of a Floodplain Boundary 

Adjustment for the request of Matt Fineour, Village Engineer, on behalf of the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie for the proposed culvert replacements for the crossing of a tributary to the 

Des Plaines River which is located on the access road to the Pleasant Prairie Residential 

Recycling Center located at 8000 128th Street. 

 

Recommendation:  On January 28, 2019, the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 

recommended that the Village Board to support the proposed Floodplain Boundary 

Adjustment as presented in the February 4, 2019 Village staff report. 

 



2 
 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF FEBRUARY 4, 2019 

Consider approval of Resolution #19-02 for support of a Floodplain Boundary 

Adjustment for the request of Matt Fineour, Village Engineer, on behalf of the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie for the proposed culvert replacements for the crossing of a tributary to the 

Des Plaines River which is located on the access road to the Pleasant Prairie Residential 

Recycling Center located at 8000 128th Street. 

 

The Village is proposing to replace three (3) existing culverts under the existing driveway 

access to the Residential Recycling Center at 8000 128th Street with two box culverts and to 

add additional pavement layer to the roadway.  These culverts allow for floodplain waters to 

flow under the access driveway.  For information, this access driveway is proposed to be 

dedicated as a public street (Greenway Court) as a condition of Prairie Produce Farm 

development. 

The culvert replacements and additional pavement layer will not amend the location of the 

100-year floodplain boundary but the hydraulic analysis shows that the modification would 

increase the 1% annual chance event water surface elevations by 0.20 feet on the 

downstream side of the culvert (west side of the roadway) about 10 feet west of the culvert 

on the Village’s property within the existing 100-year floodplain as further outlined in the 

Hydraulic Analysis dated November 28, 2018 (Exhibit 1 of Res. #19-04).  As a result of this 

water survey elevation increase a floodplain boundary adjustment is required. 

The Floodplain Adjustment is consistent with the purposes of Section 420-131 of the Village 

Zoning Ordinance and is not in conflict with the applicable rules of the Wisconsin 

Department of Natural Resources (WI DNR) or the Federal Emergency Management Agency 

(FEMA).  Permits will be obtained from the WI DNR and FEMA prior to the proposed work 

commencing and when the work is completed a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) shall be 

obtained.  After the LOMR is obtained, public hearings to correct the Zoning Map and Zoning 

Text will be held. 

Plan Commission recommends approval of the Floodplain Boundary Adjustment subject to 

the above comments and the following conditions: 

1. An Erosion Control Permit Application along with plans and specifications (paper and 

electronic copy) will be issued prior to work commencing.  Copies of the floodplain 

boundary approvals from WI DNR and FEMA shall be included with the Erosion 

Control Permit application.  

2. Upon completion of the Floodplain Boundary Adjustment, an as-built survey and final 

floodplain calculations shall be submitted to verify the compliance with design plans.  

Upon review of the documents by the Village and WI DNR, the petitioner shall submit 

and receive a final FEMA LOMR. 

3. After the FEMA LOMR is issued, applications to amend the Village Zoning Map and 

Text to reflect the revised floodplain shall be submitted.   

DEV1812-008 



VILLAGE BOARD RESOLUTION #19-02 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT AND COMMUNITY CONCURRENCE  
TO AMEND THE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY 

 WHEREAS, Matt Fineour P.E, Village Engineer, agent for the Village of Pleasant Prairie has 
requested approval of Floodplain Boundary Adjustment to replace three (3) existing culverts under the 
existing driveway access to the Village Residential Recycling Center at 8000 128th Street with two box 
culverts and to add additional pavement layer to the roadway.  These culverts allow for floodplain waters 
to flow under the access driveway.  For information, this access driveway is proposed to be dedicated as a 
public street (Greenway Court) as a condition of Prairie Produce Farm development; and 

 WHEREAS, the culvert replacements and additional pavement layer will not amend the location of 
the 100-year floodplain boundary but the hydraulic analysis shows that the modification would increase 
the 1% annual chance event water surface elevations by 0.20 feet on the downstream side of the culvert 
(west side of the roadway) about 10 feet west of the culvert on the Village’s property within the existing 
100-year floodplain as further outlined in the Hydraulic Analysis dated November 28, 2018 (Exhibit 1).  
As a result of this water survey elevation increase a floodplain boundary adjustment is required; and 

WHEREAS, the Floodplain Adjustment is consistent with the purposes of Section 420-131 of the 
Village Zoning Ordinance and is not in conflict with the applicable rules of the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (WI DNR) or the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  Permits will be 
obtained from the WI DNR and FEMA prior to the proposed work commencing and when the work is 
completed a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) shall be obtained.  After the LOMR is obtained, public hearings 
to correct the Zoning Map and Zoning Text will be held; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Village Plan Commission of the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, at the Village Municipal Building, 9915 39th Avenue on the 28th day of 
January 2019, at 6:00 P.M., for the purpose of determining the application of the floodplain boundary map 
amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Pleasant Prairie Village Board has been provided with sufficient evidence that the 
petition for a floodplain boundary map adjustment and amendment is consistent with the requirements of 
the Village Zoning Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Village Board does hereby support the resolve to amend the 100-year 
recurrence interval floodplain boundary as delineated and shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
and Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for the Village of Pleasant Prairie (Effective Date of June 19, 2012) for a 
part of U.S. Public Land Survey Section 33, Township 1 North, Range 22 East, in the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin as described in this Resolution, subject to compliance with the terms 
and conditions hereinafter stated: 

1. An Erosion Control Permit Application along with plans and specifications (paper and electronic 
copy) will be issued prior to work commencing.  Copies of the floodplain boundary approvals from 
WI DNR and FEMA shall be included with the Erosion Control Permit application.  

2. Upon completion of the Floodplain Boundary Adjustment, an as-built survey and final floodplain 
calculations shall be submitted to verify the compliance with design plans.  Upon review of the 
documents by the Village and WI DNR, the petitioner shall submit and receive a final FEMA LOMR. 

3. After the FEMA LOMR is issued, applications to amend the Village Zoning Map and Text to reflect 
the revised floodplain shall be submitted.   

THIS RESOLUTION by action of the Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie is 
adopted this 4th day of February 2019. 

 
____________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 

Attest:       Village President 
 
 
___________________________ 
Jane C. Snell 
Village Clerk            DEV1812-008 



pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1

pherrick
Typewritten Text







































Consider approval of a Municipal Code Amendment (Ord. #19-04) to amend Section 

395-72 G of the Village Land Division and Development Control Ordinance related to 

basement level sewer service for residential developments. 

Recommendation:  On January 28, 2019 the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 

recommended that the Village Board to approve the Land Division Ordinance amendment as 

presented in the February 4, 2019 Village staff report. 

 



2 
 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF FEBRUARY 4, 2019 

Consider approval of a Municipal Code Amendment (Ord. #19-04) to amend Section 

395-72 G of the Village Land Division and Development Control Ordinance related to 

basement level sewer service for residential developments. 

 

The Village staff is recommending that Section 395-72 G of the Village Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance be amended to clarify that all public and private sanitary 

sewer mains shall be designed and constructed to provide gravity basement service.  

Further, new residential homes/units shall be connected with gravity basement sewer 

service, unless approved by the Village Engineer based on a practical difficulty or 

unnecessary hardship.   

This clarification would allow for existing lots that have municipal sanitary sewer within the 

adjacent street to have hung plumbing/grinders pump/injector pit if the existing sanitary 

sewer cannot provide for gravity basement sewer service. 

Plan Commission recommends approval of the Ordinance amendment as presented. 

 

CODE1812-001 



CODE1812-001 

ORD. #19-04 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

THE VILLAGE LAND DIVISION AND DEVELOPMENT CONTROL ORDINANCE  

(CHAPTER 395) 

RELATED TO GRAVITY BASEMENT SANITARY SEWER SERVICE  

IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT SECTION 395-72 G BE AMENDED AS 

FOLLOWS: 

G. Basement level service. All new public or private sanitary sewers mains shall be designed 

and constructed to provide for gravity services to all basements.  All new residential 

homes/units shall be connected with gravity basement sewer service, unless otherwise 

approved by the Village Engineer due to practicable difficulty or unnecessary hardship. 

Adopted this 4th day of February 2019. 

 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

ATTEST:  

  

John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

  

Jane C. Snell 

Village Clerk 

 

Posted:    

 
04-ld amend 395-72 g 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



1 
DOCS/1261479.4  

Bluestem Energy Masterplan Agreement 
 
 

This ("Agreement") is entered into as of ____________, 2019 (“Effective Date”) by and 
between Bluestem Energy Solutions, LLC, a Nebraska limited liability company ("Developer"), 
and the Village of Pleasant Prairie, a Wisconsin municipality (Customer). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Developer is an experienced developer, owner and operator of energy generation 
facilities ("Energy Generation"). 
 
B. Customer is a Wisconsin municipality (State) that purchases energy from one or more 
suppliers of energy.  
  
C. Customer desires to supplement or replace a portion of its current energy purchase and to 
contract with Developer for Developer to engage in pre-development and development activities, 
and to enter into a binding, long-term power purchase agreement ("PPA") with Developer under 
which Developer would sell and Customer would buy electrical output of a Energy Generation 
facility at an economically reasonable price based on current energy costs, internal savings, 
portfolio diversification, non-monetary benefits, and market conditions (the "Project"). 
 
D. The Development Period (as defined below), and Developer's activities therein are, in 
part, intended to assist Developer and Customer in determining an appropriate PPA price. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
Developer and Customer accept and acknowledge, Developer and Customer agree as follows: 
 
1. Development Obligation.  During the Development Period, at its sole cost and expense, 
Developer shall diligently undertake all necessary actions to investigate and facilitate the 
potential development of the Project in a manner intended to lead to Developer offering to sell 
the energy the Project produces to Customer, and Customer agreeing to purchase such energy via 
a mutual, binding PPA (the "Development Activities").  The Development Activities may 
include, but shall not be limited to, those activities set forth in Exhibit A.  Developer anticipates 
the cost of the Development Activities (the "Development Expense") will not exceed 
_$25,000_______ ("Cost Cap"). 
 
2. Term.  Unless this Agreement is terminated, as provided for herein, for a period of __6 
months___________ from the date that both parties have received all necessary information 
requested in the project kickoff Request for information (RFI), or 90 days after the Effective 
Date, whichever comes first (the "Development Period"), Customer shall not engage, work 
with, contract, procure services from or otherwise do business with a developer of Energy 
Generation facilities for resale other than Developer, not to include other generation facilities, 
developers which were agreed to prior to the execution to this agreement. Customer and 



2 
DOCS/1261479.4  

Developer may extend the Development Period by written agreement executed by Customer and 
Developer. 
 
3. Power Purchase Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the Development Period, 
Developer and Customer shall meet and confer as necessary to negotiate towards a PPA.  
Developer and Customer represent and warrant that by entering into this Agreement, they desire 
in good faith that it result in the execution of a PPA between Developer and Customer for the 
Project that is acceptable to both parties. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary, the decision whether to enter into a PPA, and all terms of the PPA, are subject to the 
approval of the Village Board of the Customer and nothing contained herein shall be deemed to 
limit in any way the discretion of said Village Board to determine whether to enter into a PPA or 
the terms of any such PPA. 
 
4. Expiration and Termination.  If Developer and Customer are unable to agree on and 
execute a PPA, this Agreement shall terminate, and the Parties shall have no further obligation to 
one another, other than obligations under Paragraph 8, which shall survive termination. 
 
5. Early Termination.  If at any time prior to the expiration of the Development Period 
Customer desires to terminate this Agreement ("Early Termination"), Customer may do so, 
provided, however, that Customer must first pay Developer's actual Development Expenses 
expended on the Project during the Development Period, not to exceed the Cost Cap plus an 
additional amount equal to ___10_____ (%) of the Development Expenses (collectively, 
the "Early Termination Payment"). 
 
6. Release and Transfer of Assets.  Upon receiving the Early Termination Payment, 
Developer and Customer shall execute a written release from this Agreement (the "Release"), 
this Agreement shall terminate, and Developer and Customer shall have no further rights or 
obligations to one another as to the Project.  The Release shall include all necessary documents, 
including but not limited to, bill(s) of sale, assignment(s), release(s) and deed(s), to transfer all of 
Developer's right, title and interest in and to the Project to Customer. 
 
7. Customer Warranties.   

a. Customer represents and warrants that Customer has taken all required 
actions and given all required notices and has requisite authority to enter into and bind 
itself to all of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
b. Customer represents and warrants that in entering into and binding itself to 

all of its obligations under this Agreement, Customer is not placing itself in breach or 
default of any agreement, contract, warrant or other binding legal obligation(s). 

 
c. Customer represents and warrants that the individual executing this 

Agreement on its behalf is duly authorized to, and capable of, binding Customer to all of 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
d. Customer represents and warrants that it will reasonably cooperate with 

Developer as necessary to assist Developer in carrying out its obligations under this 



3 
DOCS/1261479.4  

Agreement, including, but not limited to, executing documents, attending meetings, and 
taking other actions to ensure the Project can occur within the existing framework of 
Customer's existing energy purchase contracts and arrangements. 

 
8. Confidentiality.  In order to protect certain confidential information which may be 
disclosed between the Developer and Customer.  Both parties are DISCLOSERS and 
RECIPIENTS of their respective Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information" 
means any and all DISCLOSER business and technical information, including, without 
limitation, any and all specifications, drawings, software, current and future business plans, 
product samples and written, electronic and verbal embodiments and descriptions thereof, as well 
as RECIPIENT reports or analyses containing same or based thereon. All technical and business 
information regarded as confidential by the DISCLOSER must be clearly marked 
"CONFIDENTIAL" or "PROPRIETARY." Confidential Information disclosed verbally or by 
display and identified at that time as being CONFIDENTIAL or PROPRIETARY shall be 
described in writing and identified as CONFIDENTIAL or PROPRIETARY by DISCLOSER 
within thirty (30) days following such disclosure. Each party receiving Confidential Information 
under this Agreement shall use the Confidential Information exclusively for the purpose 
evaluating a possible business relation between them. Both parties agree that they will not 
disclose or use the other party’s Confidential Information in any other way without first 
obtaining written permission from the DISCLOSER. 
 
All tangible documentation and materials provided to either RECIPIENT under this Agreement 
shall remain the property of the DISCLOSER and shall be returned at the conclusion of the 
evaluation of following a written request from the DISCLOSER; RECIPIENT shall make no 
copies of any electronic or tangible documentation or materials provided hereunder, except to the 
extent necessary to permit proper evaluation, and, RECIPIENT shall retain no copies but shall 
destroy or return all copies when originals are returned. 
 
Each RECIPIENT's duty to protect Confidential Information disclosed under this Agreement 
shall extend for three (3) years from the date hereof. 
 
Each RECIPIENT shall protect the other party’s Confidential Information by using the same 
degree of care, but no less than a reasonable degree of care, to prevent the unauthorized use, 
dissemination or publication of such Confidential Information as RECIPIENT uses to protect its 
own Confidential Information of a like nature. Each RECIPIENT shall not disclose the fact that 
discussions are or have taken place, or disclose Confidential Information to third parties, even in 
confidence, without first obtaining the written permission of the DISCLOSER. 
 
RECIPIENT shall limit access to the Confidential Information provided hereunder to such of 
their personnel and consultants as may be directly involved in the evaluation effort and to no 
other personnel, and RECIPIENT shall provide to DISCLOSER upon request, a list of all 
RECIPIENT personnel and consultants having had access to such Confidential Information. 
 
This Agreement imposes no obligation upon a RECIPIENT with respect to specific Confidential 
Information which (a) was in RECIPIENT's possession before receipt from DISCLOSER as 
evidenced by written records; (b) is or becomes a matter of public knowledge through no fault of 



4 
DOCS/1261479.4  

RECIPIENT; (c) is independently developed by RECIPIENT as evidenced by written records; 
(d) is disclosed under operation of law; (e) is disclosed by RECIPIENT with DISCLOSER's 
prior written approval; or (f) any disclosure by Customer which Customer reasonably believes is 
required under any open records law, open meetings law, or any similar law governing the 
Customer and its duties, obligations and rights to disclose information. The Customer will 
provide prompt notice of any open records, open meetings law, or any similar law requests or 
intended disclosures, citations or copies of Confidential Information to Developer. 
 
Each DISCLOSER warrants that it has the right to make disclosures under this Agreement. 
 
Neither party is obligated hereby to disclose any information or enter into any agreement or 
relationship. Each party agrees to promptly notify the other of any unauthorized release of the 
other party’s Confidential Information. Each party acknowledges the unique nature of the other 
party’s Confidential Information, that money damages may not afford adequate remedy, and that 
therefore a DISCLOSER may be entitled to equitable relief in addition to other legal remedies 
for breach hereof. Each party agrees that any litigation hereunder may be brought in the 
appropriate courts of Kenosha  County,Wisconsin, and each consents to the jurisdiction of such 
courts. In any dispute hereunder the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other 
party its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 
 
Neither party acquires any intellectual property rights under this Agreement except the limited 
right to use set out in paragraph 3 above. 
 
The parties do not intend that any agency, joint venture or partnership relationship be created 
between them by this Agreement, and furthermore, nothing herein creates any restriction on 
either party to transact business with third parties; provided, however, that no Confidential 
Information of a party may be used by the other party in such endeavor. 
 
9. Construction and Enforcement.  This Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
pursuant to Wisconsin law.  This Agreement shall be construed as if drafted by both parties. 
 
10. Invalidity.  If any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for 
any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 
 
11. No Other Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between 
Customer and Developer with respect to the Project and supersedes any prior understandings or 
written or oral agreements between Customer and Developer respecting the within subject matter 
and cannot be changed except by their written consent.  Customer and Developer enter into this 
agreement at their own risk, and neither party shall have any obligation or liability to the other 
party except as expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
 
12. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence regarding the parties performance under 
this Agreement. 
 



5 
DOCS/1261479.4  

13 Compliance with Laws.  Customer and Developer is solely responsible for its 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations regarding procurement, contracting, and 
execution of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
14. No Partnership.  Nothing herein shall be construed to create a general partnership or 
authorize Customer or Developer to act as agent for the other. 
 
15. Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by Customer or Developer to a 
non-affiliated entity may only occur with the written consent of the non-assigning party and any 
such assignment made without said consent shall be void and of no legal effect, provided, 
however, that Developer may assign some or all of its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement to its affiliated entities without Customer's consent. 
 
16. Notices.  Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be given to Customer at 9915 39th 
Avenue Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158, Attn: Nathan R. Thiel, Village Administrator and to 
Developer at Bluestem Energy Solutions, LLC, Attn: Jake Griggs, 950 S. 10th Street Suite 001, 
Omaha, Nebraska, 68108. 
 
17. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, which when assembled 
such that the authorized signature of each of Customer and Developer is present, shall constitute 
an original of this Agreement. 
 

Signatures on Following Page 



6 
DOCS/1261479.4  

DEVELOPER 
 
Bluestem Energy Solutions, LLC 
 
 
 
By:        
 
 Name:       
 
 Title:       
 
 
 
CUSTOMER 
 
Village of Pleasant Prairie 
 
 
By:         Attest:       
          

Name:  John Steinbrink , Sr.    Name: Jane C. Snell    
 
  Title: Village President    Title:  Village Clerk    
 
 



DOCS/1261479.4  

EXHIBIT A 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
1. Creation of agreed upon project scope for assessment: technologies, project sizes, locations, 
preferred ownership structures etc.  
2. Assess legal and regulatory constraints and opportunities- power contracts, state, local and 
county regulations.  
3. Customer system load and infrastructure review: identify responsible areas of interconnect and 
provide a customer owned system generation impact study. 
4. Resource assessment: identify all viable resources for electric generation and quantify by 
strength of resource.  
5.  Identification of Land required 
6. Technology procurement analysis: Identify tier one generating technologies based on the 
resource assessment. 
7.  Obtain all required local, state and federal permits and approvals 
8.  Analyze feasibility study and present economic impact of all potential projects to customer 

 
 



MEMORANDUM 

To:        Village Board Trustees 

From:   Nathan R. Thiel 

Date:    February 4, 2019 

Re:        Sex Offender Residence Board Appointment 

9915 39th Avenue • Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin 53158-6504 • Phone 262.925.6721 • Fax 262.694.4734 • PleasantPrairieWI.gov 

Office of the Village Administrator 

I recommend the re‐appointment of board member, Pauline Hammerbeck, to the Sex Offender Residence Board for the 

term of 02/05/2019 to 02/04/2024. 


	Village Board Agenda - February 4, 2019
	Village Board Minutes - January 21, 2019
	8A. B. and C.  Chiwaukee West table items
	2019-01-31 Memorandum
	Res 19-01
	Ord 19-02
	Ord 19-03
	Section 250-3 Discharge of firearms restricted
	Chiwaukee West Restoration Plan
	ROW Vacation Request
	Comp Plan Amendment Application
	Zoning Map Amendment Application

	9A.  Hotel and Brewery Concept Plan
	2019-01-09 Engineering Comments
	Government Agency Contacts November 2018
	Building Elevation Comments
	2019-01-15 Fire Dept Comments
	2019-01-17 Building Inspection Comments
	Conceptual Application and partial Plans
	Application
	Plans
	Kings and Convict Images


	9B.  Prairie Holdings Concept Plan
	2019-01-08 Eng Review
	2018-09-25 Fire Comments
	2019-01-11 CD Comments
	CD Comments Revised Elevations-Extra Space Storage
	Building Facade examples
	2019-01-18 Draft CSM
	2019-02-23 Letter Yule
	Concept Application and Plans
	2018-08-02 DNR Wetland Letter
	Conceptual Plan


	9C.  Res 19-02
	Res 19-02

	9D.  Ord 19-04
	Ord 19-04

	9E.  Bluestem Energy Masterplan Agreement
	9F.  SORB re-appointment Memo Pauline Hammerbeck

	Name of Business: N/A
	Site Address: 7821 120th Avenue
	Suite: 
	Tax Parcel Number: 91-4-122-072-0110 and 91-4-122-072-0104
	Zoning Districts: B-4 (Freeway Service Business District)
	Name of Development: Hyatt Place / The Kings & Convicts Brewing Co.
	Estimate Start date: 5-1-19
	Estimate Completion Date of entire project: 3-1-20
	Detailed Description of the Proposed Project and Use: A planned development along I-94/41 consisting of a  109,000+/- SF (Hotel) and 51,000+/- SF (Brewery).  The Hotel will include a Banquet Hall, Restaurant, Bar, Pool, Spa, Exercise Room, Meeting Rooms and a Business Center.  The Brewery will include a Tap Room, Resturant, Brew house, Game Rooms, Private lounges, Meetings Areas, Cellar Tanks and Packaging Area as well as 2 Event Spaces.   
	Detailed Description of any known CompanyTenants: 1. Hyatt Place Hotel2. The Kings & Convicts Brewing Co.
	phases: 1
	The Development will be constructed in: On
	The Development abuts or adjoins State Trunk Highway: On
	The Development abuts or adjoins County Trunk Highway: Off
	The Development abuts the Kenosha County Bike Trail: Off
	undefined: I-94 East Frontage Road
	undefined_2: 
	Lot Area: 7.39
	Total Impervious Surface Area: 262,000
	Total Landscape Area: 24,000
	Site  of Open Space: 18.7
	Number of Buildings within the development proposed: 2
	Building 1 Area: 51,051 (Brewery)
	Building1 Height: 36'-6" (Brewery)
	Building 2 Area: 109,728 (Hotel)
	Building2 Height: 80' (Hotel)
	Building 3 Area: 
	Building3 Height: 
	Building 4 Area: 
	Building4 Height: 
	Building 5 Area: 
	Building5 Height: 
	Building 6 Area: 
	Building6 Height: 
	Building 7 Area: 
	Building7 Height: 
	Building 8 Area: 
	Building8 Height: 
	Building 9 Area: 
	Building9 Height: 
	Building 10 Area: 
	Building10 Height: 
	Total  of regular parking spaces onsite: 476
	Total  of handicapped accessible spaces onsite: 16
	Total  of truck parking spaces onsite: 2
	Total  of dock doors: 3
	Number of daily average trips: 300
	Maximum number of daily trips: 400
	Number of daily average trips_2: 3
	Maximum number of daily trips_2: 4
	Proposed total number of fulltime employees: Brewery 36 / Hotel 10
	Proposed total number of parttime employees: Brewery 48 / Hotel 6
	Number of shifts: Brewery 2 / Hotel 3
	Hours Open to the public: Brewery 5 AM to 5 PM / Tap Room 11 AM to 12 PM , Hotel 24 hours
	Delivery hours: 6 AM to 10 AM
	The property is serviced by Public Sanitary Sewer: On
	The property is serviced by Public Water: On
	The building is serviced by fire sprinklers: On
	Maximum number of gallonsminute of water expected to be used per day is: Brewery 29,000, Hotel 1,400
	Is pretreatment being proposed for sanitary sewer discharge: No
	sq ft: 
	sq ft_2: 
	sq ft_3: 
	sq ft_4: 
	sq ft_5: 
	sq ft_6: 
	Other: 
	sq ft_7: 
	Types and quantities of goods and materials to be made used or stored on site: 
	Types of equipment or machinery to be used on site: 
	Types and quantities of solid or liquid waste material which require disposal: 
	Method of handling storing and disposing of solid or liquid waste materials: 
	Methods of providing site and building security other than the Village Police Department: 
	and sites in a safe structurally sound neat wellcaredfor and attractive condition: 
	measures to be taken to eliminate or minimize such adverse impacts: 
	permits or approvals required for the project: 
	Three 3 full size and a PDF copy of the Master Conceptual Plan which shall include at a: Off
	Application Fee: Off
	Any other information as specified by the Village: Off


